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Part 1

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (including the section regarding Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations) contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as well as information relating to Fibrocell Science, Inc. and its subsidiaries (referred to as “Fibrocell,”
“Company,” “we,” or “our”) that is based on management’s exercise of business judgment and assumptions made by and information currently available to
management. Although forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K reflect the good faith judgment of our management, such statements
can only be based on facts and factors currently known by us. Consequently, forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties and
actual results and outcomes may differ materially from the results and outcomes discussed in or anticipated by the forward-looking statements. When used in
this document and other documents, releases and reports released by us, the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “the facts suggest”
and words of similar import, are intended to identify any forward-looking statements. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements. These statements reflect our current view of future events and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties as noted below. Should one or more of
these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in
these forward-looking statements. Actual events, transactions and results may materially differ from the anticipated events, transactions or results described in
such statements. Although we believe that our expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that our expectations will
materialize. Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward looking statements including those set forth in Item 1A of this report.
Other unknown, unidentified or unpredictable factors could materially and adversely impact our future results. We undertake no obligation and do not intend
to update, revise or otherwise publicly release any revisions to our forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to
reflect the occurrence of any unanticipated events. Several of these factors include, without limitation:
 

 •  our ability to finance our business and continue in operations;
 

 
•  our ability to increase our manufacturing capacity and improve our manufacturing costs through the improvement of our manufacturing process,

and our ability to validate any such improvements with the relevant regulatory agencies;
 

 
•  our ability to meet requisite regulations or receive regulatory approvals in the United States, Europe, Asia and the Americas, and our ability to

retain any regulatory approvals that we may obtain; and the absence of adverse regulatory developments in the United States, Europe, Asia and
the Americas or any other country where we plan to conduct commercial operations;

 

 
•  whether our clinical human trials relating to the use of autologous cellular therapy applications, and such other indications as we may identify and

pursue can be conducted within the timeframe that we expect, whether such trials will yield positive results, or whether additional applications for
the commercialization of autologous cellular therapy can be identified by us and advanced into human clinical trials;

 

 
•  our ability to develop autologous cellular therapies that have specific applications in cosmetic dermatology, and our ability to explore (and possibly

develop) applications for periodontal disease, reconstructive dentistry, treatment of restrictive scars and burns and other health-related markets;
 

 •  our ability to reduce our need for fetal bovine calf serum by improved use of less expensive media combinations and different media alternatives;
 

 •  continued availability of supplies at satisfactory prices;
 

 •  new entrance of competitive products or further penetration of existing products in our markets;
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 •  the effect on us from adverse publicity related to our products or the company itself;
 

 •  any adverse claims relating to our intellectual property;
 

 •  the adoption of new, or changes in, accounting principles;
 

 •  our issuance of certain rights to our shareholders that may have anti-takeover effects; and
 

 •  our dependence on physicians to correctly follow our established protocols for the safe administration of our product.

We file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC” or “Commission”). We make available on our website
(www.Fibrocellscience.com) free of charge our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to
those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with or furnish them to the SEC. Information appearing at our website
is not a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. You can also read and copy any materials we file with the Commission at its Public Reference Room at 100
F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You can obtain additional information about the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the Commission at
1-800-SEC-0330. In addition, the Commission maintains an Internet site (www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other
information regarding issuers that file electronically with the Commission, including Fibrocell Science.

Our corporate headquarters is located at 405 Eagleview Boulevard, Exton, Pennsylvania 19341. Our phone number is (484) 713-6000. Our fiscal year
begins on January 1, and ends on December 31, and any references herein to “Fiscal 2011” mean the year ended December 31, 2011, and references to other
“Fiscal” years mean the year ending December 31, of the year indicated.

We own or have rights to various copyrights, trademarks and trade names used in our business including but not limited to the following: Fibrocell
Science, Fibrocell Therapy, Fibrocell Science Process, Agera and Agera Rx, (LAVIV et al). This report also includes other trademarks, service marks and
trade names of other companies. Other trademarks and trade names appearing in this report are the property of the holder of such trademarks and trade names.

We obtained statistical data, market data and other industry data and forecasts used in this Form 10-K from publicly available information. While we
believe that the statistical data, industry data, forecasts and market research are reliable, we have not independently verified the data, and we do not make any
representation as to the accuracy of that information.

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a cellular aesthetic and therapeutic development stage biotechnology company focused on developing novel skin and tissue rejuvenation products.
Our approved and clinical development product candidates are designed to improve the appearance of skin injured by the effects of aging, sun exposure, acne
and burn scars with a patient’s own, or autologous, fibroblast cells produced by our proprietary Fibrocell process.

We use our proprietary process to harvest autologous fibroblasts from a small skin punch biopsy from behind the ear with the use of a local anesthetic.
We chose this location both because of limited exposure to the sun and to avoid creating a visible scar. The biopsy is then packed in a vial in a special
shipping container and shipped to our laboratory where the fibroblast cells are released from the biopsy and initiated into our cell culture process where the
cells proliferate until they reach the required cell count. The fibroblasts are then harvested, cryopreserved, tested by quality control and released by quality
assurance prior to preparation of drug product. After wash and preparation of cells to formulate the drug product, additional quality testing is performed prior
to release and distribution to the medical clinic. The number of cells and the frequency of injections may vary and will depend on the indication or application
being studied.
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Our lead product, LAVIV (United States adopted name, or USAN, is azficel-T), is the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy approved by the
Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) for the improvement of the appearance of moderate to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults. LAVIV offers patients
their own living fibroblast cells in a personalized therapy designed to improve the appearance of wrinkles. Our clinical development programs encompass both
aesthetic and therapeutic indications.

We believe that because LAVIV and our product candidates are autologous, the risk of an immunological or allergic response is low. With regard to the
therapeutic markets, we believe that our product candidates may address an insufficiently met medical need for the treatment of each of restrictive burn scars,
acne scars and vocal scarring. There are also numerous other potential areas of interest for our technology in the body. Certain of our product candidates are
still in clinical development and, as such, benefits we expect to see associated with our product candidates may not be validated in our clinical trials. In
addition, disadvantages of our product candidates may become known in the future.

Going Concern

We emerged from Bankruptcy in September 2009 and continues to operate as a going concern. At December 31, 2011, we had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately $10.8 million and working capital of $2.9 million.

As of March 26, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $4.7 million and our accounts payable and accrued expenses were
approximately $1.6 million. In addition, the Company has approximately $7.0 million of outstanding debt which is due in June 2012. Our current monthly
cash run-rate is approximately $2.2 million. We will need to access the capital markets in the near future in order to fund future operations. There is no
guarantee that any such required financing will be available on terms satisfactory to us or available at all. These matters create uncertainty relating to its ability
to continue as a going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of assets or liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Through December 31, 2011, we have been primarily engaged in developing our initial product technology. In the course of our development activities,
we have sustained losses and expects such losses to continue through at least 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we financed our operations
primarily through our existing cash received from external equity financings, but as discussed above we now require additional financing. There is substantial
doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.

Our ability to complete additional offerings is dependent on the state of the debt and/or equity markets at the time of any proposed offering, and such
market’s reception of us and the offering terms. Our ability to complete an offering is also dependent on the status of FDA regulatory milestones and our
clinical trials. There is no assurance that capital in any form would be available to us, and if available, on terms and conditions that are acceptable.

As a result of the conditions discussed above, and in accordance with GAAP, there exists substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern, and our ability to continue as a going concern is contingent, among other things, upon our ability to secure additional adequate financing or capital in
the near future. If we do not obtain additional funding, or do not anticipate additional funding, in the very near future, we will likely enter into bankruptcy
and/or cease operations. Further, if we do raise additional cash resources in the near future, it may be raised in contemplation of or in connection with
bankruptcy. If we enter into bankruptcy, it is likely that our common stock and common stock equivalents will become worthless and our creditors,
including preferred stock, will receive significantly less than what is owed to them.
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Our Strategy
Our business strategy is focused on our unique autologous cellular platform. This strategy will be heavily dependent upon raising sufficient funds

and/or enter relevant strategic partnerships. Our key areas of focus are as follows:
 

 

•  Firstly, aesthetics and dermatology is our first focus. In June 2011, our lead product, LAVIV (United States adopted name, or USAN, is azficel-
T), became the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy approved by the FDA for the improvement of the appearance of moderate to severe
nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults and we are currently in the process of launching the product in the United States. Other possible aesthetic
indications that we are considering pursuing include acne scarring, fine lines and wrinkles around the eyes and mouth, the décolletage and total
facial treatment. We are developing a personalized topical cosmetic product consisting of a cream vehicle blended with the conditioned media
extract from the cell culture of a customer’s own fibroblasts. The conditioned media used to promote fibroblast expansion contains protein extracts
from the fibroblast cells produced in vitro. This media is collected from cell culture during routine feed and passage for use in formulation of the
cosmetic product. Final formulation and distribution will be performed at Fibrocell’s Exton, PA manufacturing facility. At present, we are
conducting characterization and safety testing in anticipation of launch in the third quarter, 2012.

 

 
•  Secondly, we plan to pursue in the future indications for burn scars and vocal scarring. Other potential areas of interest include wound healing

and periodontal disease (recessive gum lines).
 

 
•  Thirdly, our long term vision is, in cooperation with UCLA, to biotransform autologous dermal fibroblasts to “factor free” IPSC cells capable of

differentiation into multiple cell types for toxicological, research use and therapeutic areas.

Clinical Development Programs
Our product development programs are focused on the aesthetic and therapeutic markets. These programs are supported by a number of clinical trial

programs at various stages of development.

Our aesthetics development programs include product candidates to treat acne scarring and to provide full-face rejuvenation that includes the
improvement of fine lines, wrinkles, skin texture and appearance. Our therapeutic development programs are designed to treat restrictive burn scars and vocal
scarring. All of our product candidates are non-surgical and minimally invasive. Although the discussions below may include estimates of when we expect
trials to be completed, the prediction of when a clinical trial will be completed is subject to a number of factors and uncertainties. Also, please refer to Part I,
Item 1A of our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, for a discussion of certain of our risk factors related to our clinical development programs,
as well as other risk factors related to our business.

Aesthetic Development Programs
Acne Scars – Phase II Trial: In November 2007, we commenced an acne scar Phase II study. This study included approximately 95 subjects. This

placebo controlled trial was designed to evaluate the use of azficel-T to correct or improve the appearance of acne scars. Each subject served as their own
control, receiving azficel-T on one side of their face and placebo on the other. The subjects received three treatments two weeks apart. The follow-up and
evaluation period was completed four months after each subject’s last injection. In March 2009, we disclosed certain trial data results, which included
statistically significant efficacy results for the treatment of moderate to severe acne scars. Compilation of safety data and data related to the validation of the
study photo guide assessment scale discussed below is ongoing and is also subject to additional financing.

In connection with this acne scar program, we developed a photo guide for use in the evaluators’ assessment of acne study subjects. We had originally
designed the acne scar clinical program as two randomized, double-blind, Phase III, placebo-controlled trials. However, our evaluator assessment scale and
photo guide have not previously been utilized in a clinical trial. In November 2007, the FDA recommended that we consider conducting a Phase II study in
order to address certain study issues, including additional validation related to our evaluator assessment scale. As such, we modified our clinical plans to
initiate a single Phase II trial. This Phase II study, was powered to demonstrate efficacy, and has allowed for a closer assessment of the evaluator assessment
scale and photo guide that is ongoing. We submitted on August 9, 2010, a clinical study report for its Phase II study of azficel-T for the treatment of moderate
to severe acne scars to the FDA. We are currently in discussions with the FDA concerning the validation of the evaluator assessment scale and agreeing the
path forward for the acne program. These steps will be subject to obtaining sufficient financial resources.
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Full Face Rejuvenation—Phase II Open Label Trial: In March 2007, we commenced an open label (unblinded) trial of approximately 50 subjects.
Injections of azficel-T began to be administered in July 2007. This trial was designed to further evaluate the safety and use of azficel-T to treat fine lines and
wrinkles for the full face. Five investigators across the United States participated in this trial. The subjects received two series of injections approximately one
month apart. In late December 2007, all 45 remaining subjects completed injections. The subjects were followed for twelve months following each subject’s last
injection. Data results related to this trial were disclosed in August 2008, which included top line positive efficacy results related to this open label Phase II
trial.

Additional safety data from this trial, collected through telephone calls placed to participating subjects twelve months from the date of their final study
treatment, were submitted to the FDA on November 1, 2009. No changes to the safety profile of azficel-T were identified during our review of this data.

Facial cream: We are developing a personalized topical cosmetic product consisting of a cream vehicle blended with the conditioned media extract from
the cell culture of a customer’s own fibroblasts. The conditioned media used to promote fibroblast expansion contains protein extracts from the fibroblast cells
produced in vitro. This media is collected from cell culture during routine feed and passage for use in formulation of the cosmetic product. Final formulation
and distribution will be performed at Fibrocell’s Exton, PA manufacturing facility. At present, we are conducting characterization and safety testing in
anticipation of launch in the third quarter, 2012.

Therapeutic Development Programs
Restrictive Burn Scars—Phase II Trial: In January 2007, the Predecessor Company met with the FDA to discuss our clinical program for the use of

azficel-T for restrictive burn scar patients. This Phase II trial would evaluate the use of azficel-T to improve range of motion, function and flexibility, among
other parameters, in existing restrictive burn scars in approximately 20-30 patients. However, the Company delayed the screening and enrollment in this trial
until such time as we raise sufficient additional financing and gather additional data regarding the burn scar market. The Company is currently finalizing a
Phase II protocol for submission to the FDA. We expect this protocol to be finalized and submitted to the FDA in Q2 of 2012. The development of this program
will be subject to obtaining sufficient financial resources.

Agera Skincare Systems
We market and sell a skin care product line through our majority-owned subsidiary, Agera Laboratories, Inc., which was acquired in August 2006.

Agera offers a complete line of skincare systems based on a wide array of proprietary formulations, trademarks and nano-peptide technology. These skincare
products can be packaged to offer anti-aging, anti-pigmentary and acne treatment systems. Agera primarily markets its products in both the United States and
Europe (primarily the United Kingdom).

Our Target Market Opportunities
Aesthetic Market Opportunity

LAVIV, is the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy approved by the FDA for the improvement of the appearance of moderate to severe
nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults and is, thus, directed primarily at the aesthetic market. Aesthetic procedures have traditionally been performed by
dermatologists, plastic surgeons and other cosmetic surgeons. According to the American Society for Aesthetic Plastic Surgery, or ASAPS, the total market for
non-surgical cosmetic procedures was approximately $4.1 billion in 2010. We believe the aesthetic procedure market is driven by:
 

 •  aging of the “baby boomer” population, which currently includes ages approximately 47 to 65;
 

 •  the desire of many individuals to improve their appearance;
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•  impact of managed care and reimbursement policies on physician economics, which has motivated physicians to establish or expand the menu of

elective, private-pay aesthetic procedures that they offer; and
 

 •  broadening base of the practitioners performing cosmetic procedures beyond dermatologists and plastic surgeons to non-traditional providers.

According to the ASAPS, 9.3 million surgical and non-surgical cosmetic procedures were performed in 2010, as compared to 10.0 million in 2009. Also
according to the ASAPS, approximately 7.7 million and 8.5 million non-surgical procedures were performed in 2010 and 2009, respectively. We believe that
the concept of non-surgical cosmetic procedures involving injectable materials has become more mainstream and accepted. According to the ASAPS, the
following table shows the top five non-surgical cosmetic procedures performed in 2010:
 

Procedure   Number  
Botulinum toxin type A    2,437,165  
Hyaluronic acid    1,315,121  
Laser hair removal    936,270  
Laser skin resurfacing    562,706  
Chemical peel    493,896  

In 2010, procedures among the 35 to 50 year old age group made up approximately 44% of all cosmetic procedures. The 51 to 64 year old age group
made up 28% of all cosmetic procedures in 2010, while the 19 to 34 year old age group made up 20% of cosmetic procedures in 2010. The Botulinum toxin
type A injection was the most popular treatment of the nonsurgical procedures among the 35 to 50 year old age group.

Therapeutic Market Opportunities
In addition to the aesthetic market, we believe there are opportunities for our Fibrocell Therapy to treat certain medical conditions such as acne scars,

restrictive burn scars and tissue loss due to papillary recession. Presently, we are studying therapeutic applications of our technology for acne scars. We are
not aware of other autologous cell-based treatments for any of these therapeutic applications.

Sales and Marketing
In June 2011, our lead product, LAVIV, became the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy approved by the FDA for the improvement of the

appearance of moderate to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults. We formally launched LAVIV in the United States in the fourth quarter of 2011. Our
strategy is to launch LAVIV directly via our own sales force in the United States. As of the filing date of this 10-K, we have seven sales representatives
covering the east and west coast and key metropolitan cities. We also have four customer service representatives in Exton, PA supporting our field sales
representatives. Our Agera skincare products are primarily sold directly to our established distributors and salons, with historically and recently very little
focus on marketing efforts. We continue to attempt to identify additional third party distributors for our Agera product line.

Intellectual Property
We believe that patents, trademarks, copyrights, proprietary formulations (related to our Agera skincare products) and other proprietary rights are

important to our business. We also rely on trade secrets, know-how and continuing technological innovations to develop and maintain our competitive position.
We seek to protect our intellectual property rights by a variety of means, including obtaining patents, maintaining trade secrets and proprietary know-how, and
technological innovation to operate without infringing on the proprietary rights of others and to prevent others from infringing on our proprietary rights. Our
policy is to seek to protect our proprietary position by, among other methods, actively seeking patent protection in the United States and certain foreign
countries.

As of December 31, 2011, we had 10 issued U.S. patents, 3 pending U.S. patent applications, 30 granted foreign patents and 3 pending international
patent applications. Our issued patents and patent applications primarily cover the method of using autologous cell fibroblasts for the repair of skin and soft
tissue defects and the use of autologous fibroblast cells for tissue regeneration. We are in the process of pursuing several other patent applications.
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In August 2006, we acquired 57% of the common stock of Agera Laboratories. Agera has a number of trade names, trademarks, exclusive proprietary
rights to product formulations and specified peptides that are used in the Agera skincare products.

Our success depends in part on our ability to maintain our proprietary position through effective patent claims and their enforcement against our
competitors, and through the protection of our trade secrets. Although we believe our patents and patent applications provide a competitive advantage, the
patent positions of companies like ours are generally uncertain and involve complex legal and factual questions. We do not know whether any of our patent
applications or those patent applications which we have acquired will result in the issuance of any patents. Our issued patents, those that may be issued in the
future or those acquired by us, may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented, and the rights granted under any issued patent may not provide us with
proprietary protection or competitive advantages against competitors with similar technology. In particular, we do not know if competitors will be able to design
variations on our treatment methods to circumvent our current and anticipated patent claims. Furthermore, competitors may independently develop similar
technologies or duplicate any technology developed by us. Because of the extensive time required for the development, testing and regulatory review of a
potential product, it is possible that, before any of our products can be commercialized or marketed, any related patent claim may expire or remain in force for
only a short period following commercialization, thereby reducing the advantage of the patent.

We also rely upon trade secrets, confidentiality agreements, proprietary know-how and continuing technological innovation to remain competitive,
especially where we do not believe patent protection is appropriate or obtainable. We continue to seek ways to protect our proprietary technology and trade
secrets, including entering into confidentiality or license agreements with our employees and consultants, and controlling access to and distribution of our
technologies and other proprietary information. While we use these and other reasonable security measures to protect our trade secrets, our employees or
consultants may unintentionally or willfully disclose our proprietary information to competitors.

Our commercial success will depend in part on our ability to operate without infringing upon the patents and proprietary rights of third parties. It is
uncertain whether the issuance of any third party patents would require us to alter our products or technology, obtain licenses or cease certain activities. Our
failure to obtain a license to technology that we may require to discover, develop or commercialize our future products may have a material adverse impact on
us. One or more third-party patents or patent applications may conflict with patent applications to which we have rights. Any such conflict may substantially
reduce the coverage of any rights that may issue from the patent applications to which we have rights. If third parties prepare and file patent applications in the
United States that also claim technology to which we have rights, we may have to participate in interference proceedings in the United States Patent and
Trademark Office to determine priority of invention.

We have collaborated and may collaborate in the future with other entities on research, development and commercialization activities. Disputes may arise
about inventorship and corresponding rights in know-how and inventions resulting from the joint creation or use of intellectual property by us and our
subsidiaries, collaborators, partners, licensors and consultants. As a result, we may not be able to maintain our proprietary position.

Competition
The pharmaceutical and dermal aesthetics industries are characterized by intense competition, rapid product development and technological change.

Competition is intense among manufacturers of prescription pharmaceuticals and dermal injection products. Our core products are considered dermal injection
products.

Now that our lead product, LAVIV, is approved by the FDA for the improvement of the appearance of moderate to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in
adults, we will compete with a variety of companies in the dermatology and plastic surgery markets, many of which offer substantially different treatments
for similar problems. These include silicone injections, laser procedures, facial surgical procedures, such as facelifts and eyelid surgeries, fat injections,
dermabrasion, collagen, allogenic cell therapies, hyaluronic acid injections and Botulinum toxin injections, and other dermal fillers. Indirect competition comes
from facial care treatment products. Items catering to the growing demand for therapeutic skin care products include facial scrubs, anti-aging treatments,
tonics, astringents and skin-restoration formulas. However, we believe that LAVIV, a “first to market” autologous cellular technology, can complement other
modalities of treatment and represent a significant additional market opportunity.
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Many of our competitors are large, well-established pharmaceutical, chemical, cosmetic or health care companies with considerably greater financial,
marketing, sales and technical resources than those available to us. Additionally, many of our present and potential competitors have research and
development capabilities that may allow them to develop new or improved products that may compete with our product lines. Our products could be rendered
obsolete or made uneconomical by the development of new products to treat the conditions addressed by our products, technological advances affecting the cost
of production, or marketing or pricing actions by one or more of our competitors. Our facial aesthetics product may compete for a share of the existing market
with numerous products and/or technologies that have become relatively accepted treatments recommended or prescribed by dermatologists and administered
by plastic surgeons and aesthetic dermatologists.

Our ability to commercialize LAVIV and our other potential products and compete effectively will depend on, amongst other things, the following:
 

 •  the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts;
 

 •  the willingness of physicians to adopt an autologous cellular therapy;
 

 
•  the perception by physicians and other members of the health care community of the safety, efficacy and benefits of LAVIV or our other products

compared to those of competing products or therapies;
 

 
•  our ability to manufacture LAVIV and other products we may develop on a commercial scale, which will require us, in the short-term, to add

personnel to our current manufacturing operation and, in the long-term, to build-out our current manufacturing facility;
 

 •  the price of LAVIV and that of other products we may develop and commercialize relative to competing products;
 

 •  our ability to advance our other product candidates through clinical trials and through the FDA approval process;
 

 •  our ability to recruit, train, retain, manage and motivate our employees; and
 

 
•  our ability to sustain our commercial scale infrastructure, including our manufacturing facilities, development of a distribution network,

information technology infrastructure and configure existing operational, manufacturing and financial systems and other operational and financial
systems necessary to support our increased scale as we grow our commercial organization.

The field for therapeutic treatments or tissue regeneration for use in wound healing is rapidly evolving. A number of companies are either developing or
selling therapies involving stem cells, human-based, animal-based or synthetic tissue products. If approved as a therapy for restrictive burn scars, vocal
scarring or periodontal disease, our product candidates would or may compete with synthetic, human or animal derived cell or tissue products marketed by
companies larger and better capitalized than us.

The market for skincare products is quite competitive with low barriers to entry.

Government Regulation

Our Fibrocell Therapy technologies are subject to extensive government regulation, principally by the FDA and state and local authorities in the United
States and by comparable agencies in foreign countries. Governmental authorities in the United States extensively regulate the pre-clinical and clinical testing,
safety, efficacy, research, development, manufacturing, labeling, storage, record-keeping, advertising, promotion, import, export, marketing and distribution,
among other things, of pharmaceutical products under various federal laws including the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FFDCA, the Public Health
Service Act, or PHSA, and under comparable laws by the states and in most foreign countries.
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Domestic Regulation
In the United States, the FDA, under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (“FFDCA”), the Public Health Service Act (“PHSA”), and other federal

statutes and regulations, subjects pharmaceutical and biologic products to rigorous review. If we do not comply with applicable requirements, we may be
fined, the government may refuse to approve our marketing applications or allow us to manufacture or market our products or product candidates, and we
may be criminally prosecuted. The FDA also has the authority to discontinue or suspend manufacture or distribution, require a product withdrawal or recall
or revoke previously granted marketing authorizations if we fail to comply with regulatory standards or if we encounter problems during commercial
operations.

FDA Approval Process
To obtain approval of a new product from the FDA, we must, among other requirements, submit data demonstrating the product’s safety and efficacy

as well as detailed information on the manufacture and composition of the product candidate. In most cases, this entails extensive laboratory tests and pre-
clinical and clinical trials. This testing and the preparation of necessary applications and processing of those applications by the FDA are expensive and
typically take many years to complete. The FDA may deny our applications or may not act quickly or favorably in reviewing these applications, and we may
encounter significant difficulties or costs in our efforts to obtain FDA approvals that could delay or preclude us from marketing any products we may
develop. The FDA also may require post-marketing testing and surveillance to monitor the effects of approved products or place conditions on any approvals
that could restrict the commercial applications of these products. Regulatory authorities may withdraw product approvals if we fail to comply with regulatory
standards or if we encounter problems following initial marketing. With respect to patented products or technologies, delays imposed by the governmental
approval process may materially reduce the period during which we will have the exclusive right to exploit the products or technologies.

The FDA does not apply a single regulatory scheme to human tissues and the products derived from human tissue. On a product-by-product basis, the
FDA may regulate such products as drugs, biologics, or medical devices, in addition to regulating them as human cells, tissues, or cellular or tissue-based
products (“HCT/Ps”), depending on whether or not the particular product triggers any of an enumerated list of regulatory factors. A fundamental difference in
the treatment of products under these classifications is that the FDA generally permits HCT/Ps that do not trigger any of those regulatory factors to be
commercially distributed without marketing approval. In contrast, products that trigger those factors, such as if they are more than minimally manipulated
when processed or manufactured, are regulated as drugs, biologics, or medical devices and require FDA approval. We have determined that our Fibrocell
Therapy (TM) triggers regulatory factors that make it a biologic, in addition to an HCT/P, and consequently, we must obtain approval from FDA before
marketing Fibrocell Therapy (TM) and must also satisfy all regulatory requirements for HCT/Ps.

The process required by the FDA before a new drug or biologic may be marketed in the United States generally involves the following:
 

 •  completion of pre-clinical laboratory tests or trials and formulation studies;
 

 
•  submission to the FDA of an Investigational New Drug (“IND”) for a new drug or biologic, which must become effective before human clinical

trials may begin;
 

 
•  performance of adequate and well-controlled human clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the proposed drug or biologic for its

intended use;
 

 •  detailed information on product characterization and manufacturing process; and
 

 •  submission and approval of a New Drug Application, or NDA, for a drug, or a Biologics License Application, or BLA, for a biologic.

Pre-clinical tests include laboratory evaluation of product chemistry formulation and stability, as well as animal and other studies to evaluate toxicity. In
view of the autologous nature of our product candidates and our prior clinical experience with our product candidates, we concluded that it was reasonably
safe to initiate clinical trials
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without pre-clinical studies and that the clinical trials would be adequate to further assess both the safety and efficacy of our product candidates. Under FDA
regulations, the results of any pre-clinical testing, together with manufacturing information and analytical data, are submitted to the FDA as part of an IND
application. The FDA requires a 30-day waiting period after the filing of each IND application before clinical trials may begin, in order to ensure that human
research subjects will not be exposed to unreasonable health risks. At any time during this 30-day period or at any time thereafter, the FDA may halt proposed
or ongoing clinical trials, or may authorize trials only on specified terms. The IND application process may become extremely costly and substantially delay
development of our products. Moreover, positive results of pre-clinical tests will not necessarily indicate positive results in clinical trials.

The sponsor typically conducts human clinical trials in three sequential phases, which may overlap. These phases generally include the following:
 

 
•  Phase I: The product is usually first introduced into healthy humans or, on occasion, into patients, and is tested for safety, dosage tolerance,

absorption, distribution, excretion and metabolism.
 

 •  Phase II: The product is introduced into a limited subject population to:
 

 •  assess its efficacy in specific, targeted indications;
 

 •  assess dosage tolerance and optimal dosage; and
 

 •  identify possible adverse effects and safety risks.
 

 
•  Phase III: These are commonly referred to as pivotal studies. If a product is found to have an acceptable safety profile and to be potentially

effective in Phase II clinical trials, new clinical trials will be initiated to further demonstrate clinical efficacy, optimal dosage and safety within an
expanded and diverse subject population at geographically-dispersed clinical study sites.

 

 
•  If the FDA does ultimately approve the product, it may require post-marketing testing, including potentially expensive Phase IV studies, to

confirm or further evaluate its safety and effectiveness.

Before proceeding with a study, sponsors may seek a written agreement from the FDA regarding the design, size, and conduct of a clinical trial. This is
known as a Special Protocol Assessment, or SPA. Among other things, SPAs can cover clinical studies for pivotal trials whose data will form the primary
basis to establish a product’s efficacy. SPAs thus help establish up-front agreement with the FDA about the adequacy of a clinical trial design to support a
regulatory approval, but the agreement is not binding if new circumstances arise. Even if the FDA agrees to an SPA, the agreement may be changed by the
sponsor or the FDA on written agreement by both parties, or a senior FDA official determines that a substantial scientific issue essential to determining the
safety or effectiveness of the product was identified after the testing began. There is no guarantee that a study will ultimately be adequate to support an
approval even if the study is subject to an SPA. The FDA retains significant latitude and discretion in interpreting the terms of the SPA agreement and the data
and results from any study that is the subject of the SPA agreement.

Clinical trials must meet requirements for Institutional Review Board, or IRB, oversight, patient informed consent and the FDA’s Good Clinical
Practices. Prior to commencement of each clinical trial, the sponsor must submit to the FDA a clinical plan, or protocol, accompanied by the approval of the
committee responsible for overseeing clinical trials at the clinical trial sites. The FDA or the IRB at each institution at which a clinical trial is being performed
may order the temporary or permanent discontinuation of a clinical trial at any time if it believes that the clinical trial is not being conducted in accordance
with FDA requirements or presents an unacceptable risk to the clinical trial subjects. Data safety monitoring committees, who monitor certain studies to protect
the welfare of study subjects, may also require that a clinical study be discontinued or modified.

The sponsor must submit to the FDA the results of the pre-clinical and clinical trials, together with, among other things, detailed information on the
manufacturing and composition of the product, and proposed labeling, in the form of an NDA, or, in the case of a biologic, a BLA. The applicant must also
submit with the NDA or BLA a
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substantial user fee payment, unless a waiver or reduction applies. On February 17, 2009, the U.S. Small Business Administration issued a letter formally
determining that we are a small business and therefore qualify for the Small Business Exception to the Prescription Drug and User fee Act of 1992
(21 USC § 379h(b)(2)) related to our BLA submission for the nasolabial fold wrinkles indication. For fiscal year 2009, this fee was $1,247,200 for
companies that did not receive an exception. The FDA has advised us it is regulating our Fibrocell Therapy as a biologic. Therefore, we expect to submit BLAs
to obtain approval of our product candidates. In some cases, we may be able to expand the indications in an approved BLA through a Prior Approval
Supplement. Each NDA or BLA submitted for FDA approval is usually reviewed for administrative completeness and reviewability within 45 to 60 days
following submission of the application. If deemed complete, the FDA will “file” the NDA or BLA, thereby triggering substantive review of the application.
The FDA can refuse to file any NDA or BLA that it deems incomplete or not properly reviewable. Once the submission has been accepted for filing, the FDA
will review the application and will usually respond to the applicant in accordance with performance goals the FDA has established for the review of NDAs
and BLAs—six months from the receipt of the application for priority applications and ten months for regular applications. The review process is often
significantly extended by FDA requests for additional information, preclinical or clinical studies, clarification, or a risk evaluation and mitigation strategy, or
REMS, or by changes to the application submitted by the applicant in the form of amendments.

It is possible that our product candidates will not successfully proceed through this approval process or that the FDA will not approve them in any
specific period of time, or at all. The FDA may deny or delay approval of applications that do not meet applicable regulatory criteria, or if the FDA determines
that the clinical data do not adequately establish the safety and efficacy of the product. Satisfaction of FDA pre-market approval requirements for a new
biologic is a process that may take a number of years and the actual time required may vary substantially based upon the type, complexity and novelty of the
product or disease. The FDA reviews these applications and, when and if it decides that adequate data are available to show that the product is both safe and
effective and that other applicable requirements have been met, approves the drug or biologic for marketing. Government regulation may delay or prevent
marketing of potential products for a considerable period of time and impose costly procedures upon our activities. Success in early stage clinical trials does
not assure success in later stage clinical trials. Data obtained from clinical activities is not always conclusive and may be susceptible to varying interpretations
that could delay, limit or prevent regulatory approval. Upon approval, a product candidate may be marketed only for those indications approved in the BLA
or NDA and may be subject to labeling and promotional requirements or limitations, including warnings, precautions, contraindications and use limitations,
which could materially impact profitability. Once approved, the FDA may withdraw the product approval if compliance with pre- and post-market regulatory
standards is not maintained or if safety, efficacy or other problems occur after the product reaches the marketplace.

The FDA may, during its review of an NDA or BLA, ask for additional test data. If the FDA does ultimately approve the product, it may require post-
marketing testing, including potentially expensive Phase IV studies, to confirm or otherwise further evaluate the safety and effectiveness of the product. The
FDA also may require, as a condition to approval or continued marketing of a drug a REMS, if deemed necessary to manage a known or potential serious risk
associated with the product. REMS can include additional educational materials for healthcare professionals and patients such as Medication Guides and
Patient Package Inserts, a plan for communicating information to healthcare professionals, and restricted distribution of the product. In addition, the FDA
may, in some circumstances, impose restrictions on the use of the product, which may be difficult and expensive to administer and may require prior
approval of promotional materials. Following approval, FDA may require labeling changes or impose new post-approval study, risk management, or
distribution restriction requirements.

Ongoing FDA Requirements
Before approving an NDA or BLA, the FDA usually will inspect the facilities at which the product is manufactured and will not approve the product

unless the manufacturing facilities are in compliance with the FDA’s current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMP, requirements which govern the
manufacture, holding and distribution of a product. Manufacturers of human cellular or tissue-based biologics also must comply with the FDA’s Good Tissue
Practices, as applicable, and the general biological product standards. Following approval, the FDA periodically inspects drug and biologic manufacturing
facilities to ensure continued compliance with the cGMP requirements. Manufacturers must continue to expend time, money and effort in the areas of
production, quality control, record keeping and reporting to ensure compliance with those requirements. Failure to comply with these requirements subjects the
manufacturer to possible legal or regulatory action, such as suspension of manufacturing, seizure of
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product, voluntary recall of product, withdrawal of marketing approval or civil or criminal penalties. Adverse experiences with the product must be reported to
the FDA and could result in the imposition of marketing restrictions through labeling changes or market removal. Product approvals may be withdrawn if
compliance with regulatory requirements is not maintained or if problems concerning safety or efficacy of the product occur following approval.

The labeling, advertising, promotion, marketing and distribution of a drug or biologic product also must be in compliance with FDA and Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC”) requirements which include, among others, standards and regulations for direct-to-consumer advertising, industry-sponsored scientific
and educational activities, and promotional activities involving the internet. In general, all product promotion must be consistent with the FDA approval for
such product, contain a balanced presentation of information on the product’s uses and benefits and important safety information and limitations on use, and
otherwise not be false or misleading. The FDA and FTC have very broad enforcement authority, and failure to abide by these regulations can result in
penalties, including the issuance of a Warning Letter directing a company to correct deviations from regulatory standards and enforcement actions that can
include seizures, injunctions and criminal prosecution.

Manufacturers are also subject to various laws and regulations governing laboratory practices, the experimental use of animals and the use and disposal
of hazardous or potentially hazardous substances in connection with their research. In each of the above areas, the FDA has broad regulatory and enforcement
powers, including the ability to levy fines and civil penalties, suspend or delay issuance of approvals, seize or recall products and deny or withdraw
approvals.

Post-Marketing Obligations
The Food and Drug Administration Amendments Act of 2007 expanded FDA authority over drug products after approval. All approved drug products

are subject to continuing regulation by the FDA, including record-keeping requirements, reporting of adverse experiences with the product, sampling and
distribution requirements, notifying the FDA and gaining its approval of certain manufacturing or labeling changes, complying with certain electronic records
and signature requirements, submitting periodic reports to the FDA, maintaining and providing updated safety and efficacy information to the FDA, and
complying with FDA promotion and advertising requirements. Failure to comply with the statutory and regulatory requirements can subject a manufacturer to
possible legal or regulatory action, such as warning letters, suspension of manufacturing, seizure of product, injunctive action, criminal prosecution, or civil
penalties.

The FDA may require post-marketing studies or clinical trials to develop additional information regarding the safety of a product. These studies or trials
may involve continued testing of a product and development of data, including clinical data, about the product’s effects in various populations and any side
effects associated with long-term use. The FDA may require post-marketing studies or trials to investigate known serious risks or signals of serious risks or
identify unexpected serious risks and may require periodic status reports if new safety information develops. Failure to conduct these studies in a timely
manner may result in substantial civil fines.

Drug and biologics manufacturers and their subcontractors are required to register their establishments with the FDA and certain state agencies, and to
list their products with the FDA. The FDA periodically inspects manufacturing facilities in the United States and abroad in order to assure compliance with
the applicable cGMP regulations and other requirements. Facilities also are subject to inspections by other federal, foreign, state or local agencies. In complying
with the cGMP regulations, manufacturers must continue to assure that the product meets applicable specifications, regulations and other post-marketing
requirements. We must ensure that any third-party manufacturers continue to ensure full compliance with all applicable regulations and requirements. Failure
to comply with these requirements subjects the manufacturer to possible legal or regulatory action, such as suspension of manufacturing or recall or seizure of
product.

Also, newly discovered or developed safety or efficacy data may require changes to a product’s approved labeling, including the addition of new
warnings and contraindications, additional pre-clinical or clinical studies, or even in some instances, revocation or withdrawal of the approval. Violations of
regulatory requirements at any stage, including after approval, may result in various adverse consequences, including the FDA’s withdrawal of an approved
product from the market, other voluntary or FDA-initiated action that could delay or restrict further marketing, and the imposition of civil fines and criminal
penalties against the manufacturer and BLA holder. In
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addition, later discovery of previously unknown problems may result in restrictions on the product, manufacturer or BLA holder, including withdrawal of
the product from the market. Furthermore, new government requirements may be established that could delay or prevent regulatory approval of our products
under development, or affect the conditions under which approved products are marketed.

HIPAA Requirements
Other federal legislation may affect our ability to obtain certain health information in conjunction with our research activities. The Health Insurance

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, mandates, among other things, the adoption of standards designed to safeguard the privacy and
security of individually identifiable health information. In relevant part, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, or HHS, has released two rules
to date mandating the use of new standards with respect to such health information. The first rule imposes new standards relating to the privacy of
individually identifiable health information. These standards restrict the manner and circumstances under which covered entities may use and disclose
protected health information so as to protect the privacy of that information. The second rule released by HHS establishes minimum standards for the security
of electronic health information. While we do not believe we are directly regulated as a covered entity under HIPAA, the HIPAA standards impose requirements
on covered entities conducting research activities regarding the use and disclosure of individually identifiable health information collected in the course of
conducting the research. As a result, unless they meet these HIPAA requirements, covered entities conducting clinical trials for us may not be able to share with
us any results from clinical trials that include such health information.

Other U.S. Regulatory Requirements
In the United States, the research, manufacturing, distribution, sale, and promotion of drug and biological products are potentially subject to regulation

by various federal, state and local authorities in addition to the FDA, including the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (formerly the Health Care
Financing Administration), other divisions of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (e.g., the Office of Inspector General), the U.S. Department
of Justice and individual U.S. Attorney offices within the Department of Justice, and state and local governments. For example, sales, marketing and
scientific/educational grant programs must comply with the anti-fraud and abuse provisions of the Social Security Act, the False Claims Act, and similar state
laws, each as amended. Pricing and rebate programs must comply with the Medicaid rebate requirements of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990
and the Veterans Health Care Act of 1992, each as amended. If products are made available to authorized users of the Federal Supply Schedule of the General
Services Administration, additional laws and requirements apply. All of these activities are also potentially subject to federal and state consumer protection,
unfair competition, and other laws.

International Regulation
The regulation of our product candidates outside of the United States varies by country. Certain countries regulate human tissue products as a

pharmaceutical product, which would require us to make extensive filings and obtain regulatory approvals before selling our product candidates. Certain other
countries classify our product candidates as human tissue for transplantation but may restrict its import or sale. Other countries have no application
regulations regarding the import or sale of products similar to our product candidates, creating uncertainty as to what standards we may be required to meet.

Manufacturing
We currently have one operational manufacturing facility located in Exton, Pennsylvania. All component parts used in our Exton, Pennsylvania

manufacturing process are readily available with short lead times, and all machinery is maintained and calibrated. We believe we have made improvements in
our manufacturing processes, and we expect to continue such efforts in the future.

We currently have limited manufacturing capacity, although we have sufficient manufacturing capacity to fill the orders for LAVIV we have received
since the launch of the product during the fourth quarter of 2011. To the extent we are successful in increasing the demand for LAVIV, we will need to add
manufacturing capacity, which will require us, in the short-term, to add personnel to our current manufacturing operation and, in the long-term, to build-out
our current manufacturing facility.
 

14



Table of Contents

Our Agera products are manufactured by a third-party contract manufacturer under a contract manufacturing agreement. The agreement is effective
through July 2014.

Research and Development
In addition to our clinical development activities, our research and development activities include improving our manufacturing processes and reducing

manufacturing costs. We expense research and development costs as they are incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred research
and development expenses of $7.2 million and $5.5 million, respectively.

Employees
As of March 26, 2012, we employed 59 people on a full-time basis and one person on a part-time basis, all located in the United States, and one

employee, our Chief Operating and Chief Financial Officer, who is based in Ireland and works in both Ireland and the United States. We also have 9 people
working on a contract basis in our manufacturing facility. We also employ one full-time and one part-time Agera employees. None of our employees are covered
by a collective bargaining agreement, and we consider our relationship with our employees to be good. We also employ consultants and temporary labor on an
as needed basis to supplement existing staff.

Segment Information

Financial information concerning the Company’s business segments and geographic areas of operation is included in Note 15 in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Form 10-K.

Corporate History
On August 10, 2001, our company, then known as American Financial Holding, Inc., acquired Isolagen Technologies through the merger of our wholly-

owned subsidiary, Isolagen Acquisition Corp., and an affiliated entity, Gemini IX, Inc., with and into Isolagen Technologies. As a result of the merger,
Isolagen Technologies became our wholly owned subsidiary. On November 13, 2001, we changed our name to Isolagen, Inc. On August 27, 2009, the United
States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware in Wilmington entered an order, or Confirmation Order, confirming the Joint First Amended Plan of
Reorganization dated July 30, 2009, as supplemented by the Plan Supplement dated August 21, 2009, or the Plan, of Isolagen, Inc. and Isolagen’s wholly
owned subsidiary, Isolagen Technologies, Inc. The effective date of the Plan was September 3, 2009. Isolagen, Inc. and Isolagen Technologies, Inc. were
subsequently renamed Fibrocell Science, Inc. and Fibrocell Technologies, Inc. respectively.

Corporate Website
Our Internet website address is http://www.fibrocellscience.com. Our filings on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q, Form 3, Form 4, Form 5, Form 8-K and any

and all amendments thereto are available free of charge through this internet website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are filed or furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. They are also available through the SEC at http://www.sec.gov/edgar/searchedgar/companysearch.html .
The information contained in our website does not constitute part of this Form 10-K.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
Investing in our company involves a high degree of risk. Before investing in our company you should carefully consider the following risks,
together with the financial and other information contained in this Form 10-K. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected. In that case, the trading price of our common stock would
likely decline and you may lose all or a part of your investment.

We could fail to remain a going concern. We will need to raise substantial additional capital to fund our operations through commercialization of
our product candidates, and we do not have any commitments for that capital.
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There exists substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern. As of December 31, 2011 we had cash and cash equivalents of $10.8
million and working capital of $2.9 million.

As of March 26, 2012, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $4.7 million and our accounts payable and accrued expenses were
approximately $1.6 million. In addition, the Company has approximately $7.0 million of outstanding debt which is due in June 2012. Our current monthly
cash run-rate is approximately $2.2 million. We will be required to raise additional cash resources in the near future in order to fund future operations, or we
will likely cease operations. There is no guarantee that any such required financing will be available on terms satisfactory to us or available at all. These
matters create uncertainty relating to our ability to continue as a going concern.

We will need additional capital to achieve commercialization of our product candidates, expansion of our manufacturing capacity, development of our
clinical development program and to execute our business strategy, and if we are unsuccessful in raising additional capital we will be unable to achieve
commercialization of our product candidates or unable to fully execute our business strategy on a timely basis, if at all. If we raise additional capital through
the issuance of debt securities, the debt securities may be secured and any interest payments would reduce the amount of cash available to operate and grow
our business. If we raise additional capital through the issuance of equity securities, such issuances will likely cause dilution to our stockholders, particularly
if we are required to do so during periods when our common stock is trading at low price levels. If we file for bankruptcy, it is likely that our common stock
will become worthless, given that there currently exists approximately $7.0 million of debt as of March 26, 2012, which has a priority over common
shareholders. In addition, our Series D Preferred Stock is senior to our common stock, and would be given a liquidation preference prior to the common stock
in a bankruptcy event. Additionally, we do not know whether any financing, if obtained, will be adequate to meet our capital needs and to support our growth.
If adequate capital cannot be obtained on satisfactory terms, we may terminate or delay our efforts related to regulatory approval of one or more of our product
candidates, curtail or delay the implementation of manufacturing process improvements or delay the expansion of our sales and marketing capabilities, any of
which could cause our business to fail.

If we do not obtain additional funding, we will likely enter into bankruptcy and/or cease operations. Further, if we do raise additional cash resources in
the near future, it may be raised in contemplation of or in connection with bankruptcy. If we enter into bankruptcy, it is likely that our common stock and
common stock equivalents will become worthless and our creditors will receive significantly less than what is owed to them.

Our independent registered public accounting firm issued their report for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, which included an explanatory
paragraph for our uncertainty to continue as a going concern. If we became unable to continue as a going concern, we would have to liquidate our assets and we
may likely receive significantly less than the values at which they are carried on our consolidated financial statements. The inclusion of a going concern
explanatory paragraph in our independent registered public accounting firm’s audit opinion for the year ended December 31, 2011 may materially and
adversely affect our stock price and our ability to raise new capital.

We have significant risks relating to the commercialization of LAVIV including the following:

LAVIV is our only FDA-approved product. If we fail to achieve and sustain commercial success for LAVIV, our business will suffer, our future
prospects may be harmed and our stock price would likely decline.

On June 21, 2011, the FDA licensed our autologous cellular therapy product, LAVIV, as the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy, approved
by the FDA, for the improvement of the appearance of moderate to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults. Prior to the launch of LAVIV in October 2011, we
had never sold or marketed an autologous cellular product in the U.S. Unless we can successfully commercialize another product candidate or acquire the
right to market other approved products, we will continue to rely on LAVIV to generate substantially all of our revenue. Our ability to increase our revenues for
LAVIV will depend on, and may be limited by, a number of factors, including the following:
 

 •  acceptance of and ongoing satisfaction with LAVIV as the first in a new class of therapy in the United States;
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 •  our ability to develop and expand market share in the United States;
 

 •  successfully expanding and sustaining our manufacturing capacity to meet demand;
 

 •  whether physicians are willing to adopt LAVIV as part of their aesthetics treatment paradigm;
 

 
•  our ability to properly train a sufficient number of physicians to administer LAVIV, and whether or not the physicians correctly follow our

protocols; and
 
 •  the proper pricing of LAVIV relative to the market it serves.

If for any reason we became unable to continue selling or manufacturing LAVIV, our business would be seriously harmed and could fail.

If LAVIV were to become the subject of problems related to its efficacy, safety, or otherwise, our revenues from LAVIV could decrease.
LAVIV, in addition to any other of our potential product candidates that may be approved by the FDA, will be subject to continual review by the FDA,

and we cannot assure you that newly discovered or developed safety issues will not arise. With the use of any newly marketed drug by a wider patient
population, serious adverse events may occur from time to time that initially do not appear to relate to the drug itself. Any safety issues could cause us to
suspend or cease marketing of our approved products, cause us to modify how we market our approved products, subject us to substantial liabilities, and
adversely affect our revenues and financial condition. In the event of a withdrawal of LAVIV from the market, our revenues would decline significantly and
our business would be seriously harmed and could fail.

Adoption of LAVIV for the treatment of the appearance of moderate to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults may be slow or limited for a
variety of reasons including competing therapies, perceived difficulties in the treatment process and cost. If LAVIV is not successful in gaining
broad acceptance as a treatment option for nasolabial fold wrinkles, our business would be harmed.

The rate of adoption of LAVIV for nasolabial fold wrinkles will be dependent on several factors including educating and training physicians and their
offices on the patient treatment process with LAVIV and autologous cellular therapy generally. As a first in class therapy, LAVIV utilizes a unique treatment
approach, which can have associated challenges in practice for physicians. The logistics of the product, the injection technique required and the fact that the
product constitutes a patient’s own cells represent different challenges for physicians. In addition, the tight manufacturing and injection timelines required for
treatment with LAVIV will require physicians to adjust practice mechanics, which may result in delay in market adoption of LAVIV as a preferred therapy.

We are rapidly expanding our operations to support commercial launch of LAVIV, which has significantly increased our costs, and until we
achieve economies of scale, we will incur negative margins on sales of LAVIV.

We have and expect to continue to significantly increase our investment in commercial infrastructure. We will need to effectively manage the expansion of
our operations and facilities and continue to grow our infrastructure to commercialize LAVIV. We must effectively manage our supply chain, third-party
vendors and distribution network, all of which requires strict planning in order to meet production timelines for LAVIV. We continue to add manufacturing,
quality control, quality assurance, marketing and sales personnel, and personnel in all other areas of our operations, which strains our existing managerial,
operational, financial and other resources. As a result of the scaling of our manufacturing process and the limited orders we have received since the launch of
LAVIV in the fourth quarter of 2011, we are currently incurring negative margins on sales of LAVIV, and will continue to incur such margins until we are able
to generate significant sales volume. As discussed below, to accommodate increased sales, we will need to add manufacturing capacity, which will require us,
in the short-term, to add personnel to our current manufacturing operation and, in the long-term, to build-out our current manufacturing facility. In pursuing
expansion, we must continue to monitor quality and effective controls, or we risk possible delays in approval of the facilities by the FDA for commercial
manufacturing. Any delay in readiness of our expanded Exton facility could result in the loss of revenue from potential sales of LAVIV, and adversely impact
market acceptance for LAVIV. If we fail to manage the growth in our systems and personnel appropriately and successfully in order to achieve our
commercialization plans for LAVIV, our revenues could suffer and our business could be harmed.
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We have significant risks relating to the manufacturing and regulation of LAVIV and our other product candidates, including the following:
If we are able to increase orders for LAVIV, we will need to increase our manufacturing capacity, which will require significant expenditures and
regulatory approval.

We currently have limited manufacturing capacity, although we have sufficient manufacturing capacity to fill the orders for LAVIV we have received
since the launch of the product during the fourth quarter of 2011. To the extent we are successful in increasing the demand for LAVIV, we will need to add
manufacturing capacity, which will require us, in the short-term, to add personnel to our current manufacturing operation and, in the long-term, to build-out
our current manufacturing facility. Increasing manufacturing capacity will require additional expenditures, for which we will require external financing. In
addition, our ability to increase manufacturing capacity will be subject to additional FDA review.

We are subject to significant regulation with respect to the manufacturing of our products.
All of those involved in the preparation of a cellular therapy for clinical trials or commercial sale, including our existing supply contract manufacturers

and clinical trial investigators, are subject to extensive regulation by the FDA. Components of a finished therapeutic product approved for commercial sale or
used in late-stage clinical trials must be manufactured in accordance with current Good Manufacturing Practices. These regulations govern manufacturing
processes and procedures and the implementation and operation of quality systems to control and assure the quality of investigational products and products
approved for sale. Our facilities and quality systems and the facilities and quality systems of some or all of our third party contractors and suppliers must
pass inspection for compliance with the applicable regulations as a condition of FDA approval of our products. In addition, the FDA may, at any time, audit
or inspect a manufacturing facility involved with the preparation of LAVIV or our other potential products or the associated quality systems for compliance
with the regulations applicable to the activities being conducted. The FDA also may, at any time following approval of a product for sale, audit our
manufacturing facilities or those of our third party contractors. If any such inspection or audit identifies a failure to comply with applicable regulations or if a
violation of our product specifications or applicable regulation occurs independent of such an inspection or audit, we or the FDA may require remedial
measures that may be costly and/or time consuming for us or a third party to implement and that may include the temporary or permanent suspension of a
clinical trial or commercial sales, recalls, market withdrawals, seizures or the temporary or permanent closure of a facility. Any such remedial measures
imposed upon us or third parties with whom we contract could materially harm our business.

Manufacturing difficulties, disruptions or delays could limit supply of our products and limit our product sales.
Manufacturing biologic human therapeutic products is difficult, complex and highly regulated. We currently manufacture LAVIV at one facility in the

U.S. and we also plan to manufacture our product candidates in the same facility. Our ability to adequately and timely manufacture and supply our products
is dependent on the uninterrupted and efficient operation of our sole facility and those of our third-party suppliers, which may be impacted by:
 

 
•  availability or contamination of raw materials and components used in the manufacturing process, particularly those for which we have no other

source or supplier;
 

 •  capacity of our facility and those of our suppliers;
 

 •  the performance of our information technology systems;
 

 •  compliance with regulatory requirements;
 

 •  inclement weather and natural disasters;
 

 •  changes in forecasts of future demand for product components;
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 •  timing and actual number of production runs for product components;
 

 •  potential facility contamination by microorganisms or viruses;
 

 •  updating of manufacturing specifications; and
 

 •  product quality success rates and yields.

If the efficient manufacture and supply of our products is interrupted, we may experience delayed shipments or supply constraints. If we are at any time
unable to provide an uninterrupted supply of our products to patients, we may lose patients and physicians may elect to prescribe competing therapeutics
instead of our products, which could materially and adversely affect our product sales and results of operations.

Our manufacturing processes and those of our suppliers must undergo a potentially lengthy FDA approval process, as well as other regulatory approval
processes, and are subject to continued review by the FDA and other regulatory authorities. It is a multi-year process to build and license a new manufacturing
facility and it can take significant time to qualify and license a new supplier. In order to maintain supply, mitigate risks and to satisfy anticipated demand for
LAVIV, we must successfully implement manufacturing projects on schedule, since we currently do not have sufficient manufacturing capacity to supply
LAVIV if orders for LAVIV significantly increase.

If regulatory authorities determine that we or our suppliers or certain of our third-party service providers have violated regulations or if they restrict,
suspend or revoke our prior approvals, they could prohibit us from manufacturing our products or conducting clinical trials or selling our marketed products
until we or the affected third-party service providers comply, or indefinitely. Because our third-party service providers are subject to FDA and foreign
regulatory authorities, alternative qualified third-party service providers may not be available on a timely basis or at all. If we or our third-party service
providers cease or interrupt production or if our third-party service providers fail to supply materials, products or services to us, we may experience delayed
shipments, and supply constraints for our products.

We rely on a scheduling and product tracking system.
We have developed a tracking system for the intake of physician orders for LAVIV, to track product delivery, and to store patient-related data we obtain

for purposes of manufacturing LAVIV. We rely on this system in order to maintain the chain of identity for each patient-specific dose of LAVIV, and to ensure
timely delivery of product prior to expiration. If our system was to fail or be compromised, we could lose traceability of patient cells potentially resulting in
loss of revenue and our reputation could suffer. A loss of traceability could cause our business to be materially harmed and our results of operations would be
adversely impacted.

Our business, which depends on one facility, is vulnerable to natural disasters, telecommunication and information systems failures, terrorism
and similar problems, and we are not fully insured for losses caused by all of these incidents.

We currently conduct all our research, development and manufacturing operations in one facility located in Exton, Pennsylvania. As a result, all of the
commercial manufacturing of LAVIV for the U.S. market takes place at a single U.S. facility. If regulatory, manufacturing or other problems require us to
discontinue production at that facility, we will not be able to supply our product, which would adversely impact our business.

Our Exton facility could be damaged by fire, floods, power loss, telecommunication and information systems failures or similar events. Our insurance
policies have limited coverage levels for loss or damages in these events and may not adequately compensate us for any losses that may occur. In addition,
terrorist acts or acts of war may cause harm to our employees or damage our Exton facility. The potential for future terrorist attacks, the national and
international responses to terrorist attacks or perceived threats to national security, and other acts of war or hostility have created many economic and political
uncertainties that could adversely affect our business and results of operations in ways that we cannot predict, and could cause our stock price to fluctuate or
decline. We are uninsured for these types of losses.
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Obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals is complex, time consuming and expensive, and the outcomes are uncertain.
The process of obtaining FDA and other regulatory approvals is time consuming, expensive and difficult. Clinical trials are required and the marketing

and manufacturing of our product candidates are subject to rigorous testing procedures.

The commencement and completion of clinical trials for any of our product candidates could be delayed or prevented by a variety of factors, including:
 

 •  delays in obtaining regulatory approvals to commence a study;
 

 •  delays in identifying and reaching agreement on acceptable terms with prospective clinical trial sites;
 

 
•  delays or failures in obtaining approval of our clinical trial protocol from an institutional review board, or IRB, to conduct a clinical trial at a

prospective study site;
 

 •  delays in the enrollment of subjects;
 

 •  manufacturing difficulties;
 

 •  failure of our clinical trials and clinical investigators to be in compliance with the FDA’s Good Clinical Practices, or GCP;
 

 
•  failure of our third-party contract research organizations, clinical site organizations and other clinical trial managers, to satisfy their contractual

duties, comply with regulations or meet expected deadlines;
 

 •  lack of efficacy during clinical trials; or
 

 •  unforeseen safety issues.

We do not know whether our clinical trials will need to be restructured or will be completed on schedule, if at all, or whether they will provide data
necessary to support necessary regulatory approval. Significant delays in clinical trials will impede our ability to commercialize our product candidates and
generate revenue, and could significantly increase our development costs.

We utilize bovine-sourced materials to manufacture LAVIV and our product candidates. Future FDA regulations, as well as currently proposed
regulations, may require us to change the source of the bovine-sourced materials we use in our products or to cease using bovine-sourced materials. If we are
required to use alternative materials in our products, and in the event that such alternative materials are available to us, or if we choose to change the materials
used in our products in the future, we would need to validate the new manufacturing process and run comparability trials with the reformulated product,
which could delay our submission for regulatory approval.

Even if marketing approval from the FDA is received for one or more of our product candidates, the FDA may impose post-marketing requirements,
such as:
 

 
•  labeling and advertising requirements, restrictions or limitations, including the inclusion of warnings, precautions, contra-indications or use

limitations that could have a material impact on the future profitability of our product candidates;
 

 
•  testing and surveillance to further evaluate or monitor our future products and their continued compliance with regulatory standards and

requirements;
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 •  submitting products for inspection; or
 

 •  imposing a risk evaluation and mitigation strategy, or REMS, to ensure that the benefits of the drug outweigh the risks.

With respect to our LAVIV product, which was approved in June 2011, as part of our label the FDA required us to conduct a post-marketing study,
which we expect to commence in mid-2012 and complete in 2014.

Clinical trials may fail to demonstrate the safety or efficacy of our product candidates, which could prevent or significantly delay regulatory
approval and prevent us from raising additional financing.

Prior to receiving approval to commercialize any of our product candidates, we must demonstrate with substantial evidence from well-controlled clinical
trials, and to the satisfaction of the FDA and other regulatory authorities in the United States and abroad, that our product candidates are both safe and
effective. We will need to demonstrate our product candidates’ efficacy and monitor their safety throughout the process. We previously completed a pivotal
Phase III clinical trial related to our LAVIV. The success of prior pre-clinical or clinical trials does not ensure the success of these trials, which are being
conducted in populations with different racial and ethnic demographics than our previous trials. If our current trials or any future clinical trials are
unsuccessful, our business and reputation would be harmed and the price at which our stock trades could be adversely affected.

All of our product candidates are subject to the risks of failure inherent in the development of biotherapeutic products. The results of early-stage clinical
trials of our product candidates do not necessarily predict the results of later-stage clinical trials. Product candidates in later-stage clinical trials may fail to
demonstrate desired safety and efficacy traits despite having successfully progressed through initial clinical testing. Even if we believe the data collected from
clinical trials of our product candidates is promising, this data may not be sufficient to support approval by the FDA or any other U.S. or foreign regulatory
approval. Pre-clinical and clinical data can be interpreted in different ways. Accordingly, FDA officials could reach different conclusions in assessing such
data than we do, which could delay, limit or prevent regulatory approval. In addition, the FDA, other regulatory authorities, our Institutional Review Boards or
we, may suspend or terminate clinical trials at any time.

Unlike our Phase III nasolabial fold wrinkles trial, our Phase II Acne Scar trial is not subject to a SPA with the FDA. In addition, we have developed a
photo guide for use in the evaluators’ assessment of acne study subjects. Our evaluator assessment scale and photo guide have not been previously used in a
clinical trial. To obtain FDA approval with respect to the acne scar indication, we will require FDA concurrence with the use of our evaluator assessment scale
and photo guide.

Any failure or delay in completing clinical trials for our product candidates, or in receiving regulatory approval for the sale of any product candidates,
has the potential to materially harm our business, and may prevent us from raising necessary, additional financing that we may need in the future.

Other significant risk factors include the following:

Since our emergence from bankruptcy we have completed numerous equity financings of convertible securities, and it is likely that we will make
additional equity financings in the future, which may materially and adversely affect the price of our common stock. We have a significant
number of convertible securities that may result in significant dilution to our common stockholders.

Sales of substantial amounts of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that those sales may occur, could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline. We have used and it is likely that we will continue to use our common stock or securities convertible into or
exchangeable for our common stock to fund our working capital needs or to acquire technology, product rights or businesses, or for other purposes. If we issue
additional equity securities, particularly during times when our common stock is trading at relatively low price levels, the price of our common stock may be
materially and adversely affected.
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Since our emergence from bankruptcy we have completed numerous equity financings of convertible preferred stock and warrants. The conversion or
exercise of the preferred stock or warrants, as applicable, into common stock and the sale of such common stock into the market may cause the price of our
common stock to fall. Even if such sales do not occur, the market may anticipate such sales in the future, which may cause the price of our common stock to
fall.

Furthermore, our outstanding preferred stock has a mandatory conversion feature that we may trigger if the price of our common stock trades above
$1.00 per share for a period of 20 days. As of March 26, 2012, if such price occurs and if we trigger the mandatory conversion feature, we would be required
to issue in excess of 6 million shares of common stock. The issuance of these shares or the sale of these shares may materially reduce the price of our common
stock.

We have a significant number of warrants and convertible preferred stock outstanding that contain anti-dilution and price-protection provisions
that may result in the reduction of their exercise prices or conversion prices in the future.

Since October 2009, we have completed several offerings of convertible preferred stock and warrants. Many of these securities contain anti-dilution
provisions, which provisions require the lowering of the conversion price or exercise price, as applicable, to the purchase price of future offerings.
Furthermore, with respect to certain of the warrants issued in these offerings, if we complete an offering below the exercise price of such warrants, the number
of shares issuable under the warrants will be proportionately increased such that the aggregate exercise price payable after taking into account the decrease in
the exercise price, shall be equal to the aggregate exercise price prior to such adjustment. The conversion and exercise price of our convertible preferred stock
and warrants has been lowered in the past (with proportional increases in the number of shares underlying the warrants as described in the preceding sentence)
due to the completion of subsequent financings. If in the future we issue securities for less than the conversion or exercise price of the securities we issued in
these prior financings, we may be required to further reduce the relevant conversion or exercise prices, and the number of shares underlying the warrants may
be increased.

During the term that the warrants and preferred stock are outstanding, the holders of those securities are given the opportunity to profit from a rise in the
market price of our common stock. In addition, certain of the warrants are not redeemable by us. We may find it more difficult to raise additional equity
capital while these warrants or preferred stock are outstanding. At any time during which these warrants are likely to be exercised, we may be able to obtain
additional equity capital on more favorable terms from other sources.

We have yet to be profitable, we expect losses to increase from current levels and we will continue to experience significant negative cash flow as
we expand our operations, which may limit or delay our ability to become profitable.

We have incurred losses since our inception, have never generated significant revenue from commercial sales of our products, and have never been
profitable. We are focused on the commercialization of LAVIV and product development, and we have expended significant resources on the launch of LAVIV,
our clinical trials, personnel and research and development. We expect these costs to continue to rise in the future. We expect to continue to experience increasing
operating losses and negative cash flow as we expand our operations.

We expect to continue to incur significant additional costs and expenses related to:
 

 •  the commercialization of LAVIV;
 

 •  expansion of laboratory and manufacturing operations, including the hiring of manufacturing and quality control and assurance personnel;
 

 •  FDA clinical trials and regulatory approvals;
 

22



Table of Contents

 •  research and development;
 

 •  brand development;
 

 •  personnel costs;
 

 •  development of relationships with strategic business partners, including physicians who might use our future products; and
 

 •  interest expense and amortization of issuance costs related to our outstanding note payables.

If our product candidates fail in clinical trials or do not gain regulatory approval, if our product candidates do not achieve market acceptance, or if we
do not succeed in effectively and efficiently implementing manufacturing process and technology improvements to make our product commercially viable, we
will not be profitable. If we fail to become and remain profitable, or if we are unable to fund our continuing losses, our business may fail.

We will continue to experience operating losses and significant negative cash flow until we begin to generate significant revenue from LAVIV, which will
require a significant increase in our manufacturing capacity.

If physicians do not follow our established protocols, the efficacy and safety of our product candidates may be adversely affected.
We are dependent on physicians to follow our established protocols both as to the administration and the handling of our product candidates in

connection with our clinical trials, and we continue to be dependent on physicians to follow such protocols after our product candidates are commercialized.
The treatment protocol requires each physician to verify the patient’s name and date of birth with the patient and the patient records immediately prior to
injection. In the event more than one patient’s cells are delivered to a physician or we deliver the wrong patient’s cells to the physician, which has occurred in
the past, it is the physician’s obligation to follow the treatment protocol and assure that the patient is treated with the correct cells. If the physicians do not
follow our protocol, the efficacy and safety of our product candidates may be adversely affected.

As a result of our limited operating history, we may not be able to correctly estimate our future operating expenses, which could lead to cash
shortfalls.

We have a limited operating history and our primary business activities consist of commercializing our LAVIV product and conducting clinical trials.
As such, our historical financial data is of limited value in estimating future operating expenses. Our budgeted expense levels are based in part on our
expectations concerning the costs commercializing our LAVIV product and of our clinical trials, which depend on the success of such trials and our ability to
effectively and efficiently conduct such trials, and expectations related to our efforts to achieve FDA approval with respect to our product candidates. In
addition, our budgeted expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future revenue that we may receive from our Agera product line, and the size of
future revenue depends on the choices and demand of individuals. Our limited operating history and clinical trial experience make these costs and revenues
difficult to forecast accurately. We may be unable to adjust our operations in a timely manner to compensate for any unexpected increase in costs or shortfall in
revenue. Further, our fixed manufacturing costs and business development and marketing expenses will increase significantly as we expand our operations.
Accordingly, a significant increase in costs or shortfall in revenue could have an immediate and material adverse effect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly in the future, which may cause our results to fall below the expectations of securities analysts,
stockholders and investors.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantly in the future as a result of a variety of factors, many of which are outside of our control. These factors
include, but are not limited to:
 

 •  the level of demand and profitability of LAVIV;
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 •  the timely and successful implementation of improved manufacturing processes;
 

 •  our ability to attract and retain personnel with the necessary strategic, technical and creative skills required for effective operations;
 

 •  the amount and timing of expenditures by practitioners and their patients;
 

 •  introduction of new technologies;
 

 •  product liability litigation, class action and derivative action litigation, or other litigation;
 

 •  the amount and timing of capital expenditures and other costs relating to the expansion of our operations;
 

 •  the state of the debt and/or equity markets at the time of any proposed offering we choose to initiate;
 

 •  our ability to successfully integrate new acquisitions into our operations;
 

 
•  government regulation and legal developments regarding LAVIV and our product candidates in the United States and in the foreign countries in

which we may operate in the future; and
 

 •  general economic conditions.

As a strategic response to changes in the competitive environment, we may from time to time make pricing, service, technology or marketing decisions
or business or technology acquisitions that could have a material adverse effect on our operating results. Due to any of these factors, our operating results may
fall below the expectations of securities analysts, stockholders and investors in any future period, which may cause our stock price to decline.

We may be liable for product liability claims not covered by insurance.
Physicians who used our facial aesthetic product in the past, or who may use any of our future products, and patients who have been treated by our

facial aesthetic product in the past, or who may use any of our future products, may bring product liability claims against us. While we have taken, and
continue to take, what we believe are appropriate precautions, we may be unable to avoid significant liability exposure. We currently keep in force product
liability insurance, although such insurance may not be adequate to fully cover any potential claims or may lapse in accordance with its terms prior to the
assertion of claims. We may be unable to obtain product liability insurance in the future, or we may be unable to do so on acceptable terms. Any insurance we
obtain or have obtained in the past may not provide adequate coverage against any asserted claims. In addition, regardless of merit or eventual outcome,
product liability claims may result in:
 

 •  diversion of management’s time and attention;
 

 •  expenditure of large amounts of cash on legal fees, expenses and payment of damages;
 

 •  decreased demand for our products or any of our future products and services; or
 

 •  injury to our reputation.

If we are the subject of any future product liability claims, our business could be adversely affected, and if these claims are in excess of insurance
coverage, if any, that we may possess, our financial position will suffer.

Our failure to comply with extensive governmental regulation may significantly affect our operating results.
Even if we obtain regulatory approval for some or all of our product candidates, we will continue to be subject to extensive ongoing requirements by the

FDA, as well as by a number of foreign, national, state and local
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agencies. These regulations will impact many aspects of our operations, including testing, research and development, manufacturing, safety, efficacy,
labeling, storage, quality control, adverse event reporting, import and export, record keeping, approval, distribution, advertising and promotion of our future
products. We must also submit new or supplemental applications and obtain FDA approval for certain changes to an approved product, product labeling or
manufacturing process. Application holders must also submit advertising and other promotional material to the FDA and report on ongoing clinical trials. The
FDA enforces post-marketing regulatory requirements, including the cGMP requirements, through periodic unannounced inspections. We do not know
whether we will pass any future FDA inspections. Failure to pass an inspection could disrupt, delay or shut down our manufacturing operations. Failure to
comply with applicable regulatory requirements could, among other things, result in:
 

 •  administrative or judicial enforcement actions;
 

 •  changes to advertising;
 

 •  failure to obtain marketing approvals for our product candidates;
 

 •  revocation or suspension of regulatory approvals of products;
 

 •  product seizures or recalls;
 

 •  court-ordered injunctions;
 

 •  import detentions;
 

 •  delay, interruption or suspension of product manufacturing, distribution, marketing and sales; or
 

 •  civil or criminal sanctions.

The discovery of previously unknown problems with our future products may result in restrictions of the products, including withdrawal from the
market. In addition, the FDA may revisit and change its prior determinations with regard to the safety or efficacy of our future products. If the FDA’s position
changes, we may be required to change our labeling or cease to manufacture and market our future products. Even prior to any formal regulatory action, we
could voluntarily decide to cease the distribution and sale or recall any of our future products if concerns about their safety or efficacy develop.

In their regulation of advertising and other promotion, the FDA and the FTC may issue correspondence alleging that some advertising or promotional
practices are false, misleading or deceptive. The FDA and FTC are authorized to impose a wide array of sanctions on companies for such advertising and
promotion practices, which could result in any of the following:
 

 •  incurring substantial expenses, including fines, penalties, legal fees and costs to comply with the FDA’s requirements;
 

 •  changes in the methods of marketing and selling products;
 

 
•  taking FDA mandated corrective action, which may include placing advertisements or sending letters to physicians rescinding previous

advertisements or promotions; or
 

 •  disruption in the distribution of products and loss of sales until compliance with the FDA’s position is obtained.
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Improper promotional activities may also lead to investigations by federal or state prosecutors, and result in criminal and civil penalties. If we become
subject to any of the above requirements, it could be damaging to our reputation and restrict our ability to sell or market our future products, and our business
condition could be adversely affected. We may also incur significant expenses in defending ourselves.

Physicians may prescribe pharmaceutical or biologic products for uses that are not described in a product’s labeling or differ from those tested by us
and approved by the FDA. While such “off-label” uses are common and the FDA does not regulate physicians’ choice of treatments, the FDA does restrict a
manufacturer’s communications on the subject of off-label use. Companies cannot promote FDA-approved pharmaceutical or biologic products for off-label
uses, but under certain limited circumstances they may disseminate to practitioners’ articles published in peer-reviewed journals. To the extent allowed by the
FDA, we intend to disseminate peer-reviewed articles on our future products to practitioners. If, however, our activities fail to comply with the FDA’s
regulations or guidelines, we may be subject to warnings from, or enforcement action by, the FDA or other regulatory or law enforcement authorities.

Our sales, marketing, and scientific/educational grant programs, if any in the future, must also comply with applicable requirements of the anti-fraud
and abuse provisions of the Social Security Act, the False Claims Act, the federal anti-kickback law, and similar state laws, each as amended. Pricing and
rebate programs must comply with the Medicaid rebate requirements of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 and the Veteran’s Health Care Act of
1992, each as amended. If products are made available to authorized users of the Federal Supply Schedule of the General Services Administration, additional
laws and requirements apply. All of these activities are also potentially subject to federal and state consumer protection and unfair competition laws. The
distribution of product samples to physicians must comply with the requirements of the Prescription Drug Marketing Act.

Depending on the circumstances, failure to meet post-approval requirements can result in criminal prosecution, fines or other penalties, injunctions,
recall or seizure of products, total or partial suspension of production, denial or withdrawal of pre-marketing product approvals, or refusal to allow us to enter
into supply contracts, including government contracts. Any government investigation of alleged violations of law could require us to expend significant time
and resources in response, and could generate negative publicity.

Our competitors in the pharmaceutical, medical device and biotechnology industries may have superior products, manufacturing capabilities,
financial resources or marketing position.

The human healthcare products and services industry is extremely competitive. Our competitors include major pharmaceutical, medical device and
biotechnology companies. Most of these competitors have more extensive research and development, marketing and production capabilities and greater
financial resources than we do. Our future success will depend on our ability to develop and market effectively our products against those of our competitors.
If our products cannot compete effectively in the marketplace, our results of operations and financial position will suffer.

We are dependent on our key manufacturing, quality and other management personnel, and the loss of any of these individuals could harm our
business.

We are dependent on the efforts of our key management and manufacturing and quality staff. The loss of any of these individuals, or our inability to
recruit and train additional key personnel in a timely manner, could materially and adversely affect our business and our future prospects. A loss of one or
more of our current officers or key personnel could severely and negatively impact our operations. We have employment agreements with most of our key
management personnel, but some of these people are employed “at-will,” and any of them may elect to pursue other opportunities at any time. We have no
present intention of obtaining key man life insurance on any of our executive officers or key management personnel.

We may need to attract, train and retain additional highly qualified senior executives and manufacturing and quality personnel in the future.
In the future, we may need to seek additional senior executives, as well as manufacturing and quality staff members. There is a high demand for highly

trained executive, manufacturing and quality personnel in our industry. We do not know whether we will be able to attract, train and retain highly qualified
manufacturing and quality personnel in the future, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
 

26



Table of Contents

If we are unable to adequately protect our intellectual property and proprietary technology, the value of our technology and future products will
be adversely affected, and if we are unable to enforce our intellectual property against unauthorized use by third parties our business may be
materially harmed.

Our long-term success largely depends on our future ability to market technologically competitive products. Our ability to achieve commercial success
will depend in part on obtaining and maintaining patent protection and trade secret protection of our technology and future products, as well as successfully
defending these patents against third party challenges. In order to do so we must:
 

 •  obtain and protect commercially valuable patents or the rights to patents both domestically and abroad;
 

 •  operate without infringing upon the proprietary rights of others; and
 

 •  prevent others from successfully challenging or infringing our proprietary rights.

As of December 31, 2011, we had 10 issued U.S. patents, 3 pending U.S. patent applications, 30 granted foreign patents and 3 pending international
patent applications. However, we may not be able to obtain additional patents relating to our technology or otherwise protect our proprietary rights. If we fail to
obtain or maintain patents from our pending and future applications, we may not be able to prevent third parties from using our proprietary technology. We
will be able to protect our proprietary rights from unauthorized use only to the extent that these rights are covered by valid and enforceable patents that we
control or are effectively maintained by us as trade secrets. Furthermore, the degree of future protection of our proprietary rights is uncertain because legal
means afford only limited protection and may not adequately protect our rights or permit us to gain or keep a competitive advantage.

The patent situation of companies in the markets in which we compete is highly uncertain and involves complex legal and factual questions for which
important legal principles remain unresolved. No consistent policy regarding the breadth of claims allowed in such companies’ patents has emerged to date in
the United States. The laws of other countries do not protect intellectual property rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States, and many
companies have encountered significant problems in protecting and defending such rights in foreign jurisdictions. The legal systems of certain countries,
particularly certain developing countries, do not favor the enforcement of patents and other intellectual property protection, particularly those relating to
biotechnology and/or pharmaceuticals, which could make it difficult for us to stop the infringement of our patents in foreign countries in which we hold
patents. Proceedings to enforce our patent rights in the United States or in foreign jurisdictions would likely result in substantial cost and divert our efforts and
attention from other aspects of our business. Changes in either the patent laws or in interpretations of patent laws in the United States or other countries may
diminish the value of our intellectual property. Accordingly, we cannot predict the breadth of claims that may be allowed or enforced in our patents or in third-
party patents.

Other risks and uncertainties that we face with respect to our patents and other proprietary rights include the following:
 

 •  the inventors of the inventions covered by each of our pending patent applications might not have been the first to make such inventions;
 

 •  we might not have been the first to file patent applications for these inventions or similar technology;
 

 
•  the future and pending applications we will file or have filed, or to which we will or do have exclusive rights, may not result in issued patents or

may take longer than we expect to result in issued patents;
 

 •  the claims of any patents that are issued may not provide meaningful protection;
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 •  our issued patents may not provide a basis for commercially viable products or may not be valid or enforceable;
 

 •  we might not be able to develop additional proprietary technologies that are patentable;
 

 •  the patents licensed or issued to us may not provide a competitive advantage;
 

 •  patents issued to other companies, universities or research institutions may harm our ability to do business;
 

 
•  other individual companies, universities or research institutions may independently develop or have developed similar or alternative technologies

or duplicate our technologies and commercialize discoveries that we attempt to patent;
 

 •  other companies, universities or research institutions may design around technologies we have licensed, patented or developed; and
 

 
•  many of our patent claims are method, rather than composition of matter, claims; generally composition of matter claims are easier to enforce and

are more difficult to circumvent.

Our business may be harmed and we may incur substantial costs as a result of litigation or other proceedings relating to patent and other
intellectual property rights.

A third party may assert that we, one of our subsidiaries or one of our strategic collaborators has infringed his, her or its patents and proprietary rights
or challenge the validity or enforceability of our patents and proprietary rights. Likewise, we may need to resort to litigation to enforce our patent rights or to
determine the scope and validity of a third party’s proprietary rights.

We cannot be sure that other parties have not filed for or obtained relevant patents that could affect our ability to obtain patents or operate our business.
Even if we have previously filed patent applications or obtain issued patents, others may file their own patent applications for our inventions and technology,
or improvements to our inventions and technology. We have become aware of published patent applications filed after the issuance of our patents that, should
the owners pursue and obtain patent claims to our inventions and technology could require us to challenge such patent claims. Others may challenge our patent
or other intellectual property rights or sue us for infringement. In all such cases, we may commence legal proceedings to resolve our patent or other intellectual
property disputes or defend against charges of infringement or misappropriation. An adverse determination in any litigation or administrative proceeding to
which we may become a party could subject us to significant liabilities, result in our patents being deemed invalid, unenforceable or revoked, or drawn into an
interference, require us to license disputed rights from others, if available, or to cease using the disputed technology. In addition, our involvement in any of
these proceedings may cause us to incur substantial costs and result in diversion of management and technical personnel. Furthermore, parties making claims
against us may be able to obtain injunctive or other equitable relief that could effectively block our ability to develop, commercialize and sell products, and
could result in the award of substantial damages against us.

The outcome of these proceedings is uncertain and could significantly harm our business. If we do not prevail in this type of litigation, we or our
strategic collaborators may be required to:
 

 •  pay monetary damages;
 

 
•  expend time and funding to redesign our Fibrocell Therapy so that it does not infringe others’ patents while still allowing us to compete in the

market with a substantially similar product;
 

 
•  obtain a license, if possible, in order to continue manufacturing or marketing the affected products or services, and pay license fees and royalties,

which may be non-exclusive. This license may be non-exclusive, giving our competitors access to the same intellectual property, or the patent
owner may require that we grant a cross-license to our patented technology; or
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 •  stop research and commercial activities relating to the affected products or services if a license is not available on acceptable terms, if at all.

Any of these events could materially adversely affect our business strategy and the value of our business.

In addition, the defense and prosecution of intellectual property suits, interferences, oppositions and related legal and administrative proceedings in the
United States and elsewhere, even if resolved in our favor, could be expensive and time consuming and could divert financial and managerial resources. Some
of our competitors may be able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation more effectively than we can because they have substantially greater financial
resources.

We have not declared any dividends on our common stock to date, and we have no intention of declaring dividends in the foreseeable future.
The decision to pay cash dividends on our common stock rests with our Board of Directors and will depend on our earnings, unencumbered cash,

capital requirements and financial condition. We do not anticipate declaring any dividends in the foreseeable future, as we intend to use any excess cash to
fund our operations. Investors in our common stock should not expect to receive dividend income on their investment, and investors will be dependent on the
appreciation of our common stock to earn a return on their investment.

Provisions in our charter documents could prevent or delay stockholders’ attempts to replace or remove current management.
Our charter documents provide for staggered terms for the members of our Board of Directors. Our Board of Directors is divided into three staggered

classes, and each director serves a term of three years. At stockholders’ meetings, only those directors comprising one of the three classes will have completed
their term and be subject to re-election or replacement.

In addition, our Board of Directors is authorized to issue “blank check” preferred stock, with designations, rights and preferences as they may
determine. Accordingly, our Board of Directors has in the past and may in the future, without stockholder approval, issue shares of preferred stock with
dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of our common stock. This
type of preferred stock could also be issued to discourage, delay or prevent a change in our control.

The use of a staggered Board of Directors, the ability to issue “blank check” preferred stock, and the adoption of stockholder rights plans are traditional
anti-takeover measures. These provisions in our charter documents make it difficult for a majority stockholder to gain control of the Board of Directors and of
our company. These provisions may be beneficial to our management and our Board of Directors in a hostile tender offer and may have an adverse impact on
stockholders who may want to participate in such a tender offer, or who may want to replace some or all of the members of our Board of Directors.

Provisions in our bylaws provide for indemnification of officers and directors, which could require us to direct funds away from our business and
future products.

Our bylaws provide for the indemnification of our officers and directors. We have in the past and may in the future be required to advance costs
incurred by an officer or director and to pay judgments, fines and expenses incurred by an officer or director, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, as a result
of actions or proceedings in which our officers and directors are involved by reason of being or having been an officer or director of our company. Funds paid
in satisfaction of judgments, fines and expenses may be funds we need for the operation of our business and the development of our product candidates,
thereby affecting our ability to attain profitability.
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Because our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009 reflect fresh-start accounting adjustments made on
emergence from bankruptcy and because of the effects of the transactions that became effective pursuant to the Plan, financial information in
our current and future financial statements will not be comparable to our financial information from prior periods.

In connection with our emergence from bankruptcy, we adopted fresh-start accounting as of September 1, 2009 in accordance with ASC 852-10. The
adoption of fresh-start accounting resulted in our becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes. As required by fresh-start accounting, our assets and
liabilities have been preliminarily adjusted to fair value, and certain assets and liabilities not previously recognized in our financial statements have been
recognized. In addition to fresh-start accounting, our financial statements reflect all effects of the transactions implemented by the Plan. Accordingly, the
financial statements prior to September 1, 2009 are not comparable with the financial statements for periods on or after September 1, 2009. Furthermore, the
estimates and assumptions used to implement fresh-start accounting are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies beyond our control.
Accordingly, we cannot provide assurance that the estimates, assumptions, and values reflected in the valuations will be realized, and actual results could
vary materially.

Future sales of our common stock may depress our stock price.
The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, or as a

result of the perception that these sales could occur, which could occur if we issue a large number of shares of common stock (or securities convertible into our
common stock) in connection with a future financing, as our common stock is trading at low levels. These factors could make it more difficult for us to raise
funds through future offerings of common stock or other equity securities. As of March 26, 2012, there were 96,078,253 shares of common stock issued
and outstanding. All of our outstanding shares are freely transferable without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act. In addition to our
common stock outstanding, as of such date, we had preferred stock outstanding that was convertible into a total of 6,882,000 shares of common stock and
warrants outstanding that were exercisable for a total of 49,135,602 shares of common stock.

There is a limited, volatile and sporadic public trading market for our common stock.
There is a limited, volatile and sporadic public trading market for our common stock. Without an active trading market, there can be no assurance of

any liquidity or resale value of our common stock, and stockholders may be required to hold shares of our common stock for an indefinite period of time.

Provisions of the warrants issued in connection with certain of our prior financings provide for preferential treatment to the holders of the
warrants and could impede a sale of the Company.

The warrants we issued in connection with certain of our prior financings gives each holder the option to receive a cash payment based on a Black-
Scholes valuation upon our change of control or upon our failure to be listed on any trading market. We are required, at the warrant holder’s option, exercisable
at any time concurrently with, or within 30 days after, the announcement of a fundamental transaction, to redeem all or any portion of these warrants from the
warrant holder by paying to the holder an amount of cash equal to the Black-Scholes value of the remaining unexercised portion of the warrant on or prior to
the date of the consummation of such fundamental transaction.

We depend on a third-party manufacturer for our Agera product line, the loss or unavailability of which would require us to find a substitute
manufacturer, if available, resulting in delays in production and additional expenses.

Our Agera skin care product line is manufactured by a third party. We are dependent on this third party to manufacture Agera’s products, and the
manufacturer is responsible for supplying the formula ingredients for the Agera product lines. If for any reason the manufacturer discontinues production of
Agera’s products at a time when we have a low volume of inventory on hand or are experiencing a high demand for the products, significant delays in
production of the products and interruption of product sales may result as we seek to establish a relationship and commence production with a new
manufacturer, which would negatively impact our results of operation.
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The large majority of our revenue, which relates to the Agera business segment, is to one international customer.
Our revenues, which relate solely to the Agera business segment, are highly concentrated in one large, international customer. This large customer

represented 65% and 72% of 2011 and 2010 consolidated revenues, respectively. Further, this large customer represented 85% and 88% of consolidated
accounts receivable, net, at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. A reduction of revenue related to this large customer, due to competitor
product alternatives, pricing pressures, the financial health of the large customer, or otherwise, would have a significant, negative impact on the business of
Agera, and the related value thereof.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
Our corporate headquarters and manufacturing operations are located in one location, Exton, Pennsylvania. The Exton, Pennsylvania location is leased

and consists of approximately 86,500 square feet. The lease is noncancelable through March 31, 2013. Subsequent to December 31, 2011, we renegotiated the
lease and extended it for a period of ten years until March 31, 2023.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
None.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
N/A.

Part II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Market Information

Our common stock has traded on the OTCBB since October 21, 2009 under the symbol “FCSC.” Currently, there is only a limited, sporadic and
volatile market for our stock on the OTCBB. The following table sets forth, for the period indicated, the high and low sales prices of our common stock on
the OTCBB. These prices represent prices between inter-dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown, or commission, and may not represent actual
transactions.
 

   High    Low  
Year Ended December 31, 2011     
First Quarter   $ 0.90    $ 0.52  
Second Quarter   $ 1.36    $ 0.72  
Third Quarter   $ 0.86    $ 0.45  
Fourth Quarter   $0.56    $ 0.39  

Year Ended December 31, 2010     
First Quarter   $ 1.13    $ 0.80  
Second Quarter   $ 1.04    $0.65  
Third Quarter   $ 0.85    $ 0.53  
Fourth Quarter   $ 0.60    $ 0.40  

The closing price of our common stock on March 26, 2012 was $0.47 as reported on the OTCBB.
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Holders of Record

As of March 26, 2012, there were 96,078,253 shares of our common stock outstanding and held by 244 stockholders of record. As of March 26,
2012, there were 3,250 shares issued and no shares outstanding for Series A preferred stock, 4,640 shares issued and no shares outstanding for Series B
preferred stock and 7,779 shares issued and 3,441 shares outstanding for Series D preferred stock.

Dividends
We have never paid any cash dividends on our common stock and our board of directors does not intend to do so in the foreseeable future. The

declaration and payment of dividends in the future, of which there can be no assurance, will be determined by the board of directors in light of conditions then
existing, including earnings, financial condition, capital requirements and other factors.

Holders of our Series D Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate per share (as a percentage of the stated value per share) of
6% per annum (subject to increase in certain circumstances), payable quarterly in arrears. The dividends are payable in cash, or at our option, in duly
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable shares of common stock equal to 110% of the cash dividend amount payable on the dividend
payment date, or a combination thereof; provided that we may not pay the dividends in shares of common stock unless we meet certain conditions described
in the Certificate of Designation, including that the resale of the shares has been registered under the Securities Act. If we pay the dividend in shares of
common stock, the common stock will be valued for such purpose at 80% of the average of the volume weighted average price for the 10 consecutive trading
days ending on the trading day that is immediately prior to the dividend payment date. Cash payments for Series A dividends were approximately $0.1 million
for 2010 and cash payments for Series A, Series B and Series D dividends were approximately $0.6 million for 2011.

Penny Stock

The SEC has adopted rules that regulate broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in penny stocks. Our stock is currently a “penny
stock.” Penny stocks are generally equity securities with a price of less than $5.00, other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges.
The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those rules, deliver a standardized risk
disclosure document prepared by the SEC, which: (a) contains a description of the nature and level of risk in the market for penny stocks in both public
offerings and secondary trading; (b) contains a description of the broker’s or dealer’s duties to the customer and of the rights and remedies available to the
customer with respect to a violation to such duties or other requirements of securities’ laws; (c) contains a brief, clear, narrative description of a dealer market,
including bid and ask prices for penny stocks and significance of the spread between the bid and ask price; (d) contains a toll-free telephone number for
inquiries on disciplinary actions; (e) defines significant terms in the disclosure document or in the conduct of trading in penny stocks; and (f) contains such
other information and is in such form as the SEC shall require by rule or regulation. The broker-dealer also must provide to the customer, prior to effecting
any transaction in a penny stock, (a) bid and offer quotations for the penny stock; (b) the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the
transaction; (c) the number of shares to which such bid and ask prices apply, or other comparable information relating to the depth and liquidity of the
market for such stock; and (d) monthly account statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s account. In addition, the
penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from those rules, the broker-dealer must make a special written
determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser’s written acknowledgment of the receipt of a risk
disclosure statement, a written agreement to transactions involving penny stocks, and a signed and dated copy of a written suitably statement.

These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the trading activity in the secondary market for our stock if it becomes subject to these
penny stock rules.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
All information regarding the financings we completed during 2011 have been previously disclosed in current reports we have filed on Form 8-K.

Purchases of Equity Securities.
We did not repurchase any of our equity securities during the twelve months ended 2011.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data
We are a smaller reporting company, and are not required to report this information.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General

We are a cellular aesthetic and therapeutic development stage biotechnology company focused on developing novel skin and tissue rejuvenation products.
Our clinical development product candidates are designed to improve the appearance of skin injured by the effects of aging, sun exposure, acne and burn
scars with a patient’s own, or autologous, fibroblast cells produced by our proprietary Fibrocell process. Our clinical development programs encompass both
aesthetic and therapeutic indications.

Our lead product, LAVIV, is the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy approved by the FDA for the improvement of the appearance of
moderate to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults.

During 2009 we completed a Phase II study for the treatment of acne scars. We announced on November 3, 2011, that the first scientific presentation of
data demonstrating the efficacy of LAVIV (azficel-T) in treating moderate-to-severe depressed acne scars was presented at the American Society for
Dermatologic Surgery (ASDS) annual meeting in Washington, D.C. During 2008 we completed our open-label Phase II study related to full face rejuvenation.

We also develop and market an advanced skin care product line through our Agera subsidiary, in which we acquired a 57% interest in August 2006.

Exit from Bankruptcy
On August 27, 2009, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware in Wilmington entered an order, or Confirmation Order,

confirming the Joint First Amended Plan of Reorganization dated July 30, 2009, as supplemented by the Plan Supplement dated August 21, 2009, or the Plan,
of Isolagen, Inc. and Isolagen’s wholly owned subsidiary, Isolagen Technologies, Inc. The effective date of the Plan was September 3, 2009. Isolagen, Inc. and
Isolagen Technologies, Inc. were subsequently renamed Fibrocell Science, Inc. and Fibrocell Technologies, Inc., respectively. Fibrocell now operates outside of
the restraints of the bankruptcy process, free of the debts and liabilities discharged by the Plan.

Going Concern

The Company emerged from Bankruptcy in September 2009 and continues to operate as a going concern. At December 31, 2011, the Company had
cash and cash equivalents of approximately $10.8 million and working capital of $2.9 million.

As of March 26, 2012, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $4.7 million and our accounts payable and accrued expenses
were approximately $1.6 million. In addition, the Company has approximately $7.0 million of outstanding debt which is due in June 2012. The Company’s
current monthly cash run-rate is approximately $2.2 million. The Company will need to access the capital markets in the near future in order to fund future
operations. There is no guarantee that any such required financing will be available on terms satisfactory to the Company or available at all. These matters
create uncertainty relating to its ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of assets or liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.
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Further, if the Company raises additional cash resources in the near future, it may be raised in contemplation of or in connection with bankruptcy. In
the event of a bankruptcy, it is likely that its common stock and common stock equivalents will become worthless and our creditors will receive significantly
less than what is owed to them.

Through December 31, 2011, the Company has been primarily engaged in developing its initial product technology. In the course of its development
activities, the Company has sustained losses and expects such losses to continue through at least 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the
Company financed its operations primarily through its existing cash received from external equity financings, but as discussed above it now requires
additional financing. There is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s ability to complete additional offerings is dependent on the state of the debt and/or equity markets at the time of any proposed offering,
and such market’s reception of the Company and the offering terms. The Company’s ability to complete an offering is also dependent on the status of its Food
and Drug Administration (“FDA”) regulatory milestones and its clinical trials. There is no assurance that capital in any form would be available to the
Company, and if available, on terms and conditions that are acceptable.

As a result of the conditions discussed above, and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), there exists substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and its ability to continue as a going concern is contingent, among other things, upon its
ability to secure additional adequate financing or capital in the near future. If the Company does not obtain additional funding, or does not anticipate additional
funding, in the near future, it will likely enter into bankruptcy and/or cease operations. Further, if it does raise additional cash resources in the near future, it
may be raised in contemplation of or in connection with bankruptcy. If the Company enters into bankruptcy, it is likely that its common stock and common
stock equivalents will become worthless and its creditors, including preferred stock, will receive significantly less than what is owed to them.

Critical Accounting Policies

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in conformity with GAAP. However, certain accounting policies and estimates are particularly important to the understanding of our
financial position and results of operations and require the application of significant judgment by our management or can be materially affected by changes
from period to period in economic factors or conditions that are outside of the control of management. As a result they are subject to an inherent degree of
uncertainty. In applying these policies, our management uses their judgment to determine the appropriate assumptions to be used in the determination of certain
estimates. Those estimates are based on our historical operations, our future business plans and projected financial results, the terms of existing contracts, our
observance of trends in the industry, information provided by our customers and information available from other outside sources, as appropriate. The
following discusses our critical accounting policies and estimates.

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets are research and development assets related to the Company’s primary study that was recognized upon emergence
from bankruptcy. This value is related to research and development assets that are not subject to amortization.

Intangibles are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
impairment test consists of a comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset to its carrying amount. If the carrying amount exceeds the fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized equal in amount to that excess.

Income Taxes: An asset and liability approach is used for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes arise from
temporary differences between income tax and financial reporting and principally relate to recognition of revenue and expenses in different periods for financial
and tax accounting purposes and are measured using currently enacted tax rates and laws. In addition, a deferred tax asset can be generated by net operating
loss (“NOLs”) carryover. If it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recognized.
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Warrant Liability: We account for our warrants in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The warrants are measured at fair value and liability-classified under
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 815, Derivatives and Hedging, (“ASC 815”) because the warrants contain “down-round protection” and
therefore, do not meet the scope exception for treatment as a derivative under ASC 815. Since “down-round protection” is not an input into the calculation of
the fair value of the warrants, the warrants cannot be considered indexed to the Company’s own stock which is a requirement for the scope exception as
outlined under ASC 815. Effective December 31, 2011, we calculated the fair value of the warrants using the Monte Carlo simulation valuation method due to
the changes in the product status with the approval of LAVIV. Prior to December 31, 2011, the Black-Scholes option-pricing model was utilized due to the
assumptions present prior to the approval of LAVIV. The fair value is affected by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock
price volatility, the contractual term, and the risk-free interest rate. We will continue to classify the fair value of the warrants as a liability until the warrants are
exercised, expire or are amended in a way that would no longer require these warrants to be classified as a liability.

Preferred Stock and Derivative Liability: The preferred stock has been classified within the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity in its
consolidated balance sheets in accordance with ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”) because any holder of Series A, B or D
Preferred may require the Company to redeem all of its Series A, B or D Preferred in the event of a triggering event which is outside of the control of the
Company.

The embedded conversion option for the Series A Preferred, Series B Preferred and Series D Preferred has been recorded as a derivative liability under
ASC 815 in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and will be re-measured on the Company’s
reporting dates. The fair value of the derivative liability is determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and is affected by changes in inputs to
that model including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, the contractual term, and the risk-free interest rate. The Company will continue to classify
the fair value of the embedded conversion option as a liability until the preferred stock is converted into common stock.

Stock-Based Compensation:  We account for stock-based awards to employees using the fair value based method to determine compensation for all
arrangements where shares of stock or equity instruments are issued for compensation. In addition, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation to
nonemployees in accordance with the accounting guidance for equity instruments that are issued to other than employees. We use a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model to determine the fair value of each option grant as of the date of grant for expense incurred. The Black-Scholes model requires inputs for risk-
free interest rate, dividend yield, volatility and expected lives of the options. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our competitor’s stock since
the Predecessor Company ceased trading as part of the bankruptcy and emerged as a new entity. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the
option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The expected lives for options granted represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstanding and is derived from the contractual terms of the options granted. We estimate future forfeitures of options based
upon expected forfeiture rates.

Research and Development Expenses:  Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and include salaries and benefits, costs paid to third-
party contractors to perform research, conduct clinical trials, develop and manufacture drug materials and delivery devices, and a portion of facilities cost.
Clinical trial costs are a significant component of research and development expenses and include costs associated with third-party contractors. Invoicing from
third-party contractors for services performed can lag several months. We accrue the costs of services rendered in connection with third-party contractor
activities based on our estimate of management fees, site management and monitoring costs and data management costs. Actual clinical trial costs may differ
from estimated clinical trial costs and are adjusted for in the period in which they become known.

Basis of Presentation
As of September 1, 2009, the Company adopted fresh-start accounting in accordance with ASC 852-10, Reorganizations. The Company selected

September 1, 2009, as the date to effectively apply fresh-start accounting based on the absence of any material contingencies at the August 27, 2009
confirmation hearing and the immaterial impact of transactions between August 27, 2009 and September 1, 2009. The adoption of fresh-start accounting
resulted in the Company becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes.
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Accordingly, the financial statements prior to September 1, 2009 are not comparable with the financial statements for periods on or after September 1,
2009. References to “Successor” or “Successor Company” refer to the Company on or after September 1, 2009, after giving effect to the cancellation of
Isolagen, Inc. common stock issued prior to the Effective Date, the issuance of new Fibrocell Science, Inc. common stock in accordance with the Plan, and the
application of fresh-start accounting. References to “Predecessor” or “Predecessor Company” refer to the Company prior to September 1, 2009.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this 10-K.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Years Ending December 31, 2011 and 2010
Revenue and Cost of Sales. Revenue and cost of sales for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 were comprised of the following:
 

   
Year ended

December 31,    
Increase

(Decrease)  
   2011    2010    $000s   %  
   (in thousands)         
Total revenue   $812    $936    $(124)   (13.2)% 
Cost of sales    464     502     (38)   (7.5)% 
Gross profit   $ 348    $ 434    $ (86)   (19.8)% 

Revenue decreased $0.1 million to $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to $0.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2010. Our revenue is from the operations of Agera which markets and sells a complete line of advanced skin care systems based on a wide array of proprietary
formulations, trademarks and nano-peptide technology.

Costs of sales remained constant at $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 and for the year ended December 31, 2010. As a percentage of
revenue, Agera’s cost of sales was approximately 57% for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 54% for the year ended December 31, 2010. Cost of sales as
a percentage of revenue in 2011 has increased as compared to 2010 primarily due to component costs (containers, cartons and labels).

Selling, General and Administrative Expense. Selling, general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was comprised of
the following:
 

   
Year Ended

December 31,    
Increase

(Decrease)  
   2011    2010    $000s   %  
   (in thousands)         
Compensation and related expense   $ 4,687    $ 2,501    $ 2,186    87% 
External services – consulting    693     942     (249)   (26)% 
Marketing expense    3,820     157     3,663    2,339% 
License fees    805     17     788    4,681% 
Facilities and related expense and other    3,206     2,899     307    11% 
Total selling, general and administrative expense   $13,211    $6,516    $6,695    103% 

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased by approximately $6.7 million, or 103%, to $13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011
as compared to $6.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase primarily consists of an increase in stock compensation expense of $1.8
million, an increase in salaries of $0.4 million, an increase in marketing expense of $3.7 million in preparation of the launch of LAVIV and an increase in
license fees of $0.8 million for FDA product and establishment fees. Consulting fees decreased $0.2 million due to the hiring of key personnel offset by an
increase in office expense.
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Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was comprised of the following:
 

   
Year Ended

December 31,    
Increase

(Decrease)  
   2011    2010    $000s   %  
   (in thousands)         
Compensation and related expense   $ 2,108    $ 1,600    $ 508    32%
External services – consulting    1,927     2,129     (202)   (10)%
Lab costs and related expense    1,620     879     741    84%
Facilities and related expense    1,516     878     638    73% 
Total research and development expense   $ 7,171    $5,486    $1,685    31%

Research and development expense increased $1.7 million to $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to $5.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010. The increase is primarily due to an increase of $0.4 million in compensation and related expense, an increase of $0.1 million
for stock compensation expense, an increase of $0.7 million for lab costs and $0.6 million for contract labor as the Company prepares for the launch and
production of the product LAVIV, offset by $0.1 million decrease for consulting fees. Research and development costs are composed primarily of quality and
manufacturing costs in connection with LAVIV which was recently approved by the FDA. As we begin selling LAVIV these costs will appear as cost of goods
sold on the statements of operations. There are also other costs related to other potential indications for our Fibrocell Therapy, such as acne scars and burn
scars. Also, research and development expense includes costs to develop manufacturing, cell collection and logistical process improvements. Research and
development costs primarily include personnel and laboratory costs related to these FDA trials and certain consulting costs. The total inception (December 28,
1995) to date cost of research and development as of August 31, 2009 for the Predecessor Company was $56.3 million and total inception (September 1,
2009) to date cost of research and development as of December 31, 2011, for the Successor Company was $14.5 million.

Other income (expense) . In November 2010, we received one grant totaling $0.2 million under the Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Project Grants Program.
The Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Project Grants Program was included in the healthcare reform legislation, and established a one-time pool of $1 billion
for grants to small biotechnology companies developing novel therapeutics which show potential to: (a) result in new therapies that either treat areas of unmet
medical need, or prevent, detect, or treat chronic or acute diseases and conditions; (b) reduce long-term health care costs in the United States; or
(c) significantly advance the goal of curing cancer within a the 30-year period. There are no matching funding requirements or other requirements necessary to
receive the funding.

Interest expense. Interest expense remained relatively constant at $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Our interest expense for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is related to the 12.5% notes we issued in connection with our bankruptcy plan.

Change in Revaluation of Warrant and Derivative Liability. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we recorded non-cash expense of $4.8
million and $0.5 million for warrant expense, respectively, in our statements of operations due to an increase in the fair value of the warrant liability. This
increase in fair value was primarily due to a change in the valuation method from the Black Scholes model to the Monte Carlo simulation model. In addition,
the number of shares underlying the warrants increased in 2011 due to the issuance of our Series D preferred stock, which triggered the anti-dilution protection
in the warrants resulting in the lowering of the exercise price of the warrants and the increase in the number of shares underlying such warrants. During the
year ended December 31, 2011, we recorded non-cash expense of $5.5 million for derivative revaluation expense in our statements of operations due to the
change in the fair value of the derivative liability related to the Series A, B and D preferred stock financings.

Net Loss attributable to common shareholders . Net loss, excluding reorganization items, increased $18.5 million to $31.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011, as compared to $12.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase in expense is due to preparation for the launch and
production of LAVIV.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table summarizes our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities for the two years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

 
   Year Ended December 31,  
   2011   2010  
   (in thousands)  
Statement of Cash Flows Data:    
Total cash provided by (used in):    

Operating activities   $(16,837)  $(9,266) 
Investing activities    (1,570)   (30) 
Financing activities    28,336    8,795  

Operating Activities. Cash used in operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to $16.8 million, an increase of $7.5 million over
the year ended December 31, 2010. The increase in our cash used in operating activities over the prior year is primarily due to an increase in net losses
(adjusted for non-cash items) of $6.6 million, in addition to operating cash outflows from changes in operating assets and liabilities.

Investing Activities. Cash used in investing activities during the year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to $1.6 million due to the purchase of property
and equipment for the lab facility in Exton, Pennsylvania in preparation of the launch of LAVIV.

Financing Activities. There was $28.3 million cash proceeds received from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to
$8.8 million received from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2010. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we raised
cash of $30.4 million and $9.0 million, respectively, from the issuance of common stock, preferred stock and warrants, offset primarily by principal debt
payments of $1.3 million in 2011 and dividend payments of $0.6 million and $0.1 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Working Capital
As of December 31, 2011, we had cash and cash equivalents of $10.8 million and working capital of $2.9 million. As of March 26, 2012, the

Company had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $4.7 million and our accounts payable and accrued expenses were approximately $1.6 million. In
addition, the Company has approximately $7.0 million of outstanding debt which is due in June 2012. The Company’s current monthly cash run-rate is
approximately $2.2 million. The Company will need to access the capital markets in the near future in order to fund future operations. There is no guarantee
that any such required financing will be available on terms satisfactory to the Company or available at all. These matters create uncertainty relating to its
ability to continue as a going concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of assets or liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Factors Affecting Our Capital Resources
Inflation did not have a significant impact on the Company’s results during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions
We do not engage in material off-balance sheet transactions.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011 (in thousands):
 
   Payments due by period  

    Total    2012    
2013 and

2014    
2015 and

2016    
2017 and
thereafter 

Contractual Obligations           
Debt obligation   $ 6,731    $ 6,731    $ —      $ —      $ —    
Operating lease obligations    14,205     884     2,152     2,465     8,704  
Total   $20,936    $7,615    $2,152    $2,465    $8,704  
 

 Operating lease obligations are stated based on renewed lease agreement for the office, warehouse and laboratory facilities executed in February 2012.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The financial statements, including the notes thereto and report of the independent registered public accounting firm thereon are included in this report as

set forth in the “Index to Financial Statements.” See F-1 for Index to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
N/A.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, evaluated the disclosure controls and procedures related to the
recording, processing, summarization and reporting of information in the periodic reports that the Company files with the SEC. These disclosure controls and
procedures have been designed to ensure that (a) material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
management, including these officers, by other employees of the Company, and (b) this information is recorded, processed, summarized, evaluated and
reported, as applicable, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. As of December 31, 2011, the officers (the principal executive officer
and principal financial officer) concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and
principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Our
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Based on our evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework , our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011. This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm
regarding internal control over financial reporting. As we are a smaller reporting company, management’s report is not subject to attestation by our registered
public accounting firm pursuant to Section 404(c) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that permits us to provide only management’s report in this annual
report.

Changes in Internal Controls
There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is

reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

Part III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item 10 will be included in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Stockholders which will
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than April 29, 2012 and is incorporated into this Item 10 by reference.

Code of Ethics. We have adopted a written code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting
officer or controller and any persons performing similar functions. The code of ethics is on our website at www.fibrocellscience.com. We intend to disclose any
future amendments to, or waivers from, the code of ethics within four business days of the waiver or amendment through a website posting or by filing a
Current Report on Form 8-K with the SEC.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required under this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation

14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required under this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation

14A, which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required under this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A,

which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011.
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services
The information required under this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement pursuant to Regulation 14A,

which proxy statement will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120 days after the close of the Company’s fiscal year ended
December 31, 2011.

Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

(a)(1) Financial Statements.
 

 •  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 

 •  Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010
 

 
•  Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (Successor Company), from inception (September 1,

2009) to December 31, 2011 (Successor Company) and from inception to August 31, 2009 (Predecessor Company)
 

 
•  Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Deficit and Comprehensive Income (Loss) from inception to August 31, 2009 (Predecessor Company)

and from inception (September 1, 2009) to December 31, 2011 (Successor Company)
 

 
•  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, from inception (September 1, 2009) to December 31,

2011 (Successor Company) and cumulative period from inception (December 28, 1995) to August 31, 2009 (Predecessor Company)
 

 •  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule.

All schedules are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required information is presented in the
Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

(a)(3) The exhibits listed under Item 15(b) are filed or incorporated by reference herein.
 

41



Table of Contents

(b) Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed as part of this annual report:

EXHIBIT NO. IDENTIFICATION OF EXHIBIT
 
EXHIBIT
NO.   IDENTIFICATION OF EXHIBIT

    2.1
  

Debtors’ First Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization dated July 30, 2009 and Disclosure Statement (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q for quarter ended June 30, 2009, filed on August 12, 2009 and as Exhibit 99.1 to our Form 8-K filed September 2, 2009)

    3.1   Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed September 2, 2009)

    3.2   Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Form 8-K filed September 2, 2009)

    3.3
  

Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series A 6% Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed October 14, 2009)

    3.4
  

Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, dated July 16, 2010. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Form 8-K filed July 20, 2010).

    3.5
  

Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of Preferences, Rights and Limitations of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Form 8-K filed December 8, 2010).

    4.1   Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 10-Q filed November 23, 2009)

    4.2
  

Form of Class A/B Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued in October 2009 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-
K filed October 14, 2009)

    4.3   Form of 12.5% Promissory Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed September 10, 2009)

    4.4
  

Form of Placement Agent Warrant issued in November 2009 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Form 10-Q filed
November 23, 2009)

    4.5
  

Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued in March 2010 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed March 3,
2010)

    4.6
  

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued in July 2010 Series B preferred stock offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
our Form 8-K filed July 20, 2010)

    4.7
  

Form of Placement Agent Warrant issued in July 2010 Series B preferred stock offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Form
8-K filed July 20, 2010)

    4.8
  

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant used for Series B preferred stock offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 8-
K filed October 22, 2010).

    4.9
  

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant used for the Series D preferred stock offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the
Form 8-K filed February 15, 2011).

    4.10
  

Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued in August 2011 offering (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed August 4,
2011)

  10.1
  

Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 13, 2009 between the Company and the Series A Preferred Stock Purchasers (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed October 14, 2009)

  10.2
  

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Company and Declan Daly dated August 24, 2010 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed August 27, 2010)

  10.3
  

Consulting Agreement between the Company and Robert Langer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 10-Q filed November
23, 2009)

  10.4   2009 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to our Form S-8 filed March 3, 2011)

  10.5
  

Lease Agreement between Isolagen, Inc and The Hankin Group dated April 7, 2005 (previously filed as an exhibit to the company’s Form 8-
K, filed on April 12, 2005)
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  10.6
  

Purchase Option Agreement between Isolagen, Inc and 405 Eagleview Associates dated April 7, 2005 (previously filed as an exhibit to the
company’s Form 8-K, filed on April 12, 2005)

  10.7
  

Intellectual Property Purchase Agreement between Isolagen Technologies, Inc., Gregory M. Keller, and PacGen Partners (previously filed as an
exhibit to the company’s amended Form S-1, as filed on October 24, 2003)

  10.8
  

Employment Agreement between the Company and David Pernock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed February
1, 2010)

  10.9   Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 2, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed March 3, 2010)

  10.10   Registration Rights Agreement dated March 2, 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed March 3, 2010)

  10.11
  

Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and the Series A Preferred Stock Purchasers, dated October 13, 2009 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed October 14, 2009)

  10.12
  

Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and Series B Preferred Stock Purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our
Form 8-K filed July 20, 2010)

  10.13
  

Form of Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and Series B Preferred Stock Purchasers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed July 20, 2010)

  10.14
  

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement between the Company and Series B Preferred Stock Purchasers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 of the Form 8-K filed October 22, 2010).

  10.15   Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 3, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Form 8-K filed August 4, 2011)

  10.16   Registration Rights Agreement dated August 3, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Form 8-K filed August 4, 2011)

*10.17   Amendment to Lease Agreement between Fibrocell Science, Inc. and The Hankin Group dated February 17, 2012

  21
  

List of Subsidiaries (previously filed as an exhibit to the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006)

*23.1   Consent of BDO USA, LLP

*31.1   Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*31.2   Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), required under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*32.1   Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*32.2   Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS   XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.LAB   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF   XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
 
* Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
FIBROCELL SCIENCE, INC.

By:

 

/s/ David Pernock
David Pernock
Chief Executive Officer

Date:  March 30, 2012

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.
 

Signature   Title  Date

/s/ David Pernock
David Pernock   

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors
 

March 30, 2012

/s/ Declan Daly
Declan Daly   

Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Director
 

March 30, 2012

/s/ Kelvin Moore
Kelvin Moore   

Director

 

March 30, 2012

/s/ Dr. Robert Langer
Dr. Robert Langer   

Director

 

March 30, 2012

/s/ Marc Mazur
Marc Mazur   

Director

 

March 30, 2012

/s/ Dr. George Korkos
Dr. George Korkos   

Director

 

March 30, 2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Fibrocell Science, Inc. (a development stage company)
Exton, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fibrocell Science, Inc. (in the development stage) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the
related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity (deficit) and comprehensive loss, and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011
and 2010 (“Successor”), and for the period from the Successor’s inception of operations (September 1, 2009) through December 31, 2011 and for the period
from the Predecessor’s inception of operations (December 28, 1995) through August 31, 2009. We have also audited the statements of shareholders’ equity
(deficit) for the period from December 28, 1995 (Predecessor’s inception) through August 31, 2009 and for the period from the Successor’s inception of
operations (September 1, 2009) through December 31, 2011. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Fibrocell Science, Inc. at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended (“Successor”), and for the period from the
Successor’s inception of operations (September 1, 2009) through December 31, 2011 and for the period from the Predecessor’s inception of operations
(December 31, 1995) through August 31, 2009 and the statements of shareholders’ equity (deficit) for the period from December 28, 1995 (Predecessor’s
inception) to August 31, 2009 and for the period from the Successor’s inception of operations (September 1, 2009) through December 31, 2011, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the
financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations, has a net capital deficit, and has limited cash resources that raise
substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plan in regard to these matters is also described in Note 3. The financial
statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Houston, Texas
March 30, 2012
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Fibrocell Science, Inc.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Balance Sheets
 

   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Assets    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $10,798,995   $ 867,738  
Accounts receivable, net    215,714    229,891  
Inventory, net    266,348    258,939  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets    1,217,596    559,082  

Total current assets    12,498,653    1,915,650  
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $165,841 and $8,085, respectively    1,433,938    21,589  
Intangible assets and other assets    6,340,906    6,340,906  

Total assets   $ 20,273,497   $ 8,278,145  
Liabilities, Redeemable Preferred Stock, Shareholders’ Deficit and Noncontrolling Interest    
Current liabilities:    

Current debt   $ 6,730,861   $ 56,911  
Accounts payable    1,899,045    1,096,125  
Accrued expenses    926,141    789,482  
Deferred revenue    55,400    —    

Total current liabilities    9,611,447    1,942,518  
Long-term debt    —      7,290,881  
Deferred tax liability    2,500,000    2,500,000  
Warrant liability    13,087,000    8,171,518  
Derivative liability    533,549    2,120,360  
Other long-term liabilities    142,002    255,606  

Total liabilities    25,873,998    22,280,883  
Commitments    
Preferred stock series A, $0.001 par value; 9,000 shares authorized; 3,250 shares issued; 0 and 2,886 shares

outstanding, respectively    —      1,280,150  
Preferred stock series B, $0.001 par value; 9,000 shares authorized; 4,640 shares issued; 0 and 4,640 shares

outstanding, respectively    —      —    
Preferred stock series B, $0.001 par value; subscription receivable    —      (210,000) 
Preferred stock series D, $0.001 par value; 8,000 shares authorized; 7,779 and 1,645 shares issued, respectively,

and 3,641 and 1,645 shares outstanding, respectively    —      —    
Fibrocell Science, Inc. shareholders’ deficit:    

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 250,000,000 shares authorized; 95,678,255 and 20,375,500 issued and
outstanding, respectively    95,678    20,376  

Common stock-subscription receivable    (550,020)   —    
Additional paid-in capital    43,734,339    2,437,893  
Accumulated deficit during development stage    (49,349,080)   (17,981,530) 

Total Fibrocell Science, Inc. shareholders’ deficit    (6,069,083)   (15,523,261) 
Noncontrolling interest    468,582    450,373  

Total deficit and noncontrolling interest    (5,600,501)   (15,072,888) 
Total liabilities, preferred stock, shareholders’ deficit and noncontrolling interest   $ 20,273,497   $ 8,278,145  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Fibrocell Science, Inc.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Operations
 

   Successor   Successor   Successor       Predecessor  

   
For the year ended
December 31, 2011  

For the year ended
December 31, 2010   

Cumulative period
from September 1,

2009 (date of
inception) to

December 31, 2011      

Cumulative period
from December 28,

1995 (date of
inception) to

August 31, 2009  
Revenue         

Product sales   $ 812,235   $ 936,369   $ 2,078,545      $ 4,818,994  
License fees    —      —      —         260,000  

Total revenue    812,235    936,369    2,078,545       5,078,994  
Cost of sales    463,874    502,648    1,148,570       2,279,335  
Gross profit    348,361    433,721    929,975       2,799,659  
Selling, general and administrative expenses    13,211,486    6,515,581    22,435,423       84,805,520  
Research and development expenses    7,170,520    5,486,319    14,480,035       56,269,869  

Operating loss    (20,033,645)   (11,568,179)   (35,985,483)      (138,275,730) 
Other income (expense)         

Interest income    —      —      1       6,989,539  
Reorganization items, net    —      3,303    (69,174)      73,538,984  
Other income    —      244,479    244,479       316,338  
Warrant expense    (4,762,694)   (465,232)   (5,547,010)      —    
Derivative revaluation expense    (5,451,518)   —      (5,451,518)      —    
Interest expense    (1,061,862)   (1,045,199)   (2,354,235)      (18,790,218) 

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes    (31,309,719)   (12,830,828)   (49,162,940)      (76,221,087) 
Income tax benefit    —      —      —         190,754  
Loss from continuing operations    (31,309,719)   (12,830,828)   (49,162,940)      (76,030,333) 
Loss from discontinued operations    (39,622)   (48,805)   (100,540)      (41,091,311) 
Net loss    (31,349,341)   (12,879,633)   (49,263,480)      (117,121,644) 
Deemed dividend associated with beneficial conversion    —      —      —         (11,423,824) 
Preferred stock dividends    —      —      —         (1,589,861) 
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interest    (18,209)   (51,898)   (85,600)      1,799,523  
Net loss attributable to Fibrocell Science, Inc. common

shareholders.   $(31,367,550)  $ (12,931,531)  $ (49,349,080)     $(128,335,806) 
Per share information:         

Loss from continuing operations-basic and diluted   $ (0.57)  $ (0.68)  $ (1.46)     $ (4.30) 
Loss from discontinued operations-basic and diluted    —      —      —         (2.32) 
Income attributable to noncontrolling interest    —      —      —         0.10  
Deemed dividend associated with beneficial conversion of

preferred stock    —      —      —         (0.65) 
Preferred stock dividends    —      —      —         (0.09) 

Net loss attributable to common shareholders per common share
—basic and diluted   $ (0.57)  $ (0.68)  $ (1.46)     $ (7.26) 

Weighted average number of basic and diluted common shares
outstanding    54,857,520    18,757,756    33,664,124       17,678,219  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Fibrocell Science, Inc.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity (Deficit) and Comprehensive Income (Loss)
 

 

 
Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   

Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit 
During

Development
Stage  

 
Total

Shareholders

’ 
Equity
(Deficit)   

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number
of

Shares   Amount   
Number of

Shares   Amount    
Issuance of common stock for cash on

12/28/95   —     $ —      —     $ —      2,285,291   $ 2,285   $ (1,465)   —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 820  
Issuance of common stock for cash on

11/7/96   —      —      —      —      11,149    11    49,989    —      —      —      —      50,000  
Issuance of common stock for cash on

11/29/96   —      —      —      —      2,230    2    9,998    —      —      —      —      10,000  
Issuance of common stock for cash on

12/19/96   —      —      —      —      6,690    7    29,993    —      —      —      —      30,000  
Issuance of common stock for cash on

12/26/96   —      —      —      —      11,148    11    49,989    —      —      —      —      50,000  
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (270,468)   (270,468) 
Balance, 12/31/96 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      2,316,508   $ 2,316   $ 138,504    —     $ —     $ —     $ (270,468)  $ (129,648) 
Issuance of common stock for cash on

12/27/97   —      —      —      —      21,182    21    94,979    —      —      —      —      95,000  
Issuance of common stock for services

on 9/1/97   —      —      —      —      11,148    11    36,249    —      —      —      —      36,260  
Issuance of common stock for services

on 12/28/97   —      —      —      —      287,193    287    9,968    —      —      —      —      10,255  
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (52,550)   (52,550) 
Balance, 12/31/97(Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      2,636,031   $ 2,635   $ 279,700    —     $ —     $ —     $ (323,018)  $ (40,683) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   

Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit 
During

Development
Stage  

 
Total

Shareholders

’ 
Equity
(Deficit)   

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Issuance of common stock for cash
on 8/23/98   —     $ —      —     $ —      4,459   $ 4   $ 20,063    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 20,067  

Repurchase of common stock on
9/29/98   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      2,400    (50,280)   —      —      (50,280) 

Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (195,675)   (195,675) 
Balance, 12/31/98 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      2,640,490   $ 2,639   $ 299,763    2,400   $(50,280)  $ —     $ (518,693)  $ (266,571) 

Issuance of common stock
for cash on 9/10/99   —      —      —      —      52,506    53    149,947    —      —      —      —      150,000  

Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (1,306,778)   (1,306,778) 
Balance, 12/31/99 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      2,692,996   $ 2,692   $ 449,710    2,400   $(50,280)  $ —     $ (1,825,471)  $ (1,423,349) 

Issuance of common stock
for cash on 1/18/00   —      —      —      —      53,583    54    1,869    —      —      —      —      1,923  

Issuance of common stock
for services on 3/1/00   —      —      —      —      68,698    69    (44)   —      —      —      —      25  

Issuance of common stock
for services on 4/4/00   —      —      —      —      27,768    28    (18)   —      —      —      —      10  

Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (807,076)   (807,076) 
Balance, 12/31/00 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      2,843,045   $ 2,843   $ 451,517    2,400   $(50,280)  $ —     $ (2,632,547)  $ (2,228,467) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   

Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit 
During

Development
Stage  

 
Total

Shareholders

’ 
Equity
(Deficit)   

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount    

Issuance of common stock
for services on 7/1/01   —     $ —      —     $ —      156,960   $ 157   $ (101)   —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 56  

Issuance of common stock
for services on 7/1/01   —      —      —      —      125,000    125    (80)   —      —      —      —      45  

Issuance of common stock
for capitalization of
accrued salaries on
8/10/01   —      —      —      —      70,000    70    328,055    —      —      —      —      328,125  

Issuance of common stock
for conversion of
convertible debt on
8/10/01   —      —      —      —      1,750,000    1,750    1,609,596    —      —      —      —      1,611,346  

Issuance of common stock
for conversion of
convertible shareholder
notes payable on
8/10/01   —      —      —      —      208,972    209    135,458    —      —      —      —      135,667  

Issuance of common stock
for bridge financing on
8/10/01   —      —      —      —      300,000    300    (192)   —      —      —      —      108  

Retirement of treasury stock
on 8/10/01   —      —      —      —      —      —      (50,280)   (2,400)   50,280    —      —      —    

Issuance of common stock
for net assets of Gemini
on 8/10/01   —      —      —      —      3,942,400    3,942    (3,942)   —      —      —      —      —    

Issuance of common stock
for net assets of AFH on
8/10/01   —      —      —      —      3,899,547    3,900    (3,900)   —      —      —      —      —    

Issuance of common stock
for cash on 8/10/01   —      —      —      —      1,346,669    1,347    2,018,653    —      —      —      —      2,020,000  

Transaction and fund
raising expenses on
8/10/01   —      —      —      —      —      —      (48,547)   —      —      —      —      (48,547) 

Issuance of common stock
for services on 8/10/01   —      —      —      —      60,000    60    —      —      —      —      —      60  

Issuance of common stock
for cash on 8/28/01   —      —      —      —      26,667    27    39,973    —      —      —      —      40,000  

Issuance of common stock
for services on 9/30/01   —      —      —      —      314,370    314    471,241    —      —      —      —      471,555  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   

Additional
Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   
Accumulated

Other
Comprehensive

Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit 
During

Development
Stage  

 
Total

Shareholders

’ 
Equity
(Deficit)   

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount    

Number of
Shares   Amount    

Uncompensated contribution of
services—3rd quarter   —     $ —      —     $ —      —     $ —     $ 55,556    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 55,556  

Issuance of common stock for
services on 11/1/01   —      —      —      —      145,933    146    218,754    —      —      —      —      218,900  

Uncompensated contribution of
services—4th quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  

Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (1,652,004)   (1,652,004) 
Balance, 12/31/01 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      15,189,563   $ 15,190   $ 5,321,761    —     $ —     $ —     $ (4,284,551)  $ 1,052,400  
Uncompensated contribution of

services—1st quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash

on 4/26/02   905,000    905    —      —      —      —      2,817,331    —      —      —      —      2,818,236  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash

on 5/16/02   890,250    890    —      —      —      —      2,772,239    —      —      —      —      2,773,129  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash

on 5/31/02   795,000    795    —      —      —      —      2,473,380    —      —      —      —      2,474,175  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash

on 6/28/02   229,642    230    —      —      —      —      712,991    —      —      —      —      713,221  
Uncompensated contribution of

services—2nd quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash

on 7/15/02   75,108    75    —      —      —      —      233,886    —      —      —      —      233,961  
Issuance of common stock for cash

on 8/1/02   —      —      —      —      38,400    38    57,562    —      —      —      —      57,600  
Issuance of warrants for services on

9/06/02   —      —      —      —      —      —      103,388    —      —      —      —      103,388  
Uncompensated contribution of

services—3rd quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  
Uncompensated contribution of

services—4th quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  
Issuance of preferred stock for

dividends   143,507    144    —      —      —      —      502,517    —      —      —      (502,661)   —    
Deemed dividend associated with

beneficial conversion of preferred
stock   —      —      —      —      —      —      10,178,944    —      —      —      (10,178,944)   —    

Comprehensive income:             
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (5,433,055)   (5,433,055) 

Other comprehensive income, foreign
currency translation adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      13,875    —      13,875  

Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (5,419,180) 
Balance, 12/31/02 (Predecessor)   3,038,507   $ 3,039    —     $ —      15,227,963   $15,228   $25,573,999    —     $ —     $ 13,875   $ (20,399,211)  $ 5,206,930  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

 
Total

Shareholders
’

Equity
(Deficit)   

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount    

Issuance of common stock for cash on
1/7/03   —     $ —      —     $ —      61,600   $ 62   $ 92,338    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 92,400  

Issuance of common stock for patent
pending acquisition on 3/31/03   —      —      —      —      100,000    100    539,900    —      —      —      —      540,000  

Cancellation of common stock on 3/31/03   —      —      —      —      (79,382)   (79)   (119,380)   —      —      —      —      (119,459) 
Uncompensated contribution of services

—1st quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash on

5/9/03   —      —      110,250    110    —      —      2,773,218    —      —      —      —      2,773,328  
Issuance of preferred stock for cash on

5/16/03   —      —      45,500    46    —      —      1,145,704    —      —      —      —      1,145,750  
Conversion of preferred stock into common

stock—2nd qtr   (70,954)   (72)   —      —      147,062    147    40,626    —      —      —      —      40,701  
Conversion of warrants into common stock

—2nd qtr   —      —      —      —      114,598    114    (114)   —      —      —      —      —    
Uncompensated contribution of services

—2nd quarter   —      —      —      —      —      —      100,000    —      —      —      —      100,000  
Issuance of preferred stock dividends   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (1,087,200)   (1,087,200) 
Deemed dividend associated with beneficial

conversion of preferred stock   —      —      —      —      —      —      1,244,880    —      —      —      (1,244,880)   —    
Issuance of common stock for cash—3

qtr   —      —      —      —      202,500    202    309,798    —      —      —      —      310,000  
Issuance of common stock for cash on

8/27/03   —      —      —      —      3,359,331    3,359    18,452,202    —      —      —      —      18,455,561  
Conversion of preferred stock into common

stock—3  qtr   (2,967,553)   (2,967)   (155,750)   (156)   7,188,793    7,189    (82,875)   —      —      —      —      (78,809) 
Conversion of warrants into common stock

—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      212,834    213    (213)   —      —      —      —      —    
Compensation expense on warrants issued

to non-employees   —      —      —      —      —      —      412,812    —      —      —      —      412,812  
Issuance of common stock for cash—4

qtr   —      —      —      —      136,500    137    279,363    —      —      —      —      279,500  
Conversion of warrants into common stock

—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      393    —      —      —      —      —      —      —    
Comprehensive income:             
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (11,268,294)   (11,268,294) 
Other comprehensive income, foreign

currency translation adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      360,505    —      360,505  
Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (10,907,789) 
Balance, 12/31/03 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      26,672,192   $26,672   $50,862,258    —     $ —     $ 374,380   $(33,999,585)  $ 17,263,725  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

 Total
Shareholders’

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Conversion of warrants into common
stock—1  qtr   —     $ —      —     $ —      78,526   $ 79   $ (79)   —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —    

Issuance of common stock for cash in
connection with exercise of stock
options—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      15,000    15    94,985    —      —      —      —      95,000  

Issuance of common stock for cash in
connection with exercise of warrants
—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      4,000    4    7,716    —      —      —      —      7,720  

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees
and directors—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      1,410,498    —      —      —      —      1,410,498  

Issuance of common stock in connection
with exercise of warrants—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      51,828    52    (52)   —      —      —      —      —    

Issuance of common stock for cash—2
qtr   —      —      —      —      7,200,000    7,200    56,810,234    —      —      —      —      56,817,434  

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees
and directors—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      143,462    —      —      —      —      143,462  

Issuance of common stock in connection
with exercise of warrants—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      7,431    7    (7)   —      —      —      —      —    

Issuance of common stock for cash in
connection with exercise of stock
options—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      110,000    110    189,890    —      —      —      —      190,000  

Issuance of common stock for cash in
connection with exercise of warrants
—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      28,270    28    59,667    —      —      —      —      59,695  

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees
and directors—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      229,133    —      —      —      —      229,133  

Issuance of common stock in connection
with exercise of warrants—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      27,652    28    (28)   —      —      —      —      —    

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees,
employees, and directors—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      127,497    —      —      —      —      127,497  

Purchase of treasury stock—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      4,000,000    (25,974,000)   —      —      (25,974,000) 
Comprehensive income:             
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (21,474,469)   (21,474,469) 
Other comprehensive income, foreign

currency translation adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      79,725    —      79,725  
Other comprehensive income, net

unrealized gain on available- for-sale
investments   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      10,005    —      10,005  

Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (21,384,739) 
Balance, 12/31/04 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      34,194,899   $ 34,195   $109,935,174    4,000,000   $(25,974,000)  $ 464,110   $(55,474,054)  $28,985,425  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

 
Total

Shareholders
’

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Issuance of common stock for cash in
connection with exercise of stock
options—1  qtr   —     $ —      —     $ —      25,000   $ 25   $ 74,975    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 75,000  

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees—
1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      33,565    —      —      —      —      33,565  

Conversion of warrants into common
stock—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      27,785    28    (28)   —      —      —      —      —    

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees—
2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      (61,762)   —      —      —      —      (61,762) 

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees—
3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      (137,187)   —      —      —      —      (137,187) 

Conversion of warrants into common
stock—3 qtr   —      —      —      —      12,605    12    (12)   —      —      —      —      —    

Compensation expense on options and
warrants issued to non-employees—
4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      18,844    —      —      —      —      18,844  

Compensation expense on acceleration of
options—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      14,950    —      —      —      —      14,950  

Compensation expense on restricted
stock award issued to employee—
4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      606    —      —      —      —      606  

Conversion of predecessor company
shares   —      —      —      —      94    —      —      —      —      —      —      —    

Comprehensive loss:             
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (35,777,584)   (35,777,584) 
Other comprehensive loss, foreign

currency translation adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (1,372,600)   —      (1,372,600) 
Foreign exchange gain on substantial

liquidation of foreign entity            133,851     133,851  
Other comprehensive loss, net unrealized

gain on available-for-sale
investments   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (10,005)   —      (10,005) 

Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (37,026,338) 
Balance, 12/31/05 (Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      34,260,383   $ 34,260   $109,879,125    4,000,000   $(25,974,000)  $ (784,644)  $(91,251,638)  $ (8,096,897) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

    Total
Shareholders’

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Noncontrolling
Interest   

Compensation expense on
options and warrants
issued to non-
employees—1  qtr   —     $ —      —     $ —      —     $ —     $ 42,810    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 42,810  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      46,336    —      —      —      —      —      46,336  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock issued
to employees—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      128,750    129    23,368    —      —      —      —      —      23,497  

Compensation expense on
options and warrants
issued to non-
employees—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      96,177    —      —      —      —      —      96,177  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      407,012    —      —      —      —      —      407,012  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock to
employees—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      4,210    —      —      —      —      —      4,210  

Cancellation of unvested
restricted stock—2
qtr   —      —      —      —      (97,400)   (97)   97    —      —      —      —      —      —    

Issuance of common
stock for cash in
connection with
exercise of stock
options—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      10,000    10    16,490    —      —      —      —      —      16,500  

Compensation expense on
options and warrants
issued to non-
employees—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      25,627    —      —      —      —      —      25,627  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      389,458    —      —      —      —      —      389,458  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock to
employees—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      3,605    —      —      —      —      —      3,605  

Issuance of common
stock for cash in
connection with
exercise of stock
options—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      76,000    76    156,824    —      —      —      —      —      156,900  

Acquisition of Agera   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      2,182,505    2,182,505  
Compensation expense on

options and warrants
issued to non-
employees—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      34,772    —      —      —      —      —      34,772  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      390,547    —      —      —      —      —      390,547  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock to
employees—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      88    —      —      —      —      —      88  

Cancellation of unvested
restricted stock
award—4  qtr   —      —      —      —      (15,002)   (15)   15    —      —      —      —      —      —    

Comprehensive loss:              
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (35,821,406)   (78,132)   (35,899,538) 
Other comprehensive

gain, foreign currency
translation
adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      657,182    —      —      657,182  

Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (35,242,356) 
Balance 12/31/06

(Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      34,362,731   $ 34,363   $111,516,561    4,000,000   $(25,974,000)  $ (127,462)  $(127,073,044)  $ 2,104,373   $ (39,519,209) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

    
Total

Shareholders
’

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Noncontrolling
Interest   

Compensation expense on
options and warrants
issued to non-
employees—1  qtr   —     $ —      —     $ —      —     $ —     $ 39,742    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 39,742  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      448,067    —      —      —      —      —      448,067  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock issued
to employees—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      88    —      —      —      —      —      88  

Issuance of common
stock for cash in
connection with
exercise of stock
options—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      15,000    15    23,085    —      —      —      —      —      23,100  

Expense in connection
with modification of
employee stock
options —1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      1,178,483    —      —      —      —      —      1,178,483  

Compensation expense on
options and warrants
issued to non-
employees—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      39,981    —      —      —      —      —      39,981  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      462,363    —      —      —      —      —      462,363  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock issued
to employees—2
qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      88    —      —      —      —      —      88  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      478,795    —      —      —      —      —      478,795  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock issued
to employees—3  qtr  —      —      —      —      —      —      88    —      —      —      —      —      88  

Issuance of common
stock upon exercise of
warrants—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      492,613    493    893,811    —      —      —      —      —      894,304  

Issuance of common
stock for cash, net of
offering costs—3 qtr   —      —      —      —      6,767,647    6,767    13,745,400    —      —      —      —      —      13,752,167  

Issuance of common
stock for cash in
connection with
exercise of stock
options—3  qtr   —      —      —      —      1,666    2    3,164    —      —      —      —      —      3,166  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—4 qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      378,827    —      —      —      —      —      378,827  

Compensation expense on
restricted stock issued
to employees—4 qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      88    —      —      —      —      —      88  

Comprehensive loss:              
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (35,573,114)   (246,347)   (35,819,461) 
Other comprehensive gain,

foreign currency
translation
adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      846,388    —      —      846,388  

Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (34,973,073) 
Balance 12/31/07

(Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      41,639,657   $ 41,640   $129,208,631    4,000,000   $(25,974,000)  $ 718,926   $(162,646,158)  $ 1,858,026   $(56,792,935) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

    
Total

Shareholders
’

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Noncontrolling
Interest   

Compensation expense on
vested options related
to non-employees—
1  qtr   —     $ —      —     $ —      —     $ —     $ 44,849    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 44,849  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors —1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      151,305    —      —      —      —      —      151,305  

Expense in connection
with modification of
employee stock
options —1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      1,262,815    —      —      —      —      —      1,262,815  

Retirement of restricted
stock   —      —      —      —      (165)   (1)   —      —      —      —      —      —      (1) 

Compensation expense on
vested options related
to non-employees—
2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      62,697    —      —      —      —      —      62,697  

Compensation expense on
option awards

issued to employees and
directors—2  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      193,754    —      —      —      —      —      193,754  

Compensation expense on
vested options related
to non-employees—
3  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      166,687    —      —      —      —      —      166,687  

Compensation expense on
option awards

issued to employees and
directors—3rd qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      171,012    —      —      —      —      —      171,012  

Compensation expense on
vested options related
to non-employees
—4th qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      (86,719)   —      —      —      —      —      (86,719) 

Compensation expense on
option awards issued
to employees and
directors—4th qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      166,196    —      —      —      —      —      166,196  

Comprehensive loss:              
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (31,411,179)   (1,680,676)   (33,091,855) 
Reclassification of foreign

exchange gain on
substantial
liquidation of foreign
entities   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (2,152,569)   —      —      (2,152,569) 

Other comprehensive
gain, foreign currency
translation
adjustment   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      1,433,643    —      —      1,433,643  

Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (33,810,781) 
Balance 12/31/08

(Predecessor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      41,639,492   $ 41,639   $131,341,227    4,000,000   $(25,974,000)  $ —     $(194,057,337)  $ 177,350   $(88,471,121) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Series A

Preferred Stock   
Series B

Preferred Stock   Common Stock   
Additional

Paid-In
Capital  

 Treasury Stock   Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)  

 
Accumulated

Deficit
During

Development
Stage  

    
Total

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount    

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Noncontrolling
Interest   

Compensation
expense on vested
options related to
non-employees—
1  qtr   —     $ —      —     $ —      —     $ —     $ 1,746    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 1,746  

Compensation
expense on option
awards issued to
employees and
directors—1  qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      138,798    —      —      —      —      —      138,798  

Conversion of debt
into common
stock—1st qtr
2009   —      —      —      —      37,564    38    343,962    —      —      —      —      —      344,000  

Compensation
expense on option
awards issued to
employees and
directors—2nd
qtr   —      —      —      —      —      —      112,616    —      —      —      —      —      112,616  

Conversion of debt
into common
stock – 2nd qtr
2009   —      —      —      —      1,143,324    1,143    10,468,857    —      —      —      —      —      10,470,000  

Compensation
expense on option
awards issued to
employees and
directors—2
months ended
8/31/09   —      —      —      —      —      —      35,382    —      —      —      —      —      35,382  

Balance of expense
due to
cancellation of
options issued to
employees and
directors in
bankruptcy—2
months ended
8/31/09   —      —      —      —      —      —      294,912    —      —      —      —      —      294,912  

Comprehensive
income:              

Net income   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      65,721,531    205,632    65,927,163  
Comprehensive

income   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      65,927,163  
Balance 8/31/09

(Predecessor)   —      —      —      —      42,820,380   $ 42,820   $ 142,737,500    4,000,000   $(25,974,000)  $ —     $(128,335,806)  $ 382,982   $ (11,146,504) 
Cancellation of

Predecessor
common stock
and fresh start
adjustments   —      —      —      —      (42,820,380)   (42,820)   (150,426,331)   (4,000,000)   25,974,000    —      —      —      (124,495,151) 

Elimination of
Predecessor
accumulated
deficit and
accumulated
other
comprehensive
loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      128,335,806    —      128,335,806  

Balance 9/1/09
(Predecessor)   —      —      —      —      —      —      (7,688,831)   —      —      —      —      382,982    (7,305,849) 

Issuance of
11.4 million
shares of
common stock
in connection with
emergence from
Chapter 11   —      —      —      —      11,400,000    11,400    5,460,600    —      —      —      —      —      5,472,000  

Balance 9/1/09
(Successor)   —      —      —      —      11,400,000    11,400    (2,228,231)   —      —      —      —      382,982    (1,833,849) 

Issuance of
2.7 million
shares of
common stock
in connection with
the exit financing   —      —      —      —      2,666,666    2,667    1,797,333    —      —      —      —      —      1,800,000  

Issuance of common
stock on Oct. 28,
2009   —      —      —      —      25,501    25    58,627    —      —      —      —      —      58,652  

Compensation
expense on shares

st

st



issued to
management   —      —      —      —      600,000    600    167,400    —      —      —      —      —      168,000  

Compensation
expense on option
awards issued to
directors   —      —      —      —      —      —      326,838    —      —      —      —      —      326,838  

Compensation
expense on option
awards issued to
non-employees   —      —      —      —      —      —      386,380    —      —      —      —      —      386,380  

Comprehensive loss:              
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (5,049,999)   15,493    (5,034,506) 
Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (5,034,506) 
Balance 12/31/09

(Successor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      14,692,167   $ 14,692   $ 508,347    —     $ —     $ —     $ (5,049,999)  $ 398,475   $ (4,128,485) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Noncontrolling
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Total

Equity
(Deficit)    

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount   

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Issuance of 5.1 million
shares of common stock
in March 2010, net of
issuance costs of
$338,100   —     $ —      —     $ —      5,076,664   $ 5,077   $ 3,464,323    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 3,469,400  

Warrant fair value associated
with common shares
issued in March 2010   —      —      —      —      —      —      (2,890,711)   —      —      —      —      —      (2,890,711) 

Compensation expense on
shares issued to
management—1Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      18,000    —      —      —      —      —      18,000  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
directors/employees-
1Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      324,377    —      —      —      —      —      324,377  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
non-employees-1Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      18,391    —      —      —      —      —      18,391  

Compensation expense on
shares issued to
management—2Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      18,000    —      —      —      —      —      18,000  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
directors/employees-
2Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      222,011    —      —      —      —      —      222,011  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
non-employees-2Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      33,206    —      —      —      —      —      33,206  

Compensation expense on
shares issued to
management—3Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      18,000    —      —      —      —      —      18,000  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
directors/employees-
3Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      183,231    —      —      —      —      —      183,231  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
non-employees-3Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      7,724    —      —      —      —      —      7,724  

Compensation expense on
shares issued to
management—4Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      18,000    —      —      —      —      —      18,000  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
directors/employees-
4Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      104,094    —      —      —      —      —      104,094  

Compensation expense on
option awards issued to
non-employees-4Q10   —      —      —      —      —      —      27,507    —      —      —      —      —      27,507  

Preferred Stock Series A
conversion   —      —      —      —      606,667    607    363,393    —      —      —      —      —      364,000  

Comprehensive loss:              
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (12,931,531)   51,898    (12,879,633) 
Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (12,879,633) 
Balance 12/31/10 (Successor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      20,375,498   $ 20,376   $ 2,437,893    —     $ —     $ —     $ (17,981,530)  $ 450,373   $(15,072,888) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total

Equity
(Deficit)    
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Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Number of
Shares   Amount  

Subscription
Receivable    

Number of
Shares   Amount     

Compensation expense on shares
issued to management—1Q11   —     $ —      —     $ —      —     $ —     $ —     $ 18,000    —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ —     $ 18,000  

Compensation expense on option
awards issued to
directors/employees-1Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      995,551    —      —      —      —      —      995,551  

Compensation expense on option
awards issued to non-employees-
1Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      38,203    —      —      —      —      —      38,203  

Preferred Stock warrants exercised
—1Q11   —      —      —      —      289,599    289    —      241,542    —      —      —      —      —      241,831  

Preferred Stock Series A and B
converted— 1Q11   —      —      —      —      3,894,000    3,894    —      323,919    —      —      —      —      —      327,813  

Compensation expense on shares
issued to management—2Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      18,000    —      —      —      —      —      18,000  

Compensation expense on option
awards issued to
directors/employees-2Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      1,082,503    —      —      —      —      —      1,082,503  

Compensation expense on option
awards issued to non-employees-
2Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      250,473    —      —      —      —      —      250,473  

Preferred Stock warrants exercised
—2Q11   —      —      —      —      7,230,103    7,230    —      6,065,727    —      —      —      —      —      6,072,957  

Preferred Stock Series A, B and D
converted—2Q11   —      —      —      —      11,554,000    11,554    —      4,546,768    —      —      —      —      —      4,558,322  

Issuance of 1.9 million shares of
common stock and 0.2 warrants
in June 2011, net of issuance costs
of $0.1 million   —      —      —      —      1,908,889    1,909    —      1,578,651    —      —      —      —      —      1,580,560  

Stock option exercised   —      —      —      —      246,141    246    —      (246)   —      —      —      —      —      —    
Compensation expense on shares

issued to management—3Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      12,000    —      —      —      —      —      12,000  
Compensation expense on option

awards issued to
directors/employees/consultants-
3Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      225,235    —      —      —      —      —      225,235  

Preferred Stock warrants exercised
—3Q11   —      —      —      —      890,564    891    —      944,485    —      —      —      —      —      945,376  

Preferred Stock Series A, B and D
converted—3Q11   —      —      —      —      7,480,000    7,480    —      3,546,584    —      —      —      —      —      3,554,064  

Issuance of 41.4 million shares of
common stock and 15.7
warrants in August 2011, net of
issuance costs of $1.6 million   —      —      —      —      41,409,461    41,409    (550,020)   21,096,029    —      —      —      —      —      20,587,418  

Compensation expense on option
awards issued to
directors/employees/consultants-
4Q11   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      259,985    —      —      —      —      —      259,985  

Preferred Stock Series D converted
—4Q11   —      —      —      —      400,000    400    —      53,037    —      —      —      —      —      53,437  

Comprehensive loss:               
Net loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (31,367,550)   18,209    (31,349,341) 
Comprehensive loss   —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      —      (31,349,341) 
Balance 12/31/11 (Successor)   —     $ —      —     $ —      95,678,255   $ 95,678   $ (550,020)  $43,734,339    —     $ —     $ —     $ (49,349,080)  $ 468,582   $ (5,600,501) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Fibrocell Science, Inc.
(A Development Stage Company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
 

 

  Successor   Successor   Successor      Predecessor  

  

Year ended
December 31,

2011   

Year ended
December 31,

2010   

Cumulative
period from

September 1,
2009 (date of
inception) to

December 31,
2011       

Cumulative
period from

December 31,
1995 (date of
inception) to
August 31,

2009  
Cash flows from operating activities:         

Net loss   $ (31,349,341)  $(12,879,633)  $ (49,263,480)     $ (117,121,644) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating

activities:         
Reorganization items, net    —      —      72,477       (74,648,976) 
Expense related to stock-based compensation    2,899,950    992,541    4,773,709       10,608,999  
Warrant expense    4,762,694    465,232    5,547,010       —    
Derivative revaluation expense    5,451,518    —      5,451,518       —    
Uncompensated contribution of services    —      —      —         755,556  
Depreciation and amortization    157,756    8,085    165,841       9,091,990  
Provision for doubtful accounts    17,701    (7,818)   (36,736)      337,810  
Provision for excessive and/or obsolete inventory    (45,505)   (60,366)   (94,207)      259,427  
Amortization of debt issue costs    —      —      —         4,107,067  
Amortization of debt discounts on investments    —      —      —         (508,983) 
Loss on disposal or impairment of property and equipment    —      —      —         17,668,477  
Foreign exchange gain on substantial liquidation of foreign

entity    (2,222)   (5,072)   (9,908)      (2,256,408) 
Change in operating assets and liabilities, excluding effects of

acquisition:         
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable    (3,524)   47,686    67,706       (91,496) 
Decrease (increase) in other receivables    (947)   (4,033)   (240)      218,978  
Decrease (increase) in inventory    38,096    27,459    96,478       (455,282) 
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses    (437,367)   42,799    (639,473)      34,341  
Decrease (increase) in other assets    —      —      4,120       71,000  
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable    802,920    851,102    1,761,644       57,648  
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses, liabilities subject

to compromise and other liabilities    816,083    1,256,140    1,646,429       3,311,552  
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue    55,400    —      55,400       (50,096) 
Net cash used in operating activities    (16,836,788)   (9,265,878)   (30,401,712)      (148,610,040) 

Cash flows from investing activities:         
Acquisition of Agera, net of cash acquired    —      —      —         (2,016,520) 
Purchase of property and equipment    (1,570,105)   (29,674)   (1,599,779)      (25,515,170) 
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment, net of selling costs    —      —      —         6,542,434  
Purchase of investments    —      —      —         (152,998,313) 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments    —      —      —         153,507,000  

Net cash used in investing activities    (1,570,105)   (29,674)   (1,599,779)      (20,480,569) 
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Proceeds from convertible debt    —      —      —         91,450,000  
Offering costs associated with the issuance of convertible debt    —      —      —         (3,746,193) 
Offering costs associated with the issuance of debt    (100,000)   —      (100,000)      —    
Proceeds from notes payable to shareholders, net    —      —      —         135,667  
Proceeds from the issuance of redeemable preferred stock series A, net    —      —      2,870,000       12,931,800  
Proceeds from the issuance of redeemable preferred stock series B, net    193,200    4,019,570    4,212,770       —    
Proceeds from the issuance of redeemable preferred stock series D, net    5,642,780    1,509,400    7,152,180       —    
Proceeds from the exercise of warrants    2,418,646    —      2,418,646       —    
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, net    22,167,978    3,469,400    27,437,378       93,753,857  
Costs associated with secured loan and debtor-in-possession loan    —      —      —         (360,872) 
Proceeds from secured loan    —      —      —         500,471  
Proceeds from debtor-in-possession loan    —      —      —         2,750,000  
Payments on insurance loan    (80,578)   (63,683)   (166,152)      (79,319) 
Principal payments on 12.5% note payable    (1,283,321)   —      (1,283,321)      —    
Cash dividends paid on preferred stock    (623,096)   (139,750)   (762,846)      (1,087,200) 
Cash paid for fractional shares of preferred stock    —      —      —         (38,108) 
Merger and acquisition expenses    —      —      —         (48,547) 
Repurchase of common stock  —     —     —     (26,024,280) 



Repurchase of common stock    —      —      —         (26,024,280) 
Net cash provided by financing activities    28,335,609    8,794,937    41,778,655       170,137,276  

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash balances    2,541    5,865    11,555       (36,391) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    9,931,257    (494,750)   9,788,719       1,010,276  
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period    867,738    1,362,488    1,010,276       —    
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period   $ 10,798,995   $ 867,738   $10,798,995      $ 1,010,276  
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         

Cash paid for interest   $ 435,096   $ —     $ 435,096      $ 12,715,283  
Non-cash investing and financing activities:         

Predecessor deemed dividend associated with beneficial conversion of
preferred stock   $ —     $ —     $ —        $ 11,423,824  

Predecessor preferred stock dividend    —      —      —         1,589,861  
Successor accrued preferred stock dividend    487,421    191,417    487,421       —    
Predecessor uncompensated contribution of services    —      —      —         755,556  
Predecessor common stock issued for intangible assets    —      —      —         540,000  
Predecessor common stock issued in connection with conversion of

debt    —      —      —         10,814,000  
Predecessor equipment acquired through capital lease    —      —      —         167,154  
Successor/Predecessor financing of insurance premiums    150,251    97,065    328,833       87,623  
Successor issuance of notes payable    —      —      —         6,000,060  
Successor common stock issued in connection with reorganization    —      —      —         5,472,000  
Successor intangible assets    —      —      —         6,340,656  
Successor deferred tax liability in connection with fresh-start    —      —      —         2,500,000  
Elimination of Predecessor common stock and fresh start adjustment    —      —      —         14,780,320  
Successor subscription receivable    550,020    210,000    550,020       —    
Successor accrued warrant liability    4,994,307    7,071,010    12,381,509       —    
Successor conversion of preferred stock Series A balance into

common stock    1,202,989    —      1,202,989       —    
Successor conversion of preferred stock derivative balance into

common stock    7,290,647    —      7,654,647       —    
Successor cashless exercise of warrants recorded previously as a

liability    4,841,519    —      4,841,519       —    
Successor accrued derivative liability    252,318    2,120,360    2,372,678       —    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Fibrocell Science, Inc.
(A Development Stage Company)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1—Business and Organization
Fibrocell Science, Inc. (“Fibrocell” or the “Company” or the “Successor”) is the parent company of Fibrocell Technologies (“Fibrocell Tech”) and Agera

Laboratories, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Agera”). Fibrocell Tech is the parent company of Isolagen Europe Limited, a company organized under the laws of
the United Kingdom (“Isolagen Europe”), Isolagen Australia Pty Limited, a company organized under the laws of Australia (“Isolagen Australia”), and
Isolagen International, S.A., a company organized under the laws of Switzerland (“Isolagen Switzerland”). Operations in the foreign subsidiaries have been
substantially liquidated.

The Company is an aesthetic and therapeutic development stage biotechnology company focused on developing novel skin and tissue rejuvenation
products. The Company’s clinical development product candidates are designed to improve the appearance of skin injured by the effects of aging, sun
exposure, acne and burns with a patient’s own, or autologous, fibroblast cells produced in the Company’s proprietary Fibrocell Process. The Company’s lead
product, LAVIV™ (LAVIV), is the first and only personalized aesthetic cell therapy approved by the FDA for the improvement of the appearance of moderate
to severe nasolabial fold wrinkles in adults. The Company also markets an advanced skin care line with broad application in core target markets through its
consolidated subsidiary, Agera. The Company owns 57% of the outstanding shares of Agera.

Note 2—Basis of Presentation
As of September 1, 2009, the Company adopted fresh-start accounting in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 852-10,

Reorganizations. The Company selected September 1, 2009, as the date to effectively apply fresh-start accounting based on the absence of any material
contingencies at the August 27, 2009 confirmation hearing and the immaterial impact of transactions between August 27, 2009 and September 1, 2009. The
adoption of fresh-start accounting resulted in the Company becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes.

Accordingly, the financial statements prior to September 1, 2009 are not comparable with the financial statements for periods on or after September 1,
2009. References to “Successor” or “Successor Company” refer to the Company on or after September 1, 2009, after giving effect to the cancellation of
Isolagen, Inc. common stock issued prior to the Effective Date, the issuance of new Fibrocell Science, Inc. common stock in accordance with the Plan, and the
application of fresh-start accounting. References to “Predecessor” or “Predecessor Company” refer to the Company prior to September 1, 2009.

Note 3— Development-Stage Risks and Going Concern
The Company emerged from Bankruptcy in September 2009 and continues to operate as a going concern. At December 31, 2011, the Company had

cash and cash equivalents of approximately $10.8 million and working capital of $2.9 million.

The Company will need to access the capital markets in the near future in order to fund future operations. There is no guarantee that any such required
financing will be available on terms satisfactory to the Company or available at all. These matters create uncertainty relating to its ability to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of assets or
liabilities that might result from the outcome of these uncertainties.

Further, if the Company raises additional cash resources in the near future, it may be raised in contemplation of or in connection with bankruptcy. In
the event of a bankruptcy, it is likely that its common stock and common stock equivalents will become worthless and our creditors will receive significantly
less than what is owed to them.
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Through December 31, 2011, the Company has been primarily engaged in developing its initial product technology. In the course of its development
activities, the Company has sustained losses and expects such losses to continue through at least 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the
Company financed its operations primarily through its existing cash received from external financings, but as discussed above it now requires additional
financing. There is substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s ability to complete additional offerings is dependent on the state of the debt and/or equity markets at the time of any proposed offering,
and such market’s reception of the Company and the offering terms. The Company’s ability to complete an offering is also dependent on the status of its FDA
regulatory milestones and its clinical trials. There is no assurance that capital in any form would be available to the Company, and if available, on terms and
conditions that are acceptable.

As a result of the conditions discussed above, and in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), there exists substantial
doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and its ability to continue as a going concern is contingent, among other things, upon its
ability to secure additional adequate financing or capital in the near future. If the Company does not obtain additional funding, or does not anticipate additional
funding, in the near future, it will likely enter into bankruptcy and/or cease operations. Further, if it does raise additional cash resources in the near future, it
may be raised in contemplation of or in connection with bankruptcy. If the Company enters into bankruptcy, it is likely that its common stock and common
stock equivalents will become worthless and its creditors, including preferred stock, will receive significantly less than what is owed to them.

Note 4—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts in the consolidated financial statements and notes. In addition, management’s assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
involves the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash inflows and outflows. Actual results may differ materially from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk
As of December 31, 2011, the Company maintains the majority of its cash primarily with one major U.S. domestic bank. All of our non-interest

bearing cash balances were fully insured at December 31, 2011 due to a temporary federal program in effect from December 31, 2010 through December 31,
2012. Under the program, there is no limit to the amount of insurance for eligible accounts. Beginning 2013, insurance coverage will revert to $250,000 per
depositor at each financial institution, and our non-interest bearing cash balances may again exceed federally insured limits. The terms of these deposits are on
demand to minimize risk. The Company has not incurred losses related to these deposits. Cash and cash equivalents of less than $0.1 million, related to
Agera and the Company’s Swiss subsidiary is maintained in two separate financial institutions. The Company invests these funds primarily in demand
deposit accounts.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts related to its accounts receivable that have been deemed to have a high risk of collectability.

Management reviews its accounts receivable on a monthly basis to determine if any receivables will potentially be uncollectible. One foreign customer
represents 85% and 88% of accounts receivable, net, at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Management analyzes historical collection trends and
changes in its customer payment patterns, customer
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concentration, and creditworthiness when evaluating the adequacy of its allowance for doubtful accounts. In its overall allowance for doubtful accounts, the
Company includes any receivable balances that are determined to be uncollectible. Based on the information available, management believes the allowance for
doubtful accounts is adequate; however, actual write-offs might exceed the recorded allowance.

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $46,981 and $29,280 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Inventory
Inventories are determined at the lower of cost or market value with cost determined under specific identification and on the first-in-first-out method.

Inventories consist of raw materials and finished goods. At December 31, 2011, Agera’s inventory of $0.3 million consisted of $0.1 million of raw materials
and $0.2 million of finished goods. At December 31, 2010, Agera’s inventory of $0.3 million consisted of $0.2 million of raw materials and $0.1 million of
finished goods.

Property and equipment
Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Generally, depreciation and amortization for financial

reporting purposes is provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three years, except for leasehold improvements which are amortized
using the straight-line method over the remaining lease term or the life of the asset, whichever is shorter. The cost of repairs and maintenance is charged as an
expense as incurred.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are research and development assets related to the Company’s primary study that was recognized upon emergence from bankruptcy.

The portion of the reorganization value which was attributed to identified intangible assets was $6,340,656. This value is related to research and development
assets that are not subject to amortization. In accordance with ASC 805-20, Business Combinations, Identifiable Assets and Liabilities, and Any
Noncontrolling Interest, this amount is reported as intangibles in the consolidated balance sheets, and is not being amortized.

Intangibles are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
impairment test consists of a comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset to its carrying amount. There was no impairment of the intangible assets as of
December 31, 2011.

Revenue recognition
The Company recognizes revenue over the period the service is performed in accordance with ASC 605, Revenue Recognition (“ASC 605”). In general,

ASC 605 requires that four basic criteria must be met before revenue can be recognized: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has
occurred or services rendered, (3) the fee is fixed and determinable and (4) collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of Agera’s products is recognized upon transfer of title, which is upon shipment of the product to the customer. The Company
believes that the requirements of ASC 605 are met when the ordered product is shipped, as the risk of loss transfers to our customer at that time, the fee is
fixed and determinable and collection is reasonably assured. Any advanced payments are deferred until shipment.

Shipping and handling costs
Agera charges its customers for shipping and handling costs. Such charges to customers are presented net of the costs of shipping and handling, as

selling, general and administrative expense, and are not significant to the consolidated statements of operations.
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Advertising cost
Agera advertising costs are expensed as incurred and include the costs of public relations and certain marketing related activities. These costs are

included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Research and development expenses
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and include salaries and benefits, costs paid to third-party contractors to perform research,

conduct clinical trials, develop and manufacture drug materials and delivery devices, and a portion of facilities cost. Research and development costs also
include costs to develop manufacturing, cell collection and logistical process improvements.

Clinical trial costs are a significant component of research and development expenses and include costs associated with third-party contractors.
Invoicing from third-party contractors for services performed can lag several months. The Company accrues the costs of services rendered in connection with
third-party contractor activities based on its estimate of management fees, site management and monitoring costs and data management costs. Actual clinical
trial costs may differ from estimated clinical trial costs and are adjusted for in the period in which they become known.

Other Income, Net
In November 2010, we received one grant totaling $0.2 million under the Qualified Therapeutic Discovery Project Grants Program. The Qualified

Therapeutic Discovery Project Grants Program was included in the healthcare reform legislation, and established a one-time pool of $1 billion for grants to
small biotechnology companies developing novel therapeutics which show potential to: (a) result in new therapies that either treat areas of unmet medical need,
or prevent, detect, or treat chronic or acute diseases and conditions; (b) reduce long-term health care costs in the United States; or (c) significantly advance the
goal of curing cancer within a the 30-year period. There are no matching funding requirements or other requirements necessary to receive the funding.

Warrant Liability
Certain warrants are measured at fair value and liability-classified under ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, (“ASC 815”) because the warrants

contain “down-round protection” and therefore, do not meet the scope exception for treatment as a derivative under ASC 815. Since “down-round protection” is
not an input into the calculation of the fair value of the warrants, the warrants cannot be considered indexed to the Company’s own stock which is a
requirement for the scope exception as outlined under ASC 815. Effective December 31, 2011, we calculated the fair value of the warrants using the Monte
Carlo simulation valuation method due to the changes in the product status with the approval of LAVIV. Prior to December 31, 2011, the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model was utilized due to the assumptions present prior to the approval of LAVIV. The fair value is affected by changes in inputs to that model
including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, the contractual term, and the risk-free interest rate. We will continue to classify the fair value of the
warrants as a liability until the warrants are exercised, expire or are amended in a way that would no longer require these warrants to be classified as a liability.

Preferred Stock and Derivative Liability
The preferred stock has been classified within the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity in its consolidated balance sheets in accordance with

ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”) because any holder of Series A, B and D Preferred may require the Company to redeem all of
its Series A, B or D Preferred in the event of a triggering event which is outside of the control of the Company.
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The embedded conversion option for the Series A Preferred, Series B Preferred and Series D Preferred has been recorded as a derivative liability under
ASC 815 in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet and will be re-measured on the Company’s reporting dates. The fair value of the derivative liability is
determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and is affected by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock price
volatility, the expected term, and the risk-free interest rate. The Company will continue to classify the fair value of the embedded conversion option as a
liability until the preferred stock is converted into common stock.

Stock-based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based awards to employees using the fair value based method to determine compensation for all arrangements where

shares of stock or equity instruments are issued for compensation. In addition, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation to nonemployees in
accordance with the accounting guidance for equity instruments that are issued to other than employees. The Company uses a Black-Scholes option-pricing
model to determine the fair value of each option grant as of the date of grant for expense incurred. The Black-Scholes model requires inputs for risk-free
interest rate, dividend yield, volatility and expected lives of the options. Expected volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s competitor’s
stock since the The Company ceased trading as part of the bankruptcy and emerged as a new entity. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of
the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The expected lives for options granted represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstanding and is derived from the contractual terms of the options granted. The Company estimates future forfeitures of
options based upon expected forfeiture rates.

Income taxes
An asset and liability approach is used for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences

between income tax and financial reporting and principally relate to recognition of revenue and expenses in different periods for financial and tax accounting
purposes and are measured using currently enacted tax rates and laws. In addition, a deferred tax asset can be generated by net operating loss (“NOLs”)
carryover. If it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recognized.

In the event the Company is charged interest or penalties related to income tax matters, the Company would record such interest as interest expense and
would record such penalties as other expense in the consolidated statements of operations. No such charges have been incurred by the Company. As of
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company had no accrued interest related to uncertain tax positions.

At December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company has provided a full valuation allowance for the net deferred tax assets, the large majority
of which relates to the future benefit of loss carryovers. In addition, as a result of fresh-start accounting, the Company may be limited by section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Service Code. The tax years 2008 through 2011 remain open to examination by the major taxing jurisdictions to which we are subject. The
deferred tax liability at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, relates to the intangible assets recognized upon fresh-start accounting.

Income (loss) per share data
Basic income (loss) per share is calculated based on the weighted average common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted income per share

(“Diluted EPS’) also gives effect to the dilutive effect of stock options, warrants, restricted stock and convertible preferred stock calculated based on the
treasury stock method.
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The following potentially dilutive securities have been excluded from the computations of diluted weighted-average shares outstanding as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, as they would be anti-dilutive:
 

   
For the year ended

December 31,  
   2011    2010  
Shares of convertible preferred stock    7,282,000     18,342,000  
Shares underlying options outstanding    13,608,500     5,677,000  
Shares underlying warrants outstanding    49,135,602     31,178,295  
Unvested restricted stock    —       150,000  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying values of certain of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash equivalents and accounts payable approximates fair value due to

their short maturities. The fair values of the Company’s long-term obligations are based on assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future
cash flows and assumed discount rates reflecting varying degrees of risk. The carrying values of the Company’s long-term obligations approximate their fair
values.

The fair value of the reorganization value which applies in fresh-start accounting was estimated by applying the income approach and a market
approach. This fair value measurement is based on significant inputs that are not observable in the market and, therefore, represents a Level 3 measurement as
defined in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements.

Note 5—Inventory

Inventories consist of the following:
 

   December 31,    December 31,  
   2011    2010  
Raw materials   $ 102,220    $ 129,863  
Finished goods    164,128     129,076  
Total   $266,348    $258,939  

Note 6—Fair Value Measurements
The Company adopted the accounting guidance on fair value measurements for financial assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis. The

guidance requires fair value measurements be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:
 

 •  Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;
 

 
•  Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of

the asset or liability.
 

 
•  Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e., supported

by little or no market activity).
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The following fair value hierarchy table presents information about each major category of the Company’s liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:
 

   Fair value measurement using  

   

Quoted prices in
active markets

(Level 1)    

Significant
other

observable
inputs (Level 2)   

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)    Total  

At December 31, 2011         
Liabilities         
Warrant liability   $ —      $ —      $ 13,087,000    $ 13,087,000  
Derivative liability    —       —       533,549     533,549  

Total   $ —      $ —      $13,620,549    $13,620,549  
 

   Fair value measurement using  

   

Quoted prices in
active markets

(Level 1)    

Significant
other

observable
inputs (Level 2)   

Significant
unobservable

inputs
(Level 3)    Total  

At December 31, 2010         
Liabilities         
Warrant liability   $ —      $ —      $ 8,171,518    $ 8,171,518  
Derivative liability    —       —       2,120,360     2,120,360  

Total   $ —      $ —      $10,291,878    $10,291,878  

The reconciliation of warrant liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:
 

   
Warrant
Liability  

Balance at January 1, 2010   $ 635,276  
Issuance of additional warrants    7,071,010  
Change in fair value of warrant liability    465,232  

Balance at December 31, 2010   $ 8,171,518  
Issuance of additional warrants    4,994,307  
Exercise of warrants    (4,841,519) 
Change in fair value of warrant liability    4,762,694  

Balance at December 31, 2011   $ 13,087,000  

The fair value of the warrant liability is based on Level 3 inputs. For this liability, the Company developed its own assumptions that do not have
observable inputs or available market data to support the fair value. See Note 13 for further discussion of the warrant liability.

The reconciliation of derivative liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:
 

   
Derivative
Liability  

Balance at January 1, 2010   $ —    
Record fair value of derivative liability    2,120,360  

Balance at December 31, 2010    2,120,360  
Issuance of additional preferred stock and other    252,318  
Conversion of preferred stock    (7,290,647) 
Change in fair value of derivative liability    5,451,518  

Balance at December 31, 2011   $ 533,549  
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The fair value of the derivative liability is based on Level 3 inputs. For this liability, the Company developed its own assumptions that do not have
observable inputs or available market data to support the fair value. See Note 12 for further discussion of the derivative liability.

Note 7—Property and Equipment
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, property and equipment consisted of the following:

 

   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Lab equipment   $ 402,192   $ 18,685  
Computer equipment and software    137,251    10,989  
Leasehold improvements    298,781    —    
Construction-in-process    761,555    —    

   1,599,779    29,674  
Less: Accumulated depreciation    (165,841)   (8,085) 
Property and equipment, net   $ 1,433,938   $ 21,589  

Depreciation expense was $157,756 and $8,085 for the year ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Note 8—Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:
 

   
December 31,

2011    
December 31,

2010  
Accrued professional fees   $ 702,106    $ 413,384  
Accrued compensation    6,426     7,076  
Dividend on preferred stock payable    55,742     191,417  
Accrued other    161,867     177,605  
Accrued expenses   $ 926,141    $ 789,482  

Note 9—Debt
The Company’s outstanding debt at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 consists of $6.7 million and $7.3 million, respectively, of 12.5%

Unsecured Promissory Notes (“Notes”). Unpaid interest has been accreted to the principal at a rate of 15%. The Notes have the following features: (1) 12.5%
interest payable quarterly in cash or, at the Company’s option, 15% payable in kind by capitalizing such unpaid amount and adding it to the principal as of
the date it was due; (2) maturing June 1, 2012; (3) at any time prior to the maturity date, the Company may redeem any portion of the outstanding principal of
the Notes in cash at 125% of the stated face value of the Notes. There is a mandatory redemption feature that requires the Company to redeem all outstanding
Notes if: (1) the Company successfully completes a capital campaign raising in excess of $10 million; or (2) the Company is acquired by, or sells a majority
stake to, an outside party.

Since the Company consummated a single offering of at least $10 million in August 2011, certain note holders were entitled to a mandatory redemption
of the outstanding principal plus any interest payable in cash within three business days of the consummation. Approximately $1.7 million including interest
was paid in 2011 after consummation of the offering. The remaining note holders signed amendments to their notes raising the mandatory redemption for a
single offering or a series of offerings within a six-month period from $10 million to $30 million. The Note is due June 2012.

Note 10—Income Taxes

Fibrocell and Fibrocell Tech file a consolidated U.S. Federal income tax return. Agera files a separate U.S. Federal income tax return. The Company’s
foreign subsidiaries, which comprise loss from discontinued operations, file income tax returns in their respective jurisdictions. The geographic source of loss
from continuing operations is the United States.
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The components of the income tax expense/(benefit) related to continuing operations, are as follows:
 

   

Year ended
December 31,

2011    

Year ended
December 31,

2010  
U.S. Federal:     

Current   $ —      $ —    
Deferred    —       —    

U.S. State:     
Current    —       —    
Deferred    —       —    

  $ —      $ —    

The reconciliation between income tax benefit at the U.S. federal statutory rate and the amount recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements is as follows:
 

   

Year ended
December 31,

2011   

Year ended
December 31,

2010  
Tax benefit at U.S. federal statutory rate   $(10,958,402)  $(4,490,789) 
Increase in domestic valuation allowance    8,880,185    5,077,136  
State income tax benefit before valuation allowance, net of federal benefit    (1,370,399)   (789,894) 
Derivative revaluation expense    1,908,031    —    
Warrant revaluation expense    1,666,943    162,831  
Other    (126,358)   40,716  

  $ —     $ —    

The components of the Company’s net deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:
 

   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Deferred tax liabilities:    
Intangible assets   $ 2,500,000   $ 2,500,000  
Total deferred tax liabilities   $ 2,500,000   $ 2,500,000  
Deferred tax assets:    
Loss carryforwards   $ 39,059,449   $31,162,384  
Property and equipment    1,390,315    1,460,890  
Accrued expenses and other    1,165,103    1,285,007  
Stock compensation    2,103,702    930,103  
Total deferred tax assets    43,718,569    34,838,384  
Less: valuation allowance    (43,718,569)   (34,838,384) 
Total deferred tax assets   $ —     $ —    
Net deferred tax liabilities   $ 2,500,000   $ 2,500,000  

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had generated U.S. net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $96.5 million which expire in years
through 2031 and net loss carryforwards in certain non-US
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jurisdictions of approximately $24.4 million. The U.S. net operating loss carryforwards were reduced by approximately $74 million as a result of the
Company’s emergence from bankruptcy. The net operating loss carryforwards are available to reduce future taxable income. However, a change in ownership,
as defined by federal income tax regulations, could significantly limit the Company’s ability to utilize its U.S. net operating loss carryforwards. Additionally,
because federal tax laws limit the time during which the net operating loss carryforwards may be applied against future taxes, if the Company fails to generate
taxable income prior to the expiration dates it may not be able to fully utilize the net operating loss carryforwards to reduce future income taxes. As the
Company has had cumulative losses and there is no assurance of future taxable income, valuation allowances have been recorded to fully offset the deferred
tax asset at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The valuation allowance increased by $8.9 million and $5.1 million during 2011 and 2010, respectively, due to the
impact from the current year net losses incurred.

Note 11—Commitments
Leases

As stated in Note 16, in 2012, the Company renewed its lease for the office, warehouse and laboratory facilities in Exton, Pennsylvania under a non-
cancelable operating lease through 2023. Future minimum lease commitments for the amended lease agreement are as follows:
 

Year Ending December 31,     
2012   $ 884,173  
2013    1,070,438  
2014    1,081,250  
2015    1,211,000  
2016    1,254,250  
2017 and thereafter    8,704,063  
Total   $14,205,174  

For each of the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, rental expense totaled $1.4 million.

Note 12-Equity
Common Stock Private Placements

On August 3, 2011, the Company entered into agreements with certain accredited investors, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell to the
purchasers an aggregate of 41,409,461 shares of Company common stock at a purchase price of $0.55 per share in a private placement. Each purchaser also
received a warrant to purchase 0.35 shares of common stock for every share of common stock acquired in the offering with an exercise price of $0.75 per
share and a term of 5 years from issuance. The warrants are callable by the Company if the common stock trades over $1.75 for 20 consecutive trading days
at any time after the shares underlying the warrants are registered or eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144. The aggregate purchase price paid by the
purchasers at closing for the common stock and the warrants was $22.8 million. As of December 31, 2011, there was a subscription receivable of $0.6
million. The placement agents for the transaction received cash compensation of $1.6 million and warrants to purchase 1,252,761 shares of Company
common stock at an exercise price of $0.5454 and fair value of $440,330. Cash issuance costs of $1.6 million were netted against the gross proceeds.

On June 16, 2011, the Company completed a private placement, pursuant to which it sold an aggregate of 1,908,889 shares of Company common
stock to eight accredited investors for an aggregate purchase price of $1,718,000. The placement agent for the transaction received cash compensation of
$137,440 and warrants to purchase 152,711 shares of Company common stock at an exercise price of $0.90 per share.
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Redeemable Preferred stock
The Redeemable Preferred stock (“Preferred Stock’) is convertible into common stock at the option of the holder on a share-for-share basis. Each of the

foregoing securities are subject to the “down-round” protection and if at any time while the Preferred Stock is outstanding, the Company sells or grants any
option to purchase or sells or grants any right to reprice, or otherwise disposes of or issues (or announces any sale, grant or any option to purchase or other
disposition), any common stock or common stock equivalents at an effective price per share that is lower than the then conversion price of the Preferred
(“Conversion Price”) or the exercise price of the warrants, then the conversion price and exercise price will be reduced to equal the lower price. The Preferred
Stock has been classified by the Company within the mezzanine section between liabilities and equity in its consolidated balance sheets in accordance with
ASC 480 because any holder of Preferred may require the Company to redeem all of its Preferred Stock in the event of a triggering event which is outside of the
control of the Company.

In addition, the holders of the Preferred stock have no voting rights except with respect to specified matters affecting the rights of the Series A, B and D
Redeemable preferred stock. The Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate per share of 6% per annum.

The Company records accrued dividends at a rate of 6% per annum on the Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
$55,742 and $191,417, respectively, were accrued for dividends payable. The Company paid cash of $623,096 and $139,750 for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

On May 24, 2011, the Company sent a mandatory conversion notice to the holders of its outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B
Convertible Preferred Stock. Pursuant to the notice, each holder of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Series B Convertible Preferred Stock was notified
that since the volume weighted average price of the Company’s common stock had exceeded 200% of the then effective conversion price of the Preferred Stock
for twenty consecutive trading days; the Company was permitted to force the conversion of the Preferred Stock into Company common stock. The conversion
was effective on July 7, 2011; provided that holders of Preferred Stock had the right to voluntarily convert their shares of Preferred Stock prior to such date.
During 2010 and 2011, 364 and 2,886 Series A preferred shares were converted into 606,667 and 5,772,000 common shares, respectively. During 2011,
4,640 Series B preferred shares were converted into 9,280,000 common shares.

During 2011, 4,138 Series D preferred shares were converted into 8,276,000 common shares.

Preferred Stock Series B
In the third and fourth quarter of 2010, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with certain accredited

investors (the “Purchasers”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell to the Purchasers in the aggregate: (i) 4,640 shares of Series B Preferred, with a
par value of $0.001 per share and a stated value of $1,000 per share Series B Preferred, and (ii) the Warrants to purchase 7,733,334 shares of Common Stock
at an exercise price of $0.8054 per share. The aggregate purchase price for the third and fourth quarter 2010 Series B Preferred financing paid by the
Purchasers for the Series B Preferred and the Warrants was $4,430,000. The Company used the proceeds for working capital purposes. As a result of the
December 2010 Series D Preferred Stock transaction the shares and warrants were repriced to $0.50 per share. After giving effect to this anti-dilution
provision, as of December 31, 2010, there will be 9,280,000 shares of Common Stock underlying the Series B Preferred.

Preferred Stock Series D
On January 21, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of securities in which the Company sold to certain accredited investors in the

aggregate: (i) 1,234 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, with a par value of $0.001 per share and a stated value of $1,000 per share, and (ii)
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warrants to purchase 2,468,000 shares of Company common stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share. The aggregate purchase price paid by the
Purchasers for the Series D Preferred and the Warrants was $1,234,000 (representing $1,000 for each share of Series D Preferred together with warrants). The
Company intends to use the proceeds for working capital purposes. The placement agents for the offering received cash compensation of $98,720 and
warrants to purchase 197,440 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.

On January 28, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of securities in which the Company sold to certain accredited investors in the
aggregate: (i) 1,414 shares of Series D at a stated value of $1,000 per share, and (ii) warrants to purchase 2,828,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise
price of $0.50 per share. The aggregate purchase price paid by the Purchasers for the Series D Preferred and the warrants was $1,414,000 (representing $1,000
for each share of Series D Preferred together with warrants). The Company intends to use the proceeds for working capital purposes. The placement agents for
the offering received cash compensation of $113,120 and warrants to purchase 226,240 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.

On February 9, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of securities in which the Company sold to certain accredited investors in the
aggregate: (i) 3,436 shares of Series D at a stated value of $1,000 per share, and (ii) warrants to purchase 6,872,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise
price of $0.50 per share. The aggregate purchase price paid by the Purchasers for the Series D Preferred and the warrants was $3,436,000 (representing $1,000
for each share of Series D Preferred together with warrants). The Company intends to use the proceeds for working capital purposes. The placement agents for
the offering received cash compensation of $274,880 and warrants to purchase 549,760 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.

On March 1, 2011, the Company completed a private placement of securities in which the Company sold to certain accredited investors in the aggregate:
(i) 50 shares of Series D at a stated value of $1,000 per share, and (ii) warrants to purchase 100,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per
share. The aggregate purchase price paid by the Purchasers for the Series D Preferred and the warrants was $50,000 (representing $1,000 for each share of
Series D Preferred together with warrants). The Company intends to use the proceeds for working capital purposes. The placement agents for the offering
received cash compensation of $4,000 and warrants to purchase 8,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share.

On December 15, 17 and 27, 2010, the Company completed a private placement of securities of Series D Preferred and warrants. The details of the
2010 Series D Preferred financing are as follows:1,645 shares of Series D Preferred, with a par value of $0.001 per share and a stated value of $1,000 per
share and (ii) warrants to purchase 3,290,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.50 per share. The aggregate purchase price paid by the
Purchasers for the Series D Preferred and the Warrants was $1,645,000 (representing $1,000 for each share of Series D Preferred together with Warrants).

Conversion option of Redeemable Preferred stock
The embedded conversion option for the Preferred Stock has been recorded as a derivative liability under ASC 815 in the Company’s consolidated

balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and will be re-measured on the Company’s reporting dates. The fair value of the derivative liability is
determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and is affected by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock price
volatility, the contractual term, and the risk-free interest rate. The Company will continue to classify the fair value of the embedded conversion option as a
liability until the preferred stock is converted into common stock.
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The embedded conversion option for the Preferred Stock was valued at $533,549 and $2,120,360 at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, at fair
value using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair market value of the derivative liability was computed using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following weighted average assumptions:
 

   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Expected life (years)    1.1 years    1.6 years  
Interest rate    0.1%   1.6% 
Dividend yield    —      —    
Volatility    61%   63% 

Note 13-Warrants
We account for stock warrants as either equity instruments or derivative liabilities depending on the specific terms of the warrant agreement. Stock

warrants are accounted for as a derivative in accordance with ASC 815 if the stock warrants contain “down-round protection” and therefore, do not meet the
scope exception for treatment as a derivative. Since “down-round protection” is not an input into the calculation of the fair value of the warrants, the warrants
cannot be considered indexed to the Company’s own stock which is a requirement for the scope exception as outlined under ASC 815. The fair value of the
equity-classified warrants for the year ended December 31, 2011 and the fair value of the liability-classified warrants at December 31, 2010 was determined
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and is affected by changes in inputs to that model including our stock price, expected stock price volatility, the
expected term, and the risk-free interest rate. The Company will continue to classify the fair value of the warrants as a liability until the warrants are exercised,
expire or are amended in a way that would no longer require these warrants to be classified as a liability. Effective December 31, 2011, we calculated the fair
value of the warrants using the Monte Carlo simulation valuation method due to the changes in the product status with the approval of LAVIV.

The following table summarizes outstanding warrants to purchase Common Stock as of December 31, 2011:
 

   

Number
of

Warrants    
Exercise

Price    Expiration Dates  
Liability-classified warrants       
Issued in Series A Preferred Stock offering    3,256,492    $ 0.50     Oct. 2014  
Issued in March 2010 offering    4,917,602     0.50     Mar. 2015  
Issued in Series B Preferred Stock offering    9,616,086     0.50     Jul.-Nov. 2015  
Issued in Series D Preferred Stock offering    15,446,640     0.50     Dec. 2015-Mar. 2016  

   33,236,820      

Equity-classified warrants       
Issued in June 2011 equity financing    152,711    $ 0.90     June 2016  
Issued to placement agents in August 2011 equity financing    1,252,761     0.55     August 2016  
Issued in August 2011 equity financing    14,493,310     0.75     August 2016  

   15,898,782      
Total    49,135,602      

The following table summarizes the rollforward of the warrants for the two years ended December 31, 2011:
 

   
Number of
warrants  

Outstanding at January 1, 2010    1,168,210  
Warrants issued with financing    17,359,983  
Additional warrants issued due to anti-dilution provision    12,650,102  
Exercised    —    
Outstanding at December 31, 2010    31,178,295  
Warrants issued with financing    29,148,222  
Exercised    (11,190,915) 
Outstanding at December 31, 2011    49,135,602  
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There were 4,837,291 warrants exercised for the year ended December 31, 2011 which resulted in receipts of $2,418,646 and the issuance of
4,837,291 shares of common stock. In addition, there were 6,387,235 cashless warrants exercised for the year ended December 31, 2011 which resulted in
the issuance of 3,572,971 shares of common stock for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Liability-classified Warrants
Series D Preferred Stock Warrants and Placement Agent Warrants

In connection with the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock transaction, the Company issued 12,268,000 warrants at an exercise price of $0.50 per
share and 981,440 placement agent warrants at an exercise price of $0.50 per share during the first quarter of 2011. The warrants are liability classified since
they have “down-round” price protection and they are re-measured on the Company’s reporting dates. The weighted average fair market value of the warrants,
at the date of issuance, granted to the accredited investors and placement agents, based on the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, is estimated to be $0.45 per
warrant.

All liability-classified warrants have an exercise price of $0.50 per share as a result of the December 2010 Series D Preferred Stock financing
transaction.

The fair market value of the liability-classified warrants was computed using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for the year ended December 31,
2010 with the following key weighted average assumptions as date indicated:
 

   
December 31,

2010   

Net cash
settlement

as of
December 31,

2010(1)  
Calculated aggregate value   $8,171,518   $11,450,000  
Exercise price per share of warrant   $ 0.50   $ 0.50  
Closing price per share of common stock   $ 0.51   $ 0.51  
Volatility    63%   100%  
Expected term (years)    4.7    4.7  
Risk-free interest rate    1.8%   1.8% 
Dividend yield    0%   0% 

 
 Represents the net cash settlement value of the warrant as of December 31, 2010, which value was calculated utilizing the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model specified in the warrant.
 Represents the volatility assumption used to calculate the net cash settlement value as of December 31, 2010.

Effective December 31, 2011, the Company utilized the Monte Carlo simulation valuation method to value the liability classified warrants. The
following table summarizes the calculated aggregate fair values and net cash settlement value as of the dates indicated along with the assumptions utilized in
each calculation.
 

F32

(2)

(1)

(2)



Table of Contents

   
December 31,

2011   

Net cash
settlement

as of December
31, 2011  

Calculated aggregate value   $13,087,000   $8,320,000  
Exercise price per share of warrant   $ 0.50   $ 0.50  
Closing price per share of common stock   $ 0.40   $ 0.40  
Volatility    70%   100%  
Probability of Fundamental Transaction or Delisting    45.1%   —    
Expected term (years)    3.7    3.7  
Risk-free interest rate    0.63%    0.63% 
Dividend yield    0%   0% 

 
(1) Represents the net cash settlement value of the warrant as of December 31, 2011, which value was calculated utilizing the Black-Scholes option-pricing

model specified in the warrant.
(2) Represents the volatility assumption used to calculate the net cash settlement value as of December 31, 2011.

Equity-classified Warrants
In connection with the private placement transaction on August 3, 2011, the Company issued warrants to purchase 14,493,310 shares of the Company

common stock to certain accredited investors with an exercise price of $0.75 per share and a term of 5 years from issuance. The warrants are callable by the
Company if the common stock trades over $1.75 for 20 consecutive trading days. The placement agents for the transaction received warrants to purchase
1,252,761 shares of Company common stock at an exercise price of $0.5454. The Company determined the average fair value of the warrants as of the date
of the grant was $0.31 per share utilizing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In estimating the fair value of the warrants, the Company utilized the
following inputs: closing price per share of common stock of $0.63, volatility of 61.4%, expected term of 5 years, risk-free interest rate of 1.25% and
dividend yield of zero.

On June 16, 2011, the Company completed a private placement and issued warrants to the placement agents in the private placement to purchase
152,711 shares of Company common stock at an exercise price of $0.90 per share. The Company determined the fair value of the warrants as of the date of
the grant was $0.62 per share utilizing the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. In estimating the fair value of the warrants, the Company utilized the
following inputs: closing price per share of common stock of $1.08, volatility of 61.6%, expected term of 5 years, risk-free interest rate of 1.52% and
dividend yield of zero.

Note 14—Equity-based Compensation
Total stock-based compensation expense recognized using the straight-line attribution method in the consolidated statement of operations for the year

ended December 31 is as follows:
 

   2011    2010  
Stock option compensation expense for employees and directors   $ 2,607,210    $ 833,713  
Restricted stock expense    48,000     72,000  
Equity awards for nonemployees issued for services    244,740     86,828  
Total stock-based compensation expense   $2,899,950    $992,541  

Our board of directors adopted the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) effective September 3, 2009. The Plan is intended to further align the
interests of the Company and its stockholders with its employees, including its officers, non-employee directors, consultants and advisors by providing
incentives for such persons to exert maximum efforts for the success of the Company. The Plan originally allowed for the issuance of up to 4,000,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock. In June 2011, the board of
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directors of the Company amended the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan to 15,000,000 shares
of common stock. The types of awards that may be granted under the Plan include options (both nonqualified stock options and incentive stock options),
stock appreciation rights, stock awards, stock units, and other stock-based awards. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent the Company is unable to
obtain shareholder approval of the Plan within one year of the effective date, any incentive stock options issued pursuant to the Plan shall automatically be
considered nonqualified stock options, and to the extent a holder of an incentive stock option exercises his or her incentive stock option prior to such
shareholder approval date, such exercised option shall automatically be considered to have been a nonqualified stock option. The term of each award is
determined by the Board at the time each award is granted, provided that the terms of options may not exceed ten years.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the weighted average fair market value using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model of the
options granted was $0.40 and $0.53, respectively. The fair market value of the stock options at the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions for the year ended December 31:
 

   2011   2010  
Expected life (years)    5.4 years    5.1 years  
Interest rate    2.1%   2.0% 
Dividend yield    —      —    
Volatility    62%   64% 

There were 600,000 cashless stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2011, which resulted in the issuance of 246,141 shares of
common stock.
 

   
Number of

shares   

Weighted-
average
exercise

price    

Weighted-
average

remaining
contractual

term (in years)   

Aggregate
intrinsic

value  
Outstanding at January 1, 2010    2,807,000   $ 0.77     7.35    $1,082,800  
Granted    2,870,000    0.95      
Exercised    —      —        
Forfeited    —      —        
Outstanding at December 31, 2010    5,677,000   $ 0.86     7.46    $ —    
Granted    9,628,000   $ 0.72      
Exercised    (600,000)  $ 0.75       318,000  
Forfeited    (1,096,500)  $ 0.77      
Outstanding at December 31, 2011    13,608,500   $ 0.77     8.36    $ —    
Exercisable at December 31, 2011    8,596,427   $ 0.80     8.00    $ —    

The following table summarizes the Company’s non-vested stock options:
 

   Non-vested Options  

   
Number of

Shares   

Weighted-
Average Fair

Value  
Non-vested at January 1, 2010    677,000   $ 0.36  
Granted    2,870,000    0.53  
Vested    (1,497,384)   0.49  
Forfeited    —      —    
Non-vested at December 31, 2010    2,049,616   $ 0.50  
Granted    9,628,000    0.72  
Vested    (5,569,043)   0.77  
Forfeited    (1,096,500)   0.76  
Non-vested at December 31, 2011    5,012,073   $ 0.41  
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The total fair value of shares vested during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 was $2.5 million. As of December 31, 2011, there was
$1.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost, related to non-vested stock options which vest over time. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.5 years. As of December 31, 2011, there was less than $0.1 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to
performance-based, non-vested employee stock options. That cost will be recognized when the performance criteria within the respective performance-based
option grants become probable of achievement.

Restricted stock
The following table summarizes the Company’s restricted stock activity for the year ended December 31, 2011:

 
   Non-vested Options  

   
Number
of Shares   

Weighted-
Average

Fair
Value  

Non-vested at January 1, 2010    300,000   $ 0.48  
Granted    —      —    
Vested    (150,000)   0.48  
Forfeited    —      —    
Non-vested at December 31, 2010    150,000   $ 0.48  
Granted    —      —    
Vested    (150,000)   0.48  
Forfeited    —      —    
Non-vested at December 31, 2011    —     $ —    

Note 15—Segment Information and Geographical information
The Company has two reportable segments: Fibrocell Therapy and Agera. The Fibrocell Therapy segment specializes in the development and

commercialization of autologous cellular therapies for soft tissue regeneration. The Agera segment maintains proprietary rights to a scientifically-based
advanced line of skincare products. There is no intersegment revenue. The following table provides operating financial information for the continuing
operations of the Company’s two reportable segments:
 

   Segment  

Year Ended December 31, 2011   
Fibrocell
Therapy   Agera   Consolidated  

Total operating revenue   $ —     $ 812,235   $ 812,235  
Depreciation and amortization expense    157,756    —      157,756  
Segment income (loss) from continuing operations   $(31,254,865)  $ (54,854)  $(31,309,719) 

   Segment  

Year Ended December 31, 2010   
Fibrocell
Therapy   Agera   Consolidated  

Total operating revenue   $ —     $936,369   $ 936,369  
Depreciation and amortization expense    8,085    —      8,085  
Segment income (loss) from continuing operations   $ (12,840,598)  $ 9,770   $ (12,830,828) 
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Geographical information concerning the Company’s revenue is as follows:
 

   Year Ended December 31,  
   2011    2010  
United States   $ 192,172    $ 237,286  
United Kingdom    526,189     669,921  
Other    93,874     29,162  

  $ 812,235    $ 936,369  

During the year ended December 31, 2011, revenue from one foreign customer and one domestic customer represented 65% and 17% of consolidated
revenue, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2010, revenue from one foreign customer and one domestic customer represented 72% and 17% of
consolidated revenue, respectively.
 

   Segment  

   
Fibrocell
Therapy    Agera    Consolidated  

Total assets:       
December 31, 2011   $19,749,479    $ 524,018    $20,273,497  
December 31, 2010    7,681,502     596,643     8,278,145  

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, one foreign customer represented 85% and 88%, respectively, of accounts receivable, net.

Note 16—Subsequent Events
Our corporate headquarters and manufacturing operations are located in one location, Exton, Pennsylvania. On February 17, 2012 the Company

renegotiated the lease and extended it for a period of ten years until March 31, 2023. The lease is non-cancelable and the minimum annual lease payments are
summarized in Note 11.
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Exhibit 10.17

AMENDMENT TO LEASE

THIS AMENDMENT TO LEASE (the “Amendment”), is effective as of April 1, 2011, and is by and between THE HANKIN GROUP
(“Landlord”) and FIBROCELL SCIENCE, INC., formerly known as ISOLAGEN, INC. (“Tenant”).

BACKGROUND

Landlord and Tenant (then known as Isolagen, Inc.) entered into a certain lease agreement dated April 6, 2005 (the “Current Lease”) pertaining to
approximately 86,500 rentable square feet of space located at 405 Eagleview Boulevard in Eagleview Corporate Center, Route 100, Exton, Uwchlan
Township, Chester County, Pennsylvania.

Isolagen, Inc. filed a petition in bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, following which Tenant successfully reorganized and
emerged from bankruptcy under the name Fibrocell Science, Inc. Landlord and Tenant have agreed to extend the Term of the Current Lease, originally
scheduled to expire March 31, 2013, until March 31, 2023, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto, each intending to be legally bound hereby, agree that the Current Lease is hereby amended and modified as
follows:

1. Extension of Term.

The Term of the Lease is hereby extended for a period of ten (10) years until March 31, 2023.

2. Option to Extend.

(a) Provided that Landlord has not given Tenant notice of default more than two (2) times following the date of execution of this Amendment, and
there then exists no event of default by Tenant under the Lease nor any event that with the giving of notice and/or the passage of time would constitute an event
of default, Tenant shall have the right and option to extend the Term for one (1) additional period of sixty (60) months. Tenant shall exercise this right by
giving Landlord prior written notice, not sooner than fifteen (15) nor later than twelve (12) months in advance of then scheduled expiration of the Term, of
Tenant’s election to extend the Term. The parties agree that time is of the essence and that this option is personal to Tenant and is non-transferable to any
assignee or sublessee (regardless of whether any such assignment or sublease was made with or without Landlord’s consent) or other party.

(b) Such extension shall be under the same terms and conditions as provided in the Lease except that: (1) the Minimum Annual Rent payable by
Tenant shall be at the then fair market value (and in no event less than the Minimum Annual Rent payable during the immediately preceding Term) and
(2) upon exercise of the option to extend, there shall be no further options to extend.
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(c) For the purposes of this Lease, the term “fair market value” shall mean Landlord’s reasonable determination of fair market value of rent for
office/laboratory/warehouse buildings in the Eagleview Corporate Center. Landlord shall notify Tenant in writing within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s exercise
of its option to extend as to Landlord’s determination of such fair market value rent. Tenant shall execute a lease renewal agreement in form prescribed by
Landlord and reasonably acceptable to Tenant utilizing such determination of fair market value within twenty (20) days after Tenant’s receipt of Landlord’s
notice; if Tenant does not exercise its option to extend by the date set forth above, or having exercised its option, does not execute a lease renewal agreement
within the time period required above, Tenant shall be deemed to have revoked its option to extend, and the Lease shall terminate, without further options to
extend, at the expiration of the then current Term.

(d) The provisions of this Section 2 supersede in their entirety the provisions of Section 45 of the Current Lease, which is hereby agreed to be
void and of no further force and effect.

3. Rent.

(a) Paragraph 3(b) of the Current Lease is hereby deleted and amended and restated to provide as follows:

(b) For each of the lease years beginning April 1, 2011 and April 1, 2012 (the “Carryover Period”), respectively, Minimum Annual Rent shall
accrue in an amount equal to the Base Rent for Adjustment Purposes, increased by one half the CPI Adjustment, but in no event shall the Minimum Annual
Rent for either such year be (1) less than the Minimum Annual Rent in effect for the preceding year, nor (2) greater than $1,384,000.00 per year. For the
purposes of this Section 3(b), the Base Rent for Adjustment Purposes for the lease year beginning April 1, 2011 is $1,194,350.40, being the Minimum
Annual Rent in effect for the prior lease year beginning April 1, 2010. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during each year of the Carryover Period, Tenant shall
be permitted to pay on account of Minimum Annual Rent the sums as provided in the schedule below (without any CPI Adjustment to such amounts in the
schedule), and defer payment of the difference between Minimum Annual Rent calculated in accordance with this paragraph and Minimum Annual Rent as set
forth in the schedule (hereinafter “Deferred Rent Amount”) until the expiration of the Term of the Lease as extended by this Amendment, without the occurrence
of an Event of Default by Tenant, at which time Tenant’s obligation to pay the Deferred Rent Amount shall be excused. The parties agree that upon the
occurrence of an Event of Default, the Deferred Rent Amount shall be included as part of the unpaid rent due and payable to Landlord. After the Carryover
Period, during each remaining year of the Lease, Tenant shall be permitted to pay on account of Minimum Annual Rent the sums as provided in the schedule
below (without any CPI Adjustment to such amounts in the schedule).
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For the purpose of this Section 3(b), the following terms shall have the meanings defined below:

(i) The “CPI U” shall mean the Consumer Price Index established by the U.S. Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics for all
urban consumers for the Philadelphia metropolitan area (CPI-U) (1982-1984 = 100).

(ii) The “Base Index” shall mean, for the lease year beginning April 1, 2011, the CPI U for March, 2010, and for each subsequent year,
the CPI U for the month of March one year prior to the Comparison Index.

(iii) The “Comparison Index” shall mean the CPI U for month of March immediately preceding the commencement of each lease year
beginning April 1, 2011.

(iv) The “CPI Adjustment” shall mean, for each year of the Term beginning April 1, 2011, an increase in the Base Rent for Adjustment
Purposes by the percentage increase in the Comparison Index over the Base Index, applicable to such year.

The Minimum Annual Rent schedule (the amounts in which are not subject to a CPI Adjustment) is as follows:
 

Period   Rate per square foot    Minimum Annual Rent    Monthly Installment  
4/1/11 - 3/30/13   $ 12.00    $ 1,038,000.00    $ 86,500.00  
4/1/13 - 3/31/15   $ 12.50    $ 1,081,250.00    $ 90,104.17  
4/1/15 - 3/31/19   $ 14.50    $ 1,254,250.00    $ 104,520.83  
4/1/19 - 3/31/23   $ 17.00    $ 1,470,500.00    $ 122,541.67  

(c) In addition to the Minimum Annual Rent, Tenant shall continue to pay Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Real Estate Taxes and Operating
Expenses, as well as all other items of Additional Rent on the Leased Space, determined in accordance with the terms of the Lease.

4. Condition of Leased Space . Tenant acknowledges and agrees that it shall occupy the Leased Space in “as is” condition.

5. Tenant Alterations. Section 8 of the Current Lease is hereby deleted in its entirety, and the following substituted in its place:

8. Tenant Alterations.

(a) Except as hereafter provided, Tenant shall make no alterations, additions or improvements (“Tenant Alterations”) to the Leased Space
without the consent of Landlord, which consent, subject to the provisions of subsection (c) below, shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or
conditioned.
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At the time of Landlord’s consent, Landlord shall designate whether Tenant shall be required to remove the proposed Tenant Alteration upon
termination of this Lease, and the absence of such designation in Landlord’s written consent shall be deemed Landlord’s agreement that Tenant
shall not be obligated to remove Tenant Alterations upon the termination of this Lease. Landlord also may impose such reasonable conditions as
part of its consent as Landlord deems appropriate, taking into consideration the nature of the proposed Tenant Alteration, including, without
limitation, requiring Tenant to furnish Landlord with security for the payment of all costs to be incurred in connection with such work, and, if
Eagleview Commercial Construction Company (“Contractor”) declines to perform such work, insurance, and copies of the plans, specifications
and permits necessary for such work. Nothing herein, however, shall be construed to obligate Tenant to construct any Tenant Alteration for which
Landlord has given its consent.

(b) Subject to Tenant’s compliance with the provisions of subsection (c) below, Landlord’s consent shall not be required for Tenant Alterations
which (i) do not adversely impact the structural integrity of the Building or the systems serving the Building or their operation, and (ii) are not visible
from the Building exterior.

(c) All Tenant Alterations shall be done at Tenant’s expense by Contractor, on the basis of a contract between Tenant and Contractor where the
contract price is based upon the Cost of the Work plus a contractor’s fee, in which the term “Cost of the Work” shall be defined by reference to the
definition of such term as used in the then current edition of the AIA Contract for Construction, and the fee shall be, with respect to any Tenant
Alterations which are for laboratory improvements, 8% of the Cost of the Work, and for any other Tenant Alterations, 12% of the Cost of the Work.
The contract between Tenant and Contractor shall be on an “open book” basis, and all subcontracts for more than $25,000.00 shall be subject to
competitive bidding. Such contract shall also require the Contractor to maintain a reasonable schedule for the performance of Tenant Alterations.
Payment for Tenant Alterations by Tenant to Contractor shall be no less frequently than monthly, and shall be pursuant to invoices for completed work
or materials properly stored on site. No Tenant Alterations shall be performed by any contractor other than Contractor, unless Contractor declines to
perform the proposed Tenant Alterations (“Permitted Outside Contractor Alterations”), provided that Tenant shall not use a contractor to which Landlord
objects in good faith. With respect to Permitted Outside Contractor Alterations, no work shall be performed until the plans therefore have been approved
by Landlord, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned and shall be deemed approved unless Landlord notifies
Tenant of objections to the proposed plans within ten (10) business days after delivery to Landlord of a complete set of the plans therefor, and until
Tenant provides to Landlord the evidence of insurance and security for payment for such work as referenced in subsection (a) above. In connection with
the review of plans submitted by Tenant, Landlord shall be reimbursed by Tenant for Landlord’s cost in reviewing such plans at the
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rate of $125.00 per hour; subject to reasonable increase to reflect the then current hourly charge imposed for such review by Landlord for its tenants in
the Center generally, and prior to undertaking any such review, Landlord shall provide a statement of the maximum review hours to be dedicated to such
review. With respect to Permitted Outside Contractor Alterations, Tenant shall provide Landlord with a copy of Tenant’s application for a building
permit therefor, if applicable (together with all attachments thereto), and no review fee shall be charged to Tenant by Landlord in connection therewith
nor shall Landlord’s approval of such application be required. Tenant shall provide copies of as-built plans and specifications for all Permitted Outside
Contractor Alterations to Landlord within a reasonable time of completion of the work. All Permitted Outside Contractor Alterations shall be done in a
first class, workmanlike manner and shall comply with all insurance requirements then made available to Tenant and all applicable laws, ordinances,
rules and regulations of governmental authorities having jurisdiction thereover, and, where applicable, with all reasonable requirements of Landlord.
Tenant shall promptly pay for all work done by contractors performing Permitted Outside Contractor Alterations, and obtain and deliver to Landlord
partial releases of lien for all work covered by invoices paid by or on behalf of Tenant for such work executed by all contractors, subcontractors and
other persons entitled to file mechanic’s liens for non-payment, and final releases of mechanic’s liens upon completion of such work.

(d) If, as a condition of Landlord’s consent, removal of a Tenant Alteration is required at termination of this Lease, Tenant shall promptly remove
such Tenant Alterations and repair any damage occasioned by such removal. In default thereof, Landlord may effect said removal and repairs at
Tenant’s expense. With respect to any Tenant Alterations which Tenant is not obligated to remove hereunder (including without limitation Permitted
Outside Contractor Alterations), such Tenant Alterations, if not removed by Tenant upon the termination of this Lease, shall be deemed abandoned by
Tenant, and deemed a part of Landlord’s property, notwithstanding any provision of Section 16 to the contrary.

(e) Landlord’s consent shall not be required for Tenant Alterations which (i) do not adversely impact the structural integrity of the Building or the
systems serving the Building or their operation, (ii) are not visible from the Building exterior and (iii) qualify under the following:

(A) The Tenant Alteration is to be made to portions of the Leased Premises other than the laboratory areas and the cost thereof is $10,000 or less
with respect to any Tenant Alteration project (or $20,000 or less in the aggregate with respect to Tenant Alteration projects undertaken over any twelve
(12) consecutive month period); or

(B) The Tenant Alteration is to be made to the laboratory areas of the Leased Premises and the cost thereof is $50,000 or less with respect to any
Tenant Alteration project (or $100,000 or less in the aggregate with respect to Tenant Alteration projects undertaken over any twelve (12) consecutive
month period).
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Tenant Alterations described in this subsection (e) for which Landlord’s consent is not required hereinafter are called “Permitted Tenant
Alterations.” Notwithstanding the foregoing, painting or carpeting of the interior of the Leased Space and like cosmetic improvements shall not be
deemed Tenant Alterations regardless of the cost thereof. Tenant shall not be obligated to remove Permitted Tenant Alterations upon the termination of this
Lease unless an Event of Default has occurred which is then continuing and Landlord so requires such removal. For the purpose of this subsection (e),
in calculating the “cost” of any Tenant Alteration project to determine if any proposed Tenant Alteration is a “Permitted Tenant Alteration”, “cost” shall
mean the Landlord’s good faith estimate of the entire cost of the Tenant Alteration project or projects under consideration, including all permit fees,
design and engineering costs, general conditions, and the cost of all work to be performed by all trade contractors to furnish and install materials needed
to complete such project, and a reasonable fee to a general contractor or construction manager for overhead and profit.

5. Section 23 of the Lease is hereby deleted, and the following substituted in its place:

23. CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT:

UPON AN EVENT OF DEFAULT, TENANT HEREBY AUTHORIZES AND EMPOWERS ANY PROTHONOTARY OR
ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT OF RECORD TO APPEAR FOR TENANT IN ANY AND ALL ACTIONS FOR RENT IN ARREARS OR
TREATED AS IF IN ARREARS AND CHARGES, WHETHER OR NOT PAYABLE AS RENT, AND TO CONFESS JUDGMENT
AGAINST TENANT FOR ALL ARREARS OR SUCH SUMS TREATED AS IF IN ARREARS AND THE SAID CHARGES, AND FOR
INTEREST AND COSTS, TOGETHER WITH AN ATTORNEY’S COMMISSION OF TEN PER CENT (10%) OF THE AGGREGATE
OF THE FOREGOING SUMS AND CHARGES. SUCH AUTHORITY SHALL NOT BE EXHAUSTED BY ONE EXERCISE THEREOF,
BUT JUDGMENT MAY BE CONFESSED FROM TIME TO TIME AS OFTEN AS ANY RENT IN ARREARS OR RENT TREATED AS
IF IN ARREARS OR CHARGES FALL DUE AND ARE NOT PAID. SUCH POWERS MAY BE EXERCISED DURING AS WELL AS
AFTER THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE TERM AND DURING, AND AT ANY TIME, AFTER ANY EXTENSION OR
RENEWAL OF THE TERM.
WHEN THE LEASE SHALL BE TERMINATED BY COVENANT OR CONDITION BROKEN, EITHER DURING THE ORIGINAL
TERM OR
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ANY RENEWALS OR EXTENSIONS THEREOF, AND ALSO WHEN AND AFTER THE TERM HEREBY CREATED OR, ANY
RENEWAL OR EXTENSION THEREOF SHALL HAVE EXPIRED, IT SHALL BE LAWFUL FOR ANY ATTORNEY OF ANY COURT
OF RECORD AS ATTORNEY FOR TENANT TO CONFESS JUDGMENT IN EJECTMENT AGAINST TENANT AND ALL PERSONS
CLAIMING UNDER TENANT, AND A JUDGMENT FOR THE RECOVERY BY LANDLORD OF POSSESSION MAY ISSUE
FORTHWITH WITHOUT ANY PRIOR WRIT OR PROCEEDINGS WHATSOEVER. IF FOR ANY REASON AFTER SUCH ACTION
SHALL HAVE BEEN COMMENCED, IT SHALL BE CANCELED OR SUSPENDED AND POSSESSION OF THE LEASED SPACE
REMAINS IN OR IS RESTORED TO TENANT, LANDLORD SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT UPON ANY SUBSEQUENT DEFAULT OR
TERMINATION OF THE LEASE, OR ANY RENEWAL OR EXTENSION HEREOF, TO BRING ONE OR MORE ACTIONS IN
CONFESSION OF JUDGMENT FOR EJECTMENT AS HEREINBEFORE SET FORTH TO RECOVER POSSESSION OF THE
LEASED SPACE. IF IN ANY ACTION TO CONFESS JUDGMENT IN EJECTMENT, LANDLORD SHALL CAUSE TO BE FILED IN
SUCH ACTION AN AFFIDAVIT SETTING FORTH THE FACTS NECESSARY TO AUTHORIZE THE ENTRY OF JUDGMENT AND
IF A TRUE COPY OF THIS INSTRUMENT (AND THE TRUTH OF THE COPY STATED IN SUCH AFFIDAVIT SHALL BE
SUFFICIENT PROOF) BE FILED IN SUCH ACTION, IT SHALL NOT BE NECESSARY TO FILE THE ORIGINAL AS A WARRANT
OF ATTORNEY, ANY LAW, RULE OF COURT, CUSTOM OR PRACTICE TO THE CONTRARY NOTWITHSTANDING. TENANT
EXPRESSLY RELEASES TO LANDLORD, AND TO ANY AND ALL ATTORNEYS WHO MAY APPEAR FOR TENANT, ALL
ERRORS IN THE SAID PROCEEDINGS, AND ALL LIABILITY THEREFOR. TENANT EXPRESSLY WAIVES THE BENEFIT OF
ALL LAWS,  NOW OR HEREAFTER IN FORCE, EXEMPTING ANY GOODS WITHIN THE LEASED SPACE OR ELSEWHERE
FROM DISTRAINT, LEVY OR SALE.
FIBROCELL SCIENCE, INC.

By: s/s Declan Daly

6. Brokers.

Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that Tenant has not dealt with any broker, firm, company or person in connection with the
negotiation for or the obtaining of this Amendment, other than Newmark, Knight, Frank, Smith, Mack, whose commission shall be paid by Landlord
pursuant to a separate agreement between Landlord and such broker, and each party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other from and against
any claim by any other person claiming a commission or other
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form of compensation by virtue of having dealt with such party with regard to this Lease, and any attorneys fees or other expenses incurred by the other party
in connection therewith.

7. Miscellaneous.

(a) All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning as the Current Lease. From and after the date hereof, except to the extent
that the context otherwise requires, the term “Lease” shall mean the Current Lease as modified by this Amendment.

(b) Except as expressly modified hereby, the terms and conditions of the Current Lease remain unmodified and in full force and effect, which the
parties hereby ratify and confirm. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Current Lease and this Amendment, the latter shall control.

(c) The terms and conditions of the Current Lease, as amended hereby, constitutes the whole agreement between the parties and any further
amendments or modifications to the terms of the Current Lease must be in writing and duly executed by the parties hereto.

(d) This Amendment shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs and assigns, except as
specifically provided herein or in the Current Lease, and is not intended to benefit any person or entity not a party hereto.

(e) This Amendment shall be construed under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to conflicts of laws principles.

(f) This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which counterparts
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. It shall not be necessary for all parties to execute the same counterpart, so long as each party shall have
executed at least one counterpart, but in this latter event, each party shall have delivered to it photocopies of counterparts showing signatures of all of the
parties.

(g) This Amendment, together with the Current Lease, constitutes the entire agreement of Landlord and Tenant with respect to the subject matter
hereof, and may not be contradicted by any prior or contemporaneous representation, statement or agreement of the parties relating to the subject matter hereof,
and may not be modified except by a written instrument executed by the parties hereto.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Amendment this 17  day of February, 2012, effective as of April 1, 2011.
 

  LANDLORD:

  THE HANKIN GROUP , a Pennsylvania limited partnership

  By:  The Hankin Group, Inc., its general partner

  BY:  /s/ Robert S. Hankin
   Robert S. Hankin, President

 

  

TENANT:
 
FIBROCELL SCIENCE, INC.

WITNESS/ATTEST:   BY:  /s/ Declan Daly

/s/ Sue White   NAME: Declan Daly
  TITLE:  Chief Financial Officer

  DATE:  February 17, 2012
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-172776) of Fibrocell Science, Inc. of our report
dated March 30, 2012, relating to the consolidated financial statements appearing in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Our report contains an explanatory paragraph regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
 
/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Houston, Texas
March 30, 2012



Exhibit 31.1

OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David Pernock, Chief Executive Officer of Fibrocell Science, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fibrocell Science, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
Dated: March 30, 2012
By:    /s/ David Pernock
David Pernock, Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Declan Daly, Chief Financial Officer of Fibrocell Science, Inc., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fibrocell Science, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

 
Dated: March 30, 2012
By:    /s/ Declan Daly
Declan Daly, Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350 OF
CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE

For purposes of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, David Pernock, Chief
Executive Officer of Fibrocell Science, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that:
 

 
i. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on the date hereof (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Commission Act of
1934; and

 

 ii. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 30, 2012
 
By:  /s/ David Pernock

 David Pernock
 Chief Executive Officer
 Fibrocell Science, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Fibrocell Science, Inc. and will be retained by Fibrocell
Science, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 1350 OF
CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18 OF THE UNITED STATES CODE

For purposes of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, Declan Daly, Chief
Financial Officer of Fibrocell Science, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that:
 

 
i. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission

on the date hereof (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Commission Act of
1934; and

 

 ii. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 30, 2012
 
By:  /s/ Declan Daly

 Declan Daly
 Chief Financial Officer
 Fibrocell Science, Inc.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Fibrocell Science, Inc. and will be retained by Fibrocell
Science, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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